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Financial Summary

MBEE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

G

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-ZA=1t—-HLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C “E-—% —ZE-TF —T-AF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRE ARETT ARBTI ARETRT ARETRT
Revenue A 4,724,834 6,147,262 5,455,246 6,030,167 4,734,080
(Loss) profit before tax al (E58) A8 (350,935) (213,653) 67,177 503,193 609,440
(Loss) profit for the year RABEF A
attributable to owners FEMRER (F18)
of the Company GalbE (353,052) (293,212) 1,837 288,100 462,547
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENEE
As at 31 December
Rt+t=ZA=+-H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C 2% ZZ=THF ZT-hEF ZT-N\#E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTIT AR®BTIT AREFIT ARETR
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,778,293 2,954,916 3,562,387 3,619,250 1,214,492
Current assets B EE 1,531,845 1,996,385 2,217,569 2,006,636 2,038,824
Total assets BEE 4,310,138 4,951,301 5,779,956 5,625,886 3,253,316
Equity and liabilities EnkaE
Total equity REmAsE 1,521,421 2,011,302 2,340,168 2,386,840 2,247,467
Non-current liabilities FRBAE 1,014,167 1,172,113 1,460,983 1,525,293 11,692
Current liabilities nEBE 1,774,550 1,767,886 1,978,805 1,713,753 994,157
Total liabilities BEE 2,788,717 2,939,999 3,439,788 3,239,046 1,005,849
Total equity and liabilites ~— Bm Kk B ERAHE 4,310,138 4,951,301 5,779,956 5,625,886 3,253,316
Net current (liabilities) assets 72 (B &) B EFE (242,705) 228,499 238,764 292,883 1,044,667
Total assets less current BEERRE
liabilities 8E& 2,535,588 3,183,415 3,801,151 3,912,133 2,259,159
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Financial Summary
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Chairman’s Statement
ETEHRES

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi
BEXEEE
Chairman of the Board

EFR

Dear Shareholders,

During the past year, the Covid-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”)
continued to impact our daily lives and economic activities globally. In
the midst of such uncertainties and challenges, the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) still achieved steady expansion. In 2022, the
Group opened 41 Xiabuxiabu restaurants, 44 Coucou restaurants and
1 Shaohot restaurant, laying an excellent foundation for the potential
development in 2023.

In 2022, the global economy was confronted with mounting headwinds,
such as the emergence of new Covid-19 variants around the world, the
worsening inflation and the escalation of Russia-Ukraine war, weighing
down on consumption and economic growth. In such a challenging
environment, we nonetheless strived to capture a wider spectrum of
market opportunities through continuous improvement of product and
service quality, so as to promote the sustainable development of the
Company’s business.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

2022 marked a challenging year for the Group. We continued to
uphold the operation philosophy of “giving top priority to the core
benefits of the customers”, and concurrently conducted comprehensive
adjustments and optimisations of the Company’s operating strategy
and management team. We kept abreast of the changing demands of
the market, enhanced brand promotion and operation management,
and optimised the quality of our catering products and services. In
addition, we proactively expanded our restaurant network and adjusted
our operational strategy, laying a solid foundation for the enhancement
of the profitability and brand value of the Company. In 2022, certain
parts of the Mainland were severely affected by the Pandemic, including
Beijing, Shanghai and other core cities, delivering an unprecedented
blow to the catering sector. By adopting business models such as
delivery service for takeout orders, group purchase, community
marketing, and digitalized management solutions, and etc., the Group
successfully stabilized its operation and developed new businesses.
Moreover, through a series of measures including contactless delivery
services, stringent implementation of sterilisation process and Pandemic
prevention and control measures, the Group strived to safeguard
the health and safety of its staff and customers, smoothly navigating
through these difficult times.

Our efforts in innovation has not been hindered by the Pandemic. With
respect to the development of new brand, we launched the new brand
“Shaohot Huan Le Shao Rou” (#EE£4,EA ) in Shanghai in September
2022 after eight years of painstaking development. As a new barbecue
brand of the Group, it attracted much attention from consumers. With
its innovative business model of “cabobs + tea & liquor + fun” and
strong core competitiveness, this new brand has been warmly accepted
and become a popular hit among young consumers. The first Shaohot
restaurant performed excellently in Shanghai market, with an average
daily customer traffic of over 1,000 during the Spring Festival of 2023.
In light of this outstanding market performance, the Shaohot brand
planned to launch its nationwide chain store strategy in 2023, with an
aim of further broadening its brand influence and market share.

With respect to the development of the digitalization of the industry,
we have a great success on the new multiple-brand membership
system which was launched in August 2022. Customers will be entitled
to member-privileged services and rights at all restaurants and food
companies under the Group in the Mainland through subscription of
one membership. In 2023, we plan to launch a premium membership
system and a membership system tailored for Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan and the international market, so as to further enhance our
members’ quality dining experience and brand loyalty. We believe that
the development of digitalization and the implementation of diverse
digital marketing will become new growth engines for the Group’s
results.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

Going into to 2023, we will continue to execute our expansion plans
cautiously. The Group plans to open around 120 Xiabuxiabu restaurants,
74 Coucou restaurants and 20 Shaohot restaurants respectively in the
Mainland. We will continue to expand our business operation across
China and also expand into places outside Mainland China. We have
established the Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and International Business
Department, which is responsible for the expansion and operation
of all brands of the Group in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and the
international market. In addition to the 11 Coucou restaurants in Hong
Kong and Singapore in 2022, we opened the first Xiabuxiabu restaurant
in Singapore in January 2023, and will continue to expand the market
share of Xiabuxiabu and Coucou in Hong Kong, Taiwan and the
international markets such as Singapore and Malaysia.

We will continue to uphold the operation philosophy of “giving top
priority to the core benefits of the customers”, step up efforts for
brand promotion and enhance brand influence, with an aim to further
strengthen the leading position of all brands of Xiaubu Group in the
catering market. We will constantly optimise our products and services,
and strengthen restaurant management and staff training, so as to
enhance customer satisfaction and loyalty and further expand market
shares and business growth drivers. We will continue to improve our
service quality and operation efficiency through proactive application
of digital technologies and intelligent equipment. We always put the
safety and health of our customers as first priority, and will continue
to provide safe, efficient and quality services, offer excellent dining
experience with fresh and delicious delicacy to global consumers.

The Pandemic and the uncertainties in the international landscape
presented many challenges to us. Despite of the tough situation, we
will always remain confident by bracing ourselves with all challenges
and continuing to make innovations. As the global pandemic almost
ended, the PRC economy will be revived with the effective control of
the Central Government. We will continue to uphold the motto of
“openness, collaboration and aggressiveness”, and work together with
the shareholders, staff and consumers to introduce a new chapter of
the catering industry.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

Looking ahead, we are very optimistic about the development prospect
of the Company. With the further development of the PRC economy and
improvement of domestic consumption, we believe that the Company
will achieve rapid growth in operation revenue and profit. In addition,
we will proactively explore new markets and improve product and
service quality, in an effort to further improve customer satisfaction and
enhance brand recognition and market shares. Meanwhile, we will also
continue to invest in talent cultivation and technology advancement,
so as to continuously improve the core competitiveness and sustainable
development capability of the Company. We believe that, with the
hardwork and commitment of all employees, the Company will create
better results and greater achievements in the future.

I would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere gratitude
to the shareholders, consumers and business partners worldwide on
behalf of the Group and the board (the “Board”) of the directors of
the Company. In 2023, we will continue to adhere to the corporate
mission of “offering more people with healthy, nutritious, delicious food
and stylish dining environment”, and are committed to creating greater
value for and making greater contributions to the society.

Ho Kuang-Chi
Chairman

28 March 2023
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Business Review and Outlook
EROEREE

OVERVIEW

In 2022, the Group opened 41 Xiabuxiabu restaurants, 44 Coucou
restaurants and 1 Shaohot restaurant. The Group also closed down 81
Xiabuxiabu restaurants and 3 Coucou restaurants. These restaurants
were closed down as they were primarily loss making, many operated in
locations that were mismatching to the “value for money” model which
Xiabuxiabu stood for and models that were not able to portrait the
brand correctly. The Group believes that with this change, the Company
will be able to return to the right track going forward.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group owned and operated 801
Xiabuxiabu restaurants in 123 cities of 25 provinces and autonomous
regions and in three centrally administered municipalities in China,
namely Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai.

The Group also owned and operated 224 Coucou restaurants in 50
cities of 26 provinces, in three centrally administered municipalities in
China, namely Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai and in Hong Kong Special
Administration Region (“Hong Kong") and Singapore.

The Group's revenue decreased by 23.1% from RMB6,147.3 million in
2021 to RMB4,724.8 million in 2022. Following the development of the
Pandemic, the residents and consumers reduced consumption in public
areas in compliance with the control measures during different times
throughout 2022, which greatly affected the Group’s business. In order
to comply with the governmental measures and to ensure the safety of
its staff and customers, the Group gradually suspended the operation of
a number of its restaurants.
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Business Review and Outlook
(¥ROEREE

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2022, the Pandemic condition worsened and in the second quarter
came the toughest time in Shanghai, the growth of China’s domestic
economy suffered severely. China’s GDP growth in the second quarter
was merely 0.4%. From March to October, many restaurant operations
were hit hard as many cities were impacted by the Pandemic outbreak.
When the Pandemic ended at the end of 2022, where home quarantine
was no longer implemented, it delivered positive signs for the catering
industry. As the policy has changed, it is believed that the catering
industry would expect a fruitful year ahead in 2023. During the
Pandemic, many operators have chosen to streamline their operations
due to the loss of customer traffic and operational days. A shift from
physical operations to fast online business model started to take place.
The demand for delivery to your doorstep and ready-to-cook dishes has
created a new form of consumption habit during the post-Pandemic era.
As the spending habits change, the Company will continue to explore
the possibilities of these business models.
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Business Review and Outlook
(¥ROEREE

OVERALL BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

The Group’s restaurant network

In 2022, the Group opened a total of 86 new restaurants, including
41 Xiabuxiabu restaurants, 44 Coucou restaurants and 1 Shaohot
restaurant. In addition, the Group closed a total of 84 restaurants,
including 81 Xiabuxiabu restaurants and 3 Coucou restaurants in 2022
as some of the restaurants were in locations that were not able to
present the Xiabuxiabu “value for money” brand image and also due
to various commercial reasons, including the impact of the Pandemic.
In aggregate, the Group’s total number of restaurants in operation was
1,026 in 2022.

The table below sets forth the number of the Group’s Xiabuxiabu
restaurants (“#") by region as at the dates indicated:

BERXBRUBRA

REBENERES

RZZBEZ—F AEEHHKEG 186
EEE - B IRAFE 0 R I BE - 44F805%
FEBEMEZEZERE - N ARED
BREMEMNE B LBV IERE =4
B REEER UARAREERER
H(BEREYE) —E-_F#XK4%H
A HEMSIKIERE - 21581 IR ZE
ENMIEEZEEE N _T-—F K&
BEETEXERBHA1,0260 -

TREINARBPASEREES D
NI R R E ([4])

As at 31 December

R+=—H=+—H
2022 2021
—E=-= —ET-—%F

# % # %
Tier 1 cities"” 148" 301 37.6 324 38.5
Tier 2 cities? 24835 @ 292 36.4 302 35.9
Tier 3 cities and below® 3T R IA T 208 26.0 215 25.6
Total 4t 801 100.0 841 100.0

(1) Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen.
(2)  Except for the tier 1 cities mentioned above, all centrally administered

municipalities and most provincial capitals, plus Baoding, Changzhou,
Dalian, Langfang, Nantong, Ningbo, Qingdao, Wuxi, Xuzhou and Yantai.

(3)  All cities except for tier 1 and tier 2 cities mentioned in (1) and (2) above.

M dbxm - B BMFLEY -

2 BRIEMEBEm FEEETMER
BEWW - AMIRE - B KE
omBRER TR EH HKMNR
e e

(3) Bk £ XX (DANQ)PT 4R Je 267 39 T HM &)
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The table below sets forth the number of the Group’s Coucou  TFFE#HF|N IR B A &£ B % H[E 25

restaurants (“#") by region as at the dates indicated: REEEREHEE ([#])
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—TEC-—F T
# % # %
Tier 1 cities'” 143k 81 36.2 72 39.3
Tier 2 cities® 26 H? 126 56.2 99 54.1
Tier 3 cities® 3R 6 2.7 4 2.2
Outside mainland China® B A BE LA AN 11 4.9 8 4.4
Total 45t 224 100.0 183 100.0
(1) Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen. N dEm - B BMARIN -

(2)  Except for the tier 1 cities mentioned above, all centrally administered (2) BEMIGEmIN FIBEEETMEE

municipalities and most provincial capitals, plus Changzhou, Dalian, BT ANINEM - KE LR
Foshan, Dongguan, Jiaxing, Nanning, Nantong, Ningbo, Quanzhou, EonE mE -mEEE2M
Xiamen, Shaoxing, Suzhou, Wenzhou, Wuxi, Xuzhou, Zhuhai, Qingdao, BT BE MR &%
Taizhou and Zhongshan. Mg FE - AMAFRL -

(3)  Yangzhou, Putian, Shantou, Taizhou and Haikou. (3) HBM - FEH - WEE - FMAEA -

(4)  Hong Kong and Singapore. (4)  BEBEMFME -

14 EEEHEREE (hE) AR A7 XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.
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Key

operational information for the Group’s

restaurants

Set forth below are certain key performance indicators of the Group's

Xiabu

xiabu restaurants by region for the years indicated:

FRAEEERENTELEER

TREINRFARFEAEEIZ MRS D
BRI EEANE T EERRER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E-= —EF=-—
Net revenue (in RMB thousands) BRA(ANRETT)
Tier 1 cities!” 14w 1,085,489 1,649,622
Tier 2 cities” 28R T 723,009 1,183,808
Tier 3 cities and below® 38T R AT 445,279 669,177
Total et 2,253,777 3,502,607
Average spending per customer (RMB)Y FBERE A EE (AR®T)
Tier 1 cities'” 142w 67.9 65.6
Tier 2 cities” 28R 60.4 60.0
Tier 3 cities and below® 3T R AT 61.2 60.1
63.9 62.5
Seat turnover rate (x)® BER(E)"
Tier 1 cities"” 1489w 2.4 2.7
Tier 2 cities® 248 m? 1.9 2.2
Tier 3 cities and below® 3T M AT 1.6 1.9
2.0 2.3

Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen.

Except for the tier 1 cities mentioned above, all centrally administered
municipalities and most provincial capitals, plus Baoding, Changzhou,
Dalian, Langfang, Nantong, Ningbo, Qingdao, Wuxi, Xuzhou and Yantai.

All cities except for tier 1 and tier 2 cities mentioned in (1) and (2) above.

Calculated by dividing revenue generated from sales of Xiabuxiabu
restaurants for the year by total customer traffic of Xiabuxiabu restaurants
for the year.

Calculated by dividing total customer traffic by total Xiabuxiabu restaurant
operation days and average seat count of Xiabuxiabu restaurants during
the year, for the counterpart; calculated by dividing total customer traffic
by total Xiabuxiabu restaurant operation days and average table count of
Xiabuxiabu restaurants during the year, for the table part.

Ex - B BMFURI -
BEISmmIN MAEEEMNEE
BEMT - SMIRE BN KE RS
HomlmBEK TR EH HAME
e e

B b SCODFI(2)FT 3147 T2 243 35 1 S0 A
PRERT -

LA 4F A IR IR R 65 5 B 5 5 BT 1S U A BR
AFARERHEREBRTARENHE -

EiREs  WEARHEHERER
EREHRNERERLERBR T E
LBEHE  BURERD + LASE A I g P Fg
BB R A = R DA N9 R 09 0 A B A
BEXRERBRFHRUBGE -
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In 2022, revenue contribution from Xiabuxiabu and Coucou restaurants
continued to be the main source of revenue of the Group, and
contributed 95.1% as a percentage of the Group’s total revenue. Seat
turnover decreased as compared to that of 2021 primarily due to the
severely impacted customers’ dine-in services as a result of better social
distancing and restaurant suspension measures implemented by the
government to control the Pandemic. Therefore, customers were able
to gradually dine out at restaurants. In the meantime, the Group fully
utilized delivery channel to deliver fresh ingredients, cooked food and
etc. to generate sales and utilize new social media and e-commerce
platforms to create an online platform to recover some of the business
to minimize the loss from the disruption of operations in some of its
operations.

The table below sets forth same-store sales and sales growth of Group’s

Xiabuxiabu restaurants for the years indicated:

TECDF  RIFIRE EREEEREIKA
MEAEBRAEZRE HAEEE
W AR A DL A95.1% - R Z 15 HHE
BREREEATENERERRIERY
EEERBUREEE  BEIEZE
BREFE AUBEERR_T - —FK
KB RE NEBEFTDMAIINEER
BOETEERM AREMRSINEE
E iR RTEEYEREETE
BURETFELIRESSES  HHmE

MORFEEBNEREFERK -

TR BB PR G 7 £ (8 I I 0 I A
BOREHEEREEERE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t=-A=1+—HLEE

2022 2021
—EgE-= —EB-—F
Number of same-store* BEgE*
Tier 1 cities T 288
Tier 2 cities 28T 282
Tier 3 cities and below WM RIAT 190
Total F 760
Same-store sales (in RMB million) EEHER(AREEET)
Tier 1 cities TER T 897.5 1,157.1
Tier 2 cities 28R T 486.7 639.8
Tier 3 cities and below BBEW T RIAT 318.0 414.5
Total #st 1,702.2 2,211.4
Same-store sales growth (%) B /5 85 & 18 & (%)
Tier 1 cities TR (22.4)
Tier 2 cities 28T (23.9)
Tier 3 cities and below 3T EAT (23.3)
(23.0)
* Including restaurants that commenced operations prior to the beginning of ™ BIELL B F E A AR 10 & E RN =

the years under comparison and opened for the same number of days in

both 2021 and 2022.

T FRZIFZFMEFEHHA
NFPIEEBEHERNERE -
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Set forth below are certain key performance indicators of the Group's
Coucou restaurants by region for the years indicated:

TREHRN
MEZEENE T IEXRRIER

NEIREEASERIES D

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F

Net revenue (in RMB thousands) FUA (AE’#}:FT_B)

Tier 1 cities™ 1423 " 885,622 1,077,901

Tier 2 cities” 2/ T 1,100,036 1,136,541

Tier 3 cities® 3%?;% M 45,722 20,992

Outside mainland China® Fh B K B LA R 228,079 123,885

Total et 2,259,459 2,359,319

Average spending per customer (RMB)® FEZE A EB (AR T)”

Tier 1 cities'” 1w 151.1 145.6

Tier 2 cities"” 26 ? 137.0 129.7

Tier 3 cities" EFoS 134.3 129.6

Outside mainland China" m B K B A SN 305.1 276.7

150.9 140.6

Table turnover rate (X)© BHE(E)"°

Tier 1 cities"” 14 m" 2.1 2.8

Tier 2 cities” 26 1.8 2.4

Tier 3 cities® e 1.9 2.4

Outside mainland China® BB A B LA 9N 2.2 2.8

1.9 2.5

(1) Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen. M dbx - B BMFLEY -

(2)  Except for the tier 1 cities mentioned above, all centrally administered (2) BEMIBEmIIN IBEEETMEE
municipalities and most provincial capitals, plus Changzhou, Dalian, BRI OMEM A - BB B
Foshan, Dongguan, Jiaxing, Nanning, Nantong, Ningbo, Quanzhou, R0 -mE -mE-EEZM-
Xiamen, Shaoxing, Suzhou, Wenzhou, Wuxi, Xuzhou, Zhuhai, Qingdao, BT aHE }’%JH BN S R
Taizhou and Zhongshan. MKE B ||$D‘:F' e

(3)  Yangzhou, Putian, Shantou, Taizhou and Haikou. (3) B - EH - WE - FMFED -

(4)  Hong Kong and Singapore.

(5)  Calculated by dividing revenue generated from sales of Coucou restaurants
for the year by total customer traffic of Coucou restaurants for the year.

(6)  For the dine-in part, this is calculated by dividing total sales number by
total Coucou restaurant operation days and average table count of Coucou
restaurants during the year. For the delivery part, the delivery sales that
equals to the average dine-in customer spending is regarded as one dine-in

customer.

ER N -

FRBN CUNFNEZZEEHEHE
BUNZZEREXEORB L FHRM
SETE ARy - HERBEEFIHE
BRSHOINXEER  $RER
EREZNEG -
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In 2022, due to the lingering effects of the Pandemic, the number of
physical turnover at the restaurant level was greatly affected, with the
table turnover rate of Coucou restaurants decreasing from 2.5x in 2021
to 1.9x in 2022. Average spending per customer in 2022 was RMB150.9
compared to RMB140.6 for 2021, representing an increase of 7.3% as
compared with that in 2021, which was mainly attributable to more
group purchase business generated during the Pandemic.

The table below sets forth same-store sales and sales growth of Group’s
Coucou restaurants for the years indicated:

RIZEBEZZF  AREBEERFET
BEERERBAERAXEE FEE
EHBARERR T - —FH25E%RE
CECCEMINE e B FERA
EIEEAAREIS09T M_E-—4F
BAREI406TT - - —F1EN
73%  FERFFEHENEBEBRE
Fr ek o

TRBINARFEARERZERED
RIEHEBRHEERE

For the year ended 31 December

BEEt+t-A=1+-HLEE

2022 2021
—E=-= —EB=-—F
Number of same-store* EEHE*
Tier 1 cities 148/ 69
Tier 2 cities 28T 93
Tier 3 cities 3R T 3
Outside mainland China A B K i DA S 7
Total @t 172
Same-store sales (in RMB million) BEHEE(ARYEHEER)
Tier 1 cities 1R T 653.9 869.4
Tier 2 cities 28T 773.6 997.1
Tier 3 cities WM 10.5 18.5
Outside mainland China AR B K DA A 1233 116.9
Total @t 1,561.3 2,001.9
Same-store sales growth (%) [ & 65 & BE 1T R (%)
Tier 1 cities 14T (24.8)
Tier 2 cities 243 T (22.4)
Tier 3 cities MR T (43.2)
Outside mainland China A B A Bz A S 5.5
(22.0)
* Including restaurants that commenced operations prior to the beginning of * BB FERHBIBEBEELN

the years under comparison and opened for the same number of days in

both 2021 and 2022.

T FRZIFZIZFMEFEARA
PIEs ASMERMERE -
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OUTLOOK FOR 2023
Business Outlook

In 2022, the world gradually got rid of the impacts from the
outbreak of the Omicron. In December 2022, the PRC announced
the Omicron infections to be subject to measures against “Class B
Infectious Disease”. The Group’s business recovered significantly with
the uplifting of the control measures. The Group believed that the
consumption-boosting policy implemented by the Central government
will help to further promote the development of the catering business.
In the latest National People’s Congress, the government has announced
the following economic targets for 2023: 1) GDP growth of around 5%;
2) consumer price to increase by around 3%; 3) grain output to remain
at above 1.3 trillion jin; and 4) job openings of 12 million in urban
areas. The Group firmly believes that some of these targets will be
followed by policies implementation and will benefit various industries.
The Group’s main strategy will be to continue to emphasize the quality
and safety of food ingredients, improvise the dining experience,
promote the branding to synchronize with customers. The future
trend of catering industry will be dominated by a few big chains of
the industry and industry consolidation. These big chains will continue
to innovate and will shape the development of the catering industry.
The Group believes that the diversified platforms of the Company with
Xiabuxiabu, Coucou and Shaohot restaurants, together with online
delivery service and condiment products will form a strong synergy
effect and help the Group’s overall business to bloom vigorously.

Going into 2023, the Group will continue to implement the following
strategies:

—EC=ZERE

EBRE

RE-_—F HAEEEHHEZ R
HIGEFE 220229128 v B S 4
BREDERSERLERIZELE] B
Mo EZWMEE  AEBNEKDOH
RREABE - AEERAE PRBNEE
MNBEEBNRREE BN E—
TRAZHKEBER NEAOAKER
B BFREU T E =L ERE:
NEREERERERS %L 2EBE
BIEL3%  NEREERFTE1.38
BRI L RAOWEFIEHE1,2008 A
ThH e AEERE  BEBRRESEE
ZEBEMNEER  BBERFZITE -
AEBFERBGEUEEENRMEY
ke HNEREBBRREETFPHMS
fERRARE - BERENRRBEKHIH
TEEHEBREE  TEZNDRES -
ELEHEEBBEAT R IESERE
BRE o AKBEAR(E AR A e
EERCEEBEERR EINERE R
BEREKNZ TLFE & 5K R KW
FSE SREAEBEEEENED
R -

TECZFAKRESGRERTTI
RS
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Expansion strategy

Since 2022, faced with the changing market demands, the Group
adjusted the expansion plan of Xiabu brand in a timely manner and
applied big data technology and optimised the incentive policy to
motivate its development team. Despite the impact of the Pandemic and
the weakness of consumer power, the Group still managed to open
41 new restaurants, all of which delivered outstanding performance
at the preliminary operation stage whose seat turnover rate was more
than 3x over the industry performance level. In 2023, the Group will
continue to implement the same expansion strategy and focus more on
rental negotiations and use big data to help evaluate the new locations
to enhance the efficiencies of new restaurants. At the same time, the
Group plans to continue to increase the sales per unit area to shorten
the investment payback period of these restaurants. Empowering
with the refined management through the application of digital tools,
Xiabuxiabu has established its core competitiveness by re-embracing
the operation motto of offering value-for-money hotpot featured with
one-person one-pot set meal, especially reshaping the brand image
of value mini hotpot set meal in the Southern part of China. Prior to
2022, Xiabuxiabu restaurants are primarily located in the Northern part
of China, resulting in an unbalanced operational layout. In 2023, the
Group will focus on opening new restaurants in the southern market
such as the Eastern and Southern parts of China. In particular, Xiabu
brand plans to open not less than 100 restaurants in 2023, with not
less than 50% of the total new openings mainly located in Shanghai,
Guangdong, Shenzhen and other first-tier cities in the Southern part of
China. Benefitting from our forward-looking strategic business layout,
the Group took full advantage of the commercial real estate resources
to accommodate the Group's development plan, achieving synergetic
effects and creating a win-win situation.

Since 2022, Coucou started to implement “expansion into the East
and entering the South” strategy. In the next three years, Eastern and
Southern China will be the core expansion areas for the Group’s future
expansion, including the output of the operating personnel to support
the aggressive development in these regions. Coucou which has built
a brand on the foundations from the tier 1 cities, will continue to
ride on this strategy to enhance its branding power to penetrate into
not only tier 1 but tier 2 and gradually tier 3 cities as well. In 2022,
Coucou opened 16 restaurants in Eastern China and Shanghai as well
as 18 restaurants in Southern China. In 2023, Coucou will continue
to implement the “expansion into the East and entering the South”
strategy, further enhancing its business presence in Eastern China and
Southern China. Meanwhile, Coucou will further explore the markets in
Northern China, the Northwestern and Northeastern part of China to
extend its business antenna into these markets, and plans to open the
first Coucou restaurants in Jilin province and Qinghai province in 2023.

12 R R
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In September 2022, the Group launched a new brand “Shaohot” which
focuses on offering delicious roasted meat products. The Group plans
to open Shaohot restaurants in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen, Hangzhou
and other tier 1 cities in 2023.

Aside from expansion into Hong Kong in 2019, Coucou has showcased
its international expansion footprint by opening its first restaurant in
Singapore at the beginning of 2022. In 2023, the Group will continue to
expand its overseas business presence, and has opened its first overseas
Xiabuxiabu restaurant in Singapore in January 2023. Looking ahead,
the Group also plans to open Xiabuxiabu restaurants and Coucou
restaurants in Hong Kong and Taiwan, and at the same time proactively
prepares to enter into the Malaysia market. In order to export
tailor-made strategies and products catering to the preference, flavour
and consumption behavior of the customers of various overseas markets,
the Group has established the International Business Department on
1 January 2023 which will uphold the Group’s vision and goal of
international expansion and push forward the internationalization
strategy of our Xiabuxiabu brand and Coucou brand.

Branding strategy

The Group has redesigned its branding strategy to focus on certain
target customer group, focusing on the major group of consumers
in the post-Pandemic days. The Group strives to understand their
preferences and spending habits in order to deploy appropriate and
effective branding, marketing and promotional strategies to attractive
these target customers. The rebranding Xiabuxiabu's logo represents a
more vibrant, upscale, fashionable and comfortable image to connect
the brand with the younger customers so that the customers would
associate dining at restaurants as a place where they can enjoy a
“value for money” experience at a comfortable and fashionable
environment. As time changes, consumers started to value brand
image and marketing of restaurants, and the Group sees the need to
put more efforts into promotion of the Xiabuxiabu brand. The Group
plans to refine its membership system and rapidly develop membership
digital marketing by converting customers to new members through
various media channels, and enhancing the loyalty of old customers and
membership re-subscription through member deposits and members’
day. The Group will focus on the “local lifestyle” service of TikTok
to establish a marketing matrix combining official livestreaming with
celebrity short-video promotion, so as to create our online marketing
presence. The Group will continue to reinvigorate the Xiabuxiabu brand
to increase customer loyalty and to live up to the motto of “value for
money”. The Group is confident that this will be a successful campaign
to get the new brand image through to its customers.
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In 2023, Coucou will continue to strengthen its branding power and
target the “new middle class” by promoting the concept of “affordable
luxury gatherings”, to design menu items and create pricing and
promotional strategies targetting the consumption habits and dietary
preferences of consumers in different cities to create successful
marketing and promotional campaign, in turn building a stronger brand
image and reputation to build a stronger bond with its customers. The
alignment of the new membership program later this year will help to
increase the customer flow between the Group and will be able to drive
through traffic and to increase the restaurant’s operating profit.

In 2023, Shaohot is committed to improving the customers’
comprehensive dining experience at the restaurants covering from
ordering to interactive engagement through continuous restaurant
optimisation, with an aim to build an excellent brand recognition
and create a more sophisticated brand image among the consumers.
Focusing on the middle and high-end consumer groups, and upholding
the concept of “roasted meat + beverage and tea + joy”, Shaohot
promotes restaurant dining experience to a wider range of customer
groups through various media means including offline business
media, Tiktok, Dianping and other localised lifestyle media, aiming to
boost customer traffic. In addition, through customer flowing among
membership systems of the Group and reference by private fans of
new restaurants, Shaohot will build up its fan base and increase brand
exposure to a wider range of potential customers, with an aim to
broaden future revenue stream of the restaurants.

Product strategy

The Group will continue to take advantage of its strong supply chain
network in different regions, add products of different price range,
to offer products that can satisfy the various needs of its consumers,
especially the younger generation. With a total of over 1,000 Xiabuxiabu
and Coucou restaurants, the Group is expected to continue to benefit
from the economies of scale and take advantage of its nationwide
restaurant network.

In 2023, Xiabuxiabu restaurant will make continuous innovations to
upgrade and enrich its product offering while continuing to serve
the classic delicacy of Xiabu brand. At the beginning of the year,
upholding the core strategy of promotion of “popular dishes (—F4L) ",
Xiabuxiabu launched a product line series including appetite-appeasing
sweet and spicy Korean kimchi hotpot, Xiabu selected fresh-red Sirloin,
hand-made cheese shrimp ball as well as sweet and sour cherry jasmine
milk tea, with an aim to cater to consumer demand during the Spring
Festival with more expansive menu.
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In addition, the Group will also launch afternoon tea and nighttime
snack services in mid 2023 as a complementary business during the
non-peak hours with low table turnover rate. The Group will gradually
launch the afternoon tea combo featuring N+1 tea beverage and
refreshment, the nighttime snack series featuring leisure braised dishes
as well as fried and roasted skewers, and the “Xiabu self-heating
hotpot series” under the take-away delivery business for camping and
picnic scenarios, offering customers with various consumption scenario
options available through various channels at any time. The Group
will continue to take advantage of its strong supply chain network in
different regions, add products of different price range, and establish a
rational product mix so as to satisfy the various needs of its consumers,
especially the younger generation.

New soup bases launched by Coucou in September 2022 such as “white
clam mactra with other seafood” and “Thai-style tom yum gong” were
very well received by the customers once they were put on the market
and became another signature product of Coucou following the “free
flow of duck blood and tofu” dish, which are very popular among
customers. New dishes “salted fried chicken” and “popcorn shrimp”
launched in April also further enriched the snack offering of Coucou.
New tea beverages such as “red robe tea with raw coconut” and “red
robe tea with coconut coffee” have become very popular products. On
the overseas market front, recognising the difference in the preference
of customers at home and abroad, Coucou proactively carried out
surveys on the flavour of local customers in Singapore, and launched
new dishes “Japanese pork” and “pork assortment” in September
which, to a great extent, cater to the flavour and preference of local
customers in Singapore. In 2023, Coucou will continue to launch more
popular products. Going forward, the Group’s development team will
continue to combine different dietary preferences of different regions
and local dining culture to develop nutritious signature products that
are healthy, aesthetically pleasing and delicious to the customers.

The Group will also take steps to further develop delivery products to
ensure better synergy with dine-in business. In the last two years when
Pandemic was affecting the restaurants operations, online delivery
business has been helping to recover some of the sales loss. In 2022,
the sales contribution from delivery business gradually increased to
approximately 15% of Xiabuxiabu total revenue. In 2023, the Group will
continue to roll out new product range such as “curry seafood” soup
base, “ma-la spicy luncheon meat and fresh shrimp” soup base, and
also launch seasonal soup base such as “lamb spine favored” soup base
throughout different seasons of the year.
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New model strategy

In 2023, the Group is keen to provide a value for money menu back
to the market by focusing on attracting the younger generation, it will
go further to explore the core competitiveness and value of promoting
individual pots by bringing back the “value for money” set back to
the customers. After the Pandemic, many started to be more aware
of eating healthy and hygienically, the Group believes individual pot is
more than dining alone, it is a form of self-expression and a statement
self-identity. Customers can enjoy their favorite soup base while sharing
the ingredients with others in a safe and hygienic manner, which is
highly in line with the current popular culture of respecting people’s
individuality.

In order to convey such message, the Group continued to uphold
the “value for money” model in its restaurants. This model features
an affordable, simple, individualistic model with price range around
RMB50-60 which is affordable amongst the young generation,
combining with the new restaurant design, new set menu, utensils
and table settings, the Group believes that customers will enjoy and
appreciate a more well-rounded dining experience. In 2022, Xiabu
brand continued to optimise new restaurant model by testing a
new restaurant model of smaller operating area with cost-efficient
investment in Shanghai and other cities, which achieved the established
target of higher sales per unit area and seat turnover rate, laying
a replicable practice foundation for a business model of “smaller
operating area with higher customer turnover rate”. In 2023, the
Group will attach greater emphasis to investment efficiency in selecting
restaurant model, assess site-selection decision through scientific and
refined analysis with the application of intelligent site-selection system,
and optimise the financial model of the restaurant with the support
of relevant information. Looking forward, while accelerating the
replication of smaller-scale restaurant model, Xiabu brand will continue
to cooperate with more up-and-coming designers to launch brand-new
restaurant style with more avant-garde design. At the same time, the
latest Singapore restaurant model will also be introduced into Mainland
China for the first time in 2023 to further advance the “expansion into
the East and entering the South” strategy of Xiabu Group, with an aim
to attract more young stylish customers and further improve the brand
position and influence.
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The Group understands that good ambience is critical to creating a
pleasant dining experience and is in the process of testing different
design models. That is the very reason why Coucou is designed to have
a more up-scale, elegant style and incorporated with a unique teahouse
model differentiating Coucou from other operations. In 2023, based
on its existing elegant and up-scale Chinese design style, Coucou will
introduce more diverse design concept. Nanjing IFC restaurant which
is scheduled to open in April 2023 will first integrate the concept of
Nanjing Brocade, intangible cultural heritage of Nanjing, into its design
style, while Hangzhou Hubin Yintai restaurant which is expected to
complete renovation work in early April 2023 incorporates the Zen
element into its design concept, with an aim to offer its customers with
more valuable consumption experience by creating a more comfortable
dining environment and providing better services. In addition, Coucou
is also exploring the profitability model of Coucou restaurants in the
lower-tier markets with the further implementation of its expansion
strategy into tier 2 and 3 cities, and will launch the “asset-light model”
projects in 2023, which aims to explore more cost-efficient decoration
investment option while preserving its existing design style and
presentation effect, and is implemented in certain new restaurant in tier
2 and 3 cities, showcasing the profitability of new restaurants in the
low-tier markets.

Procurement strategy

In addition to upgrading the hardware of the restaurants, the Group
has also started to utilize its upstream supply chain to better control the
quality of its ingredients and also to better mitigate its food cost. Over
the past few years, the Group has been able to efficiently control its
cost by cooperating with its upstream suppliers. The Group realizes that
quality is the first and foremost frontier that it must protect thereby
cautiously ensures that the suppliers that are chosen are all carefully
audited and selected. The Group also acquired an upstream processing
plant, Xilin Gol League Yishun halal meat Co., Ltd. processing plant in
Inner-Mongolia Ximeng where the Group can better control the quality
and cost of the lamb, especially when Inner-Mongolia had adapted a
policy to raise more beef than lamb in the past few years leading to less
lamb supplies available as a result increasing the cost of lamb products.
By investing into such upstream operations, the Group is in a better
position to leverage its cost and delivers a better gross profit margin.
Going forward, this processing plant will not only help the Company
to process the products it needs but can also help to process meat for
external parties whereby generating additional revenue for the Group.
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Talent development strategy

In 2022, the Group made strenuous efforts to retain and cultivate
talents, and selected and trained outstanding restaurant management
personnel from Tianjin and the Northeastern market to provide stable
talent supply for restaurants located in the Southern part of China,
providing strong support for the implementation of “expansion into
the East and entering the South” strategy of the Group. With a total
of 34 new restaurants opened in January 2023 across the country,
the Group officially launched its North-South Talent Supply Scheme,
under which a great number of operation talents have been assigned
to the new restaurants in Eastern and Southern China, with a total of
over 50 restaurant managers and operation managers as well as 134
outstanding grass-root staff assigned to these restaurants. The Group
will continue to recruit and train 1,000 talents to support the operation
of restaurants in the newly-explored provinces and cities.

The Company continued to optimise employee structure, including the
implementation of the management trainee programme. In 2023, the
Group’s management trainee programme will have 800 participants,
which will provide stable supply of outstanding talents for our future
restaurant operation and business development. With university students
returning to schools after the Pandemic ended, the Company will also
step up efforts to recruit university students for part-time jobs as they
generally receive better education and present a young and energetic
image. By increasing the proportion of university students among our
part-time staff, it will help to improve our company image and optimise
customer experience.

Stable supply of talented restaurant staff is key to support the Group's
restaurants operations and continuous expansion. The Group has
reviewed its talent strategy and taken an initiation to undertake
some changes. The Group continued to implement the new incentive
mechanism where the Group undertook a profit sharing policy with
the operations team. Different from the past where the teams were
primarily evaluated based on the turnover they achieved, now the key
performance indicator (KPI) also includes the operational profit that the
team delivers as the Group wants the team to take up more leadership
into their operations and not just simply chasing turnover. The Group
will continue to evaluate the results of this mechanism and continue
to look for ways to better improvise its incentive mechanism to reward
its team better so they can continue to level up their performance and
deliver better operational efficiency.
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In the “new catering” era, the integration of online and offline
operations has become a new trend. With the outbreak of the
Pandemic, the need to provide contactless service is becoming more
important. Therefore, the Group has started to introduce bar code
scanning system to minimize the number of contacts to avoid the
spreading of Pandemic by and to its staff. This system allows customer
to place order via their own mobile device to avoid the possibility of
wrong orders and customer can also make payment via the application
("App"”) therefore creating a safer environment and higher efficiency
at the operational level. Robotics are introduced to help serve the
dishes to customers to minimize human contacts and enhance serving
accuracy. Going forward, the Group will also work with different online
portals to seek and maximize the use of big data to further understand
its customer’s spending behavior and to seek ways to improvise its
operations and enhance efficiency. The Group will also work with
marketing team to simplify the company’s App whereby one App is
able to allow customers to order online, gain spending points, utilize
points to convert prizes, this integration will provide a better experience
and convenience for its loyal customers. Aside from enhancing the
user experience, the Group is also upgrading the internal system by
launching WMS supply chain system whereby the system is capable of
better tracking the flow of ingredients, cost tracking, to increase stock
turnover rate, minimize data input error, and lower management cost.
The Group believes that investing into IT is beneficial to the Group's
long term well-being and it is a worthwhile investment.

Marketing strategy

The Group will continue to enhance its brand image by launching a
series of online and offline marketing campaigns to enhance its brand
awareness, collaborating with “KOL" to utilize their individual character
to attract its customers. The Group’s customer relationship management
will continue to focuses on delivery related marketing activities to
further enhance brand stickiness and customer loyalty. The Group also
plans to work with IT team to mobilize its huge customer traffic, and to
take advantage of its large customer base and work with well-known
brands to launch joint promotion programs to gain more traction from
customers. In 2022, the Group merged the two brands membership
card into one whereby previously the membership was solely for each
brand individually. After the change, a customer will only need to have
a membership card but allow them to enjoy different privilege at both
Xiabuxiabu and Coucou restaurants at the same time without having to
carry two different brands membership cards with them, creating more
flexibility and convenience for our loyal members.
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Retail strategy

Since the outbreak of Pandemic, people may have to stay at home and
“stay at home"” economy has become a new living style nowadays and
the need to have semi-finished products to help people staying at home
to prepare a meal more conveniently is getting popular. In order to
ride on this opportunity, the Group has launched condiment products
such as hotpot soup base, dipping sauce and cooking sauce in the past
few years which are gradually getting market recognition and brand
awareness. In 2023, condiment company will further introduce frozen
food products and convenience food products into this category. The
Group believes this segment has a strong potential market opportunity
through the establishment of its non-wholly owned subsidiary,
Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Co., Limited (Mg (FFE) B @mAR A F]).
The Group is venturing into the condiment product business, which
supplements and complements the Group’s principal catering service
business and will further strengthen the brand of the Group. Sales of
condiments business contributed RMB142.6 million in 2022, accounting
for around 3.0% of total sales. Going forward, the Group will continue
to expand this segment to increase the number of sales channels and
develop new products to expand the market share.
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The following table is a summary of the Group’s consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income with line items in
absolute amounts and as percentages of the Group’s total revenue for
the years indicated, together with the change (expressed in percentages)
from 2021 to 2022:

TREINAEENGEBEEREMEE
WARBME  EREJFMRFEEEAIE
ENERSERGAEBLEKANT S
b BRZEZ—FE_T__FHNE
B(LLED IR :

Year ended 31 December Year-
BE+t-A=1T-HLEE on-year
2022 2021 change
=%== —FoF AL
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % %
AR TR ARETT
Consolidated Statement of FRERBERHMEE
Profit or Loss and Other HAX
Comprehensive Income
Revenue WA 4,724,834 100.0 6,147,262 100.0 (23.1)
Other income H A Y A 120,551 2.6 103,767 1.7 16.2
Raw materials and BT R A R R R
consumables used (1,798,872) (38.1) (2,341,334) (38.1) (23.2)
Staff costs B IR (1,553,543) (32.9) (1,829,717) (29.8) (15.1)
Property rentals and related #¥HEE X
expenses HER X (251,793) (53)  (298,069) 4.8) (15.5)
Utilities expenses NAEXEAR (177,465) (3.8) (201,567) (3.3) (12.0)
Depreciation and MEREH
amortisation (963,551) (20.4) (1,052,911) (17.1) (8.5)
Other expenses HAth 5 2 (356,004) (7.5) (441,814) (7.2) (19.4)
Other gains and losses H b Y 25 | B 18 (16,498) (0.3) (206,708) (3.4) (92.0)
Finance costs B BB R (78,594) (1.7) (92,562) (1.5) (15.1)
Loss before tax BAIEE (350,935) (7.4) (213,653) (3.5) 64.3
Income tax benefit (expense) PTSHHE % (Fx%) 19,747 0.4 (69,480) (1.1) (128.4)
Loss for the year FREE (331,188) (7.0) (283,133) (4.6) 17.0
Total comprehensive FR2ERXAE
expense for the year (331,188) (7.0) (283,133) (4.6) 17.0
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Year ended 31 December Year-
BE+-_A=+t—-HILEE on-year
2022 2021 change
=== —EIF AL 2
RMB'000 % RMB’000 % %
ARBTR AREETF T
(Loss) profit for the year AT ALEMEFR
attributable to: (B538) A :
Owners of the Company RRARERA (353,052) (7.5) (293,212) (4.8) 20.4
Non-controlling interest IR = 21,864 0.5 10,079 0.2 116.9
(331,188) (7.0) (283,133) (4.6) 17.0
Total comprehensive BUTALTEEZE
(expense) income (B832) LA
attributable to: R
Owners of the Company AN Z N (353,052) (7.5) (293,212) (4.8) 20.4
Non-controlling interest IR 21,864 0.5 10,079 0.2 116.9
(331,188) (7.0) (283,133) (4.6) 17.0
Loss per share BRER
— basic — HK
(RMB cents per share) (BRARES) (33.42) (27.28)
— diluted — #E
(RMB cents per share) (BRARED) (33.42) (27.28)
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Revenue

The Group's revenue decreased by 23.1% from RMB6,147.3 million in
2021 to RMB4,724.8 million in 2022, primarily due to the the impact
of the Pandemic which affected the number of operational days of our
restaurants, for Xiabuxiabu the affected days was around 178,219 days
and 8,574 days for Coucou. The revenue generated from Xiabuxiabu
decreased by 35.1% from RMB3,524.7 million in 2021 to RMB2,285.8
million in 2022. Again, as a result of the on-going Pandemic, the
revenue contributed by Coucou decreased by 6.3% from RMB2,353.7
million in 2021 to RMB2,205.8 million in 2022. The Company expanded
the sales channels for condiment products and launched new products
to increase the market shares, and meanwhile the Pandemic control
measures caused residents to stay at home and the sales revenue
of condiment products increased from RMB126.2 million in 2021 to
RMB142.6 million in 2022. The Group opened 41 new Xiabuxiabu
restaurants, 44 new Coucou restaurants and one Shaohot restaurant
throughout China in 2022 to enhance its restaurant network.

Other income

The Group's other income increased by 16.2% from RMB103.8 million
in 2021 to RMB120.6 million in 2022, primarily due to an increase in
income from additional deduction item of value-added tax granted by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC of RMB45.2 million.

Raw materials and consumables used

The Group’s raw materials and consumables costs decreased by 23.2%
from RMB2,341.3 million in 2021 to RMB1,798.9 million in 2022
primarily as a result of decrease in customer traffic and in sales at the
restaurants. In view the upward pressure on commodity procurement
costs due to the Pandemic, the purchasing staff of the Group gives
full play to their professional sourcing ability and bargaining power,
and takes active measures to control the shelf life of food, thus as
a percentage of the Group’s revenue, the cost of raw materials and
consumables in 2022 was in line with 38.1% in 2021.

Staff costs

The Group's staff costs decreased by 15.1% from RMB1,829.7 million in
2021 to RMB1,553.5 million in 2022, while the number of the Group's
employees decreased from 28,536 as at 31 December 2021 to 27,059
in 2022. As a percentage of the Group's revenue, the Group's staff
costs increased from 29.8% in 2021 to 32.9% in 2022, primarily due
to the decrease in revenue as a result of the Pandemic, resulting in an
increase in the proportion of staff costs to the revenue.
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Property rentals and related expenses

The Group’s property rentals and related expenses decreased by 15.5%
from RMB298.1 million in 2021 to RMB251.8 million in 2022, mainly
attributable to (i) rental exemption and reduction received as a result of
the Group’s negotiation with lessor based on its own brand advantages;
and (i) variable lease payments decreased as revenue of restaurants
were affected due to Pandemic control measures being imposed. As a
percentage of the Group’s revenue, the Group’s property rentals and
related expenses increased from 4.8% in 2021 to 5.3% in 2022 due to
decrease in revenue in 2022.

Utilities expenses

The Group's utilities expenses decreased by 12.0% from RMB201.6
million in 2021 to RMB177.5 million in 2022 due to the disrupted
operational days of the Group’s restaurants as a result of the Pandemic.
As a percentage of the Group’s revenue, utilities expenses increased
from 3.3% in 2021 to 3.8% in 2022.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group’s depreciation and amortisation decreased by 8.5% from
RMB1,052.9 million in 2021 to RMB963.6 million in 2022, primarily due
to the fact that the number of Xiabuxiabu restaurants dropped from
841 in 2021 to 801 in 2022. As percentage of revenue, depreciation
and amortisation increased from 17.1% in 2021 to 20.4% in 2022.

Other expenses

The Group’s other expenses decreased by 19.4% from RMB441.8
million in 2021 to RMB356.0 million in 2022. As a percentage of the
Group's revenue, the Group’s other expenses increased from 7.2% in
2021 to 7.5% in 2022. Thanks to the Group's efforts in refined control
and management of operational costs, the Group recorded a decrease
in professional service fees, marketing expenses and administrative
expenses for the year. However, revenue decreased as a result of the
Pandemic, resulting in an increase in the proportion of such expenses to
the revenue as compared with the previous year.
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Other gains and losses

The Group recorded other net losses of RMB16.5 million in 2022,
as compared to other net losses of RMB206.7 million in 2021,
representing a decrease of RMB190.2 million as compared with the
previous year, mainly due to the following reasons: (1) in 2021, due
to the management’s strategic decision to permanently close 229
under-performing restaurants, the Group incurred significant loss on
closure of restaurants amounting to RMB103.7 million, while in 2022
the amount recorded is only RMB1.4 million; (2) impairment loss on
assets decreased from RMB150.5 million in 2021 to RMB58.4 million in
2022 (see Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements).

Finance costs

The Group recorded finance costs of RMB78.6 million in 2022, mainly
derived from interest on lease liabilities of RMB73.5 million.

Loss before tax

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s losses increased from
RMB213.7 million in 2021 to a loss of RMB350.9 million in 2022.

Income tax benefit (expense)

The Group’s income tax credit in 2022 amounted to RMB19.7 million
as compared to income tax expenses of RMB69.5 million in 2021,
primarily due to the decrease in the current income tax expense and the
deferred tax asset being recognised in relation to unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences for some subsidiaries of the Group
during the year.

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, the Group's
loss for the year attribute to owners of the Company increased from
RMB293.2 million in 2021 to a loss of RMB353.1 million in 2022.
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Liquidity and capital resources

In 2022, the Group financed its operations primarily through cash from
the Group’s operations and bank borrowings. The Group intends to
finance its expansion and business operations by internal resources and
through organic and sustainable growth.

Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of RMB300.7 million, which primarily consisted of cash on hand and
demand deposits and which were mainly denominated in Renminbi (as
to 85.2%), U.S. dollars (as to 0.4%), Hong Kong dollars (as to 9.4%),
Taiwan New dollars (as to 3.8%) and Singapore dollars (as to 1.2%).
The balance of cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year
decreased by approximately RMB619.8 million as compared with that of
RMB920.5 million as at the end of last year, which was mainly because
that (1) cash flow from operating activities for the year decreased by
approximately RMB166.9 million as compared with that of the previous
year as a result of the Pandemic to RMB881.6 million; (2) a portion of
cash was invested in wealth management products at the end of 2022
as the Group selects financial products based on their interest rates
instead of only focusing on financial products with the maturity date at
the end of the year since 2022, and the balance of financial products as
at the end of the year was RMB390.2 million (2021: nil); (3) the Group
paid RMB89.5 million for the purchase of its ordinary shares during the
year which increased by RMB77.2 million as compared to last year.

In view of the Group’s currency mix, the Group currently does not
use any derivative contracts to hedge against the Group’s exposure
to currency risk. The Group’s management manages the currency risk
by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and
considering hedging significant foreign currency exposure should such
need arise.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had financial assets at FVTPL which
amounted to RMB390.2 million in aggregate, which mainly represented
financial products (the “Financial Products”) issued by Bank of Inner
Mongolia Co., Ltd. and Fubon Bank (China) Co., Ltd. (collectively,
the “Banks”) and Huatai Securities Co., Ltd., Huaan Securities Co.,
Ltd., and Dongzheng Ronghui Securities Asset Management Co., Ltd.
(collectively, the “Investment Fund Companies”). Such products are
investments with no predetermined or guaranteed return and are not
principal protected, with an expected return rate ranging from 3.8%
to 4.8% per annum. In particular, one of the financial product of
RMB100.0 million was classified as non-current assets due to its maturity
date at 4 January 2024. The sum realized from the Financial Products
was recorded as gain from changes in fair value of financial assets
designated as financial assets at FVTPL and amounted to approximately
RMB16.3 million for 2022.
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The Group generally subscribed for the financial products on a revolving
basis, which means that the Group would subscribe for additional
financial products when the terms of certain financial products
previously subscribed for by the Company expired. Subscriptions of
financial products were made for treasury management purpose to
maximize the return on the unutilized funds of the Group after taking
into account, among others, the level of risk, return on investment,
liquidity and the term to maturity. Generally, the Group had in the past
selected short-term financial products issued by reputable commercial
banks and investment fund companies that had relatively low associated
risk. Prior to making an investment, the Group had also ensured that
there remains sufficient working capital for the Group’s business needs,
operating activities and capital expenditures even after making the
investments in such financial products. Although the financial products
were marketed as wealth management products which were not
principal protected nor with pre-determined or guaranteed return, the
underlying investments were in line with the internal risk management,
cash management and investment policies of the Group as the Company
had, in the past, totally recovered the principal and received the
expected returns upon the redemption or maturity of similar financial
products. In addition, the financial products were with a relatively short
term of maturity, and were considered akin to placing deposits with
banks whilst enabling the Group to earn an attractive rate of return.
However, in accordance with the relevant accounting standards, the
financial products are accounted for as financial assets at FVTPL.

In view of an upside of earning a more attractive return than current
saving or fixed deposit rate under the low interest rate trend, as well as
a relatively short term of maturity of the Financial Products, the directors
of the Company (the “Directors”) are of the view that the Financial
Products pose little risk to the Group and the terms and conditions of
each of the subscriptions are fair and reasonable and are in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

There was no single financial product in the Group’s investment
portfolio that has a carrying amount that account for more than 5% of
the Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2022.

The Group purchased additional short-term investment products with
an aggregate principal amount of RMB330 million from 1 January 2023
up to the date of this annual report which remained outstanding as at
the date of this annual report. None of these subscriptions, individually
or collectively when aggregation is required constitute a disclosable
transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

In addition, as at 31 December 2021, the Group had financial assets
at FVTPL which amounted to RMB15.8 million in aggregate, mainly
representing the Group’s right and obligation in the Trust that constitute
a derivative which is based on the stock price of the Company. The
Trust was terminated in accordance with the Trust Agreement during
the year.

AEE-—RBERRABECMEM  WAE
EeRNAEETARABNETERER
IHERBEIERER - TREDR
BERDRMEEEBENMEL  UE
BAKERDRESOHBNRKNL &
FEZE(EHRER) AkKE  RED
HoRBUERIBYPR - —RMEF A
SENEHERBERIFNBERRITER
BESAAMBTHBRRAESED
MHERER-  EFHKREN  ~&HE
NTHEAEREFECBERKRDEESSR
REEESUMBAREEY KEA
PLREARXNEZFT R -BESHE
fn 1E /3 SE IR AR K B 38 JE Sk AR 78 [0 ¥R O 38
MEMBEE BERARFBEREU
TREMBRIIBROBHBED A S
RESERKS  HERENEAKE
MASMERER  ReEEMIRERR -
AN - 2 B E G e BIRR A EE - BUR
AERITIF R - A< 5 8 75 A B EX
AR AT RIBEEBE S ER
TREMARSBERBSRATVEE
HEREE

ENeRERABRERSEY TR
BMBELSBE T RFEE R TERFK
MEFEEOER - I EHRBHERE -
ARAEE((EE]) A/AKE S A
EmAEGRERR  BERBEENK
AEGHBATEE IRHaARRE R
HEROWEEN &

AEBREEATPMERAAEGNASEE
HE-_ZT-_—_F=-+—HMNBEEEN%
WEREBEBSHMER -

AEBER-_T_=5—A—HRAEXR
FHONHPHEBEASHEBEAREII0
BETHEIEHKREER ARASE
HBAMDARKREEY - ZEREEEM
EERNIKRARHAERFABBK LT
RAIFVERTIWNATRERS -

S0 RZFZ—F+=ZA=+—8"
AEEFEEBBEZEREAFTETFENS
MEEASHEARBISSAEB T &4
AEBREENEFREREX —HE
RARRBRENITETR  AFE &
SHEREEEHBERL -

2022 ANNUAL REPORT —Z = —#F#3 35



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRR DM

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had short term bank borrowings of
RMB58.7 million that were made in Renminbi at a fixed interest rate of
3.50% to 4.35% and are expected to mature within 1 year.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s gearing ratio was 3.9%. Gearing
ratio was calculated by dividing bank and other borrowings by total
equity as at the same date and multiply by 100%.

Capital expenditures

The Group made payment for the capital expenditures of RMB343.9
million in 2022 for new restaurant opening, refurbishment of existing
restaurants and purchase of new equipment. In 2021, the Group's
capital expenditures was RMB439.0 million. The Group’s capital
expenditure in 2022 was funded primarily by cash generated from its
operations. In 2022, the Group opened a total of 86 new restaurants.
As at 31 December 2022, the Company did not have other charge over
its assets apart from the charge over its fixed assets with a net carrying
amount of RMB14.3 million to secure short-term loans.

Contingent liabilities and guarantees

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant
unrecorded contingent liabilities, guarantees or any litigation against
the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did
not conduct any material investments, acquisitions or disposals. The
Group has no specific plan for major investment or acquisition for major
capital assets or other businesses in accordance with the Listing Rules.
However, the Group will continue to identify new opportunities for
business development.

B
BE_Z-_—_F#+-A=+—8 ' &&
BEGHRITERARBSSTIHEE T
B AAREER W IZETEF F3.50%5)
4.35%5F 8 BRIV EREIE -

EERMELER

BHEZZ-_ZF+=-A=+—H &&
EAEABILEA39%  AEAGBLE
TR E =% H MR &ﬁ@ﬁ*@u
MR BEAE IR IA100% 1 &

BRI X

RZZEZZF AEERFTHREE -
REEEXERBENREMIHER
Y ARMBIMBIEE L N _T = —
FAEBNEAAYL AARKAL39.08
BT AEER-_ZT-__FHNELARAX
FEUHKEZHMEREBENES -
ZEZF AEEA LFFAKRSHEE
F RZE_ZF+ZHA=+—H" 'K

NEBEEEFELRI4IEETEESE
ERFRIECHERERDN  EHAE
HEEBRE -

KRB BRIER
R-ZB-—f+-A=+—8 K%M

WEERMRABRNERKABE - R
HEHEAREBHERFLR - RBE—F

T+ A=+—HLEFER K&
I EETEREARE  WESHE -
BEEMHRE AREBWESKIKEK
WEEREAREESN LM EBAELESR
BloRM AEEBEEVEEBER
TR o

36  REREERERE (hE) ZRER AT XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.



| .|
Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN
Employee and remuneration policies EE R FMEBUR
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 27,059 employees. RZE-__F+_-_A=+—8 XEEH
In particular, 294 employees worked at the Group’s food processing HAE27,059FRE  EH294FZRE R

facilities, 2,764 were responsible for restaurant management, 22,901
were restaurant staff and 1,100 were administrative staff.

The Group offers competitive wages and other benefits to the Group’s
restaurant employees to manage employee attrition. The Group also
offers profit sharing in the form of discretionary performance bonus as
further incentive to the Group's restaurant staff if a specific restaurant
target is achieved. The Group’s staff costs include all salaries and
benefits payable to all the Group’s employees and staff, including the
Group’s executive Directors, headquarters staff and food processing
facilities staff.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total staff costs of the
Group (including salaries, bonuses, social insurances, provident funds
and share incentive schemes) amounted to RMB1,553.5 million,
representing approximately 32.9% of the total revenue of the Group.

The Company has adopted the pre-IPO share incentive plan and the
restricted share unit scheme (the “RSU Scheme”). Computershare
Hong Kong Trustees Limited has been appointed as the trustee for the
administration of the RSU Scheme pursuant to the rules of the RSU
Scheme (the “RSU Trustee”). During the year ended 31 December
2022, the RSU Trustee purchased an aggregate of 29,577,421 shares at
a total cash consideration of approximately HK$120.2 million from the
market.

Further details of the pre-IPO share incentive plan and the RSU Scheme,
together with, among others, the details of the options granted under
the pre-IPO share incentive plan and the restricted share units granted
under the RSU Scheme, will be set out in the section headed "Directors’
Report — Share Incentives” in this annual report.

Final Dividend

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.028
per share, amounting to approximately a total of RMB30.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “2022 Final Dividend”). The
2022 Final Dividend is intended to be paid out of the Company’s share
premium account and is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM").
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DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi (& 3 #), aged 59, is the Chairman of the Board,
an executive Director and the chief executive officer. He was appointed
as chairman and executive Director on 14 May 2008 and appointed
as chief executive officer on 20 May 2021. He is primarily responsible
for formulating overall development strategies and business plans, and
managing overall operation of our Group. Mr. Ho is also a director
of each of the subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Ho has over 20 years of
experiences in the food and beverage industry. Mr. Ho founded our
business in 1998 and continues to oversee the management of our
operations and business. He established our first restaurant in Beijing
in 1999 and has guided our operations and business in adhering to
quality and innovation in our operations since our establishment.
Mr. Ho was awarded the “Most Influential Entrepreneur of Food and
Beverage Industry in China in 2015 2015 EHhHERFATE N1
2 R)" and the “"Most Influential Entrepreneur of Hotpot Industry in
China in 2015 (2015 FEHBEANMBITEKAZE NEEKR)" by China
Cuisine Association (Bl Z£F1<). Mr. Ho also serves as a director
of the Eighth Session of the Board of Directors of Beijing Overseas
Friendship Association and has been the Vice Chairman of the Beijing
Association of Taiwanese-Invested Enterprises. Mr. Ho is the husband
of Ms. Chen Su-Yin, our non-executive Director. Mr. Ho is also a
substantial shareholder (within the meaning of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance) of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Chen Su-Yin (BR&E %), aged 59, is a non-executive Director. She
was appointed to our Board on 12 December 2012 and is primarily
responsible for providing strategic advices and guidance on the business
development of our Group. Ms. Chen is also a director of each of the
subsidiaries of our Group. Ms. Chen has continued to provide guidance
on the range and variety of foods offered and the enhancement of the
tastes and flavors of our foods and the development of our dipping
sauces and our hot and spicy soup base since our establishment. Our
hot and spicy soup base was awarded “Beijing Specialty Cuisine” by
Beijing Cuisine Association. Ms. Chen graduated from Taipei Ching-
Chwan Commercial High School in June 1981. Ms. Chen is the spouse
of Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi.

Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management
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Ms. Li Jie (Z3&), aged 42, was appointed as an alternate Director to
Mr. Zhang Chi with effect from 30 June 2018 and re-designated as a
non-executive Director on 25 November 2022. Ms. Li is currently an
Operating Principal at General Atlantic as part of the firm’s Resources
Group and focuses on providing financial and analytical expertise to
the portfolio companies in China. She currently serves as a board
member of Today Inc. and Little Golden Star Education Group Holdings
Limited. She previously served as a non-executive director of Tenfu
(Cayman) Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6868) from August
2018 to March 2020. Prior to joining General Atlantic in 2018, Ms. Li
was the chief financial officer at Global Logistic Properties (GLP) in the
Financial Services segment. Prior to that, she was the chief financial
officer of Yunmanman (YMM), a logistic platform start-up company.
Ms. Li also has over 10 years financial due diligence experience with
PricewaterhouseCoopers Transaction Services in China and Australia
merger and acquisition markets. Ms. Li earned her bachelor degree
in international journalism from the Shanghai International Studies
University as well as a second degree in civil law from Fudan University
in July 2002.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence (§84§%H), aged 63, is an independent
non-executive Director. He was appointed to our Board on 28 November
2014. Mr. Hon has over 35 years of experience in accounting,
treasury and financial management. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of 361 Degrees International Limited (stock code:
1361), Daphne International Holdings Limited (stock code: 210) and
SinoMab Bioscience Limited (stock code: 3681), which are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. He was an independent non-executive
director of Jimu Group Limited (stock code: 8187) from December
2017 to May 2021. He also served as the chief financial officer and the
company secretary of DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 620) from December 2016 to September 2018.
Prior to that, Mr. Hon was appointed to various senior financial
positions in a number of companies, including as the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of Auto Italia Holdings Limited
(stock code: 720) from June 2013 to March 2016, as the chief financial
officer of China Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3818) from
December 2010 to September 2012, as the chief financial officer of K.
Wah Construction Materials Limited from September 2008 to December
2010 and as the group finance director (latest position) of TOM Group
Limited (stock code: 2383) from June 2001 to February 2008. Before
moving to commercial sector, Mr. Hon worked with an international
accounting firm for more than seven years. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Hon
obtained his Master's degree in Business Administration (Financial
Services) from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in August 2004.
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Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEBBE

Ms. Cheung Sze Man ([R5 #), aged 52, is an independent
non-executive Director. She was appointed to our Board on 28
November 2014. Ms. Cheung has accumulated audit experience in
an international accounting firm and has substantial experiences in
corporate finance, accounting and human resource management by
holding senior positions in private and public listed companies. She has
also served as directors of listed companies in Hong Kong. She was an
executive director of China Ocean Shipbuilding Industry Group Limited
(stock code: 651 and formerly known as Wonson International Holdings
Ltd), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
November 2006 to November 2007. She was an executive director of
ITC Properties Group Limited (stock code: 199 and formerly known
as Cheung Tai Hong), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, from May 2004 to May 2005. She also served as the
independent non-executive director of 21 Holdings Limited (stock code:
1003 and currently known as Huanxi Media Group Limited), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from November
2011 to April 2014. Ms. Cheung is a member of both the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia. Ms. Cheung
graduated from the University of Auckland in New Zealand with a
Bachelor of Commerce degree and a Bachelor of Arts degree in May
1995. She also obtained a Master of Business Administration degree
from the University of Bradford in the United Kingdom in July 2012.

Mr. Kot Man Tat(Z 3 %), aged 51, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed to our Board on 1 April 2022. Mr. Kot has
over 20 years' experience in accounting and financial management.
He has been the chief financial officer of Joy Spreader Interactive
Technology Limited (stock code: 6988, currently known as Joy Spreader
Group Inc.) from 24 May 2021. He was the supervisor of Xiabuxiabu
(China) Food Co., Limited (M IF (FE) B ZAER A, a
60%-owned subsidiary of the Company, from 27 May 2017 to 9 March
2022, the supervisor of Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (Tianjin)
Co., Limited (M MR IHE KB 1B (K&) BR A A, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, from 29 December 2017 to 9 March 2022,
the supervisor of Coucou (Tianjin) Catering Management Co., Limited
(BE(R2E)EREEAFMR AR, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, from 10 May 2018 to 9 March 2022, the supervisor of
Guang Qi (Tianjin) Commercial Management Limited (J¢2% (K3#) B 5
B AR AT, a company wholly owned by Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, the
substantial shareholder and an executive director of the Company, from
29 December 2017 to 9 March 2022, and the supervisor of Tea Mi Tea
Catering Management Co., Ltd, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Ho
Kuang-Chi, from 20 July 2018 to 9 March 2022. He was the chief
financial officer of China Zhongwang Holdings Limited (stock code:
1333, delisted on 13 April 2023) from 28 June 2016 to 1 May 2021.
He served as the vice president from June 2008 to June 2011 and the
senior vice president from March 2013 to April 2016 of General Altantic
(Beijing) Investments Consultancy Limited. He was the head of Capital
Market of Zhongsheng Group Holdings Co. Limited from 1 July 2011 to

28 February 2013.
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Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEBBE

Prior to this, Mr. Kot worked in Ernst & Young from 4 April 2001 to
30 November 2004 and KPMG from 12 August 1999 to 1 April 2001.
Mr. Kot graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1996
with a bachelor’s degree in business administration.

Senior Management

Mr. Feng Hui-Huang (5 &/2), aged 58, is the vice president of the
finance department of the Group. He joined the Group in November
2021. Mr. Feng possesses years of experience in financial management
and corporate management. Before joining the Group, he served in
several enterprises, including as deputy general manager of the general
manager office of Shanghai Yashi Catering Management Co. Ltd. ( /&
HEZLREER AR AA), a subsidiary of Bon Matin Paris Group, and
as financial controller of Shanghai Cimic Tile Co., Ltd. ( £/ H K 7 2 45
bR & R% 10 A IR A 7)) (stock code: 002162, currently known as Shanghai
Everjoy Health Group Co., Ltd., listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange),
etc. He currently serves as supervisors in Shanghai Yashi Catering
Management Co. Ltd. (E/BHEEEREEFR A a]), Shanghai Maiya
Food Co. Ltd. (F/BBHE SR AR A a), Xinyi Food (Chengdu) Co.
Ltd. (FRBE R & (X &) AR A 7)) and Chengda Catering Management
(Sichuan) Co. Ltd. (FxEZEIE (1U)I1) AR A7) . Mr. Feng obtained
a master’s degree in business administration from University of Memphis
in December 1993.
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Directors’ Report

ESEHRE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the Company
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group are the operation of casual hotpot restaurants and
providing other catering services. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2022, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended are set out on pages 97 to 103.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business and operations for the year is set
out in the sections headed “Business Review and Outlook” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 11 to 37 of this
annual report which constitute part of this directors’ report.
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Directors’ Report
EEZERE

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group exercised the philosophy of sustainable development by
implementing comprehensive green transformation to the full industrial
chain of the catering industry, strictly complied with relevant laws and
regulations, such as the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid
Waste and Anti-food Waste Law of the People’s Republic of China,
proactively responded to the national policies of the “Dual Carbon
Goal”, "Plastic Limit Order” and “Anti-food Waste"”, conscientiously
fulfilled its corporate social responsibilities and enhanced the
low-carbon green operational and managerial philosophy. During the
Year, the Company continued its efforts in the energy conservation and
emission reduction in terms of production, office affairs, and restaurant
operation, etc., improving the utilization efficiency of resources. It also
adhered to low-carbon green operation, followed the waste sorting-out
practice, reduced the generation of wastes, advocated and promoted
anti-food waste and reduced exhaust emissions and wastewater
discharges. In order to mitigate climate change, the Group made
positive actions from multiple dimensions to promote the harmonious
development between the enterprise and environment, contributing
its due share in the sustainable development cause of the society. In
2022, no violations, litigations and punishments, etc. in relation to
environmental issues were occurred to the Company. Discussions on the
Group's environmental policies and performance during the year are
contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") Report
2022 of the Company.

Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company maintains its communication with stakeholders,
establishes diverse communication channels, continuously listens
to the expectations and demands of stakeholders, and responds to
their opinions in a timely manner. Details of the relationship with
stakeholders are set out in the ESG Report 2022 of the Company

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group had complied with all relevant PRC laws and regulations in
all material respects and have obtained all material licenses, approvals
and permits from relevant regulatory authorities for all of its restaurants
opened in 2022. During the financial year, there was no material breach
of or non-compliance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations by the
Group.

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report from pages 72 to 90 of this
annual report.
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Directors’ Report
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties FERBEAEEMN

Set out below are identified principal risks and uncertainties facing by  AEEEEA 2R &K THEE M A &
the Group as well as a summary of the steps taken to mitigate these 9 Bll$t %52 =15 5% AT BREX 80 48 7 +8 1 10

risks: T

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Controls and Mitigation

FTERBRTEEY ZEHRRERETE

Uncertainty as to the opening and profitability o We closely monitor the profitability of the newly opened
of the new operations restaurants, through marketing campaign, membership

BRERZREENEREERNNTREE M campaign to attract customers to the restaurants. At the

same time launching sets so customers can experience the
value for money that the brand provides to enhance the
continue visit of the customers to drive through profits at
our restaurants.

BPZEIFRERNRNBER BEATSHE €8
EnBEEARSI BT NGEERARE AN HLEEEE
FRESSUHEELNRER ENBXKEHETHERR
H A

=113

Risks related to site selection for new restaurants e Using information system to intellectually integrate with the
FHEFZEREIER big data that composes of data that includes successful and
failure when opening restaurants to increase the brand’s
chances of choosing successful location.
MAEARRS BRBEAAFERNELBEENER
BYRBUIE - 1T o B HE BT XK o

o Expand the nationwide collaboration by working with the
top 15 developers, to reduce the cost of rental by effectively
exposing the location and to choose the location and set
the terms during the very initial stage of negotiation.
BAE2EMEEEIE RANSRAEMAE  ERTEAMK
B A A IR R U RS B AR R E R A A R E R B
BERBEEGRR -

o Take advantage of the brand’s strength, to increase the
rent free period and acquire renovation subsidy when
negotiating rental terms with landlords in tier 3 and 4 cities
-4 TAAREER ARAAEERE B - B INE
LRBHEMEEEMBRK -
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties Controls and Mitigation

FTERBRIAEEY EHRERIEE

Risks related to quality control and food safety o The Company has always adhered to food safety and
EHREEEFERRME AR quality assurance, by establishing and improved food safety

risk assessment and control mechanisms, strictly select
suppliers and choose only high-quality suppliers in the
industry. We continue to implement quality management,
directly source from upstream, establish a production base,
enforce checking strict control when receiving goods,
ensure on time delivery, strengthen restaurant quality
control, implement central kitchen factory management
and conduct management review to strengthen all aspects
of the supply chain, build an all comprehensive system and
other fundamental groundwork in order to deliver safe,
healthy and quality assured products to our customers.
RRFMEBRTRERREMEERE BUTERMETE
R R EEHG BRHEREALRERITREE
HER FETHEEERERE £EEMER BB
BB EREX EREREERE PABFIKRERE
EHEENEESERDETREETRENRL 27U
REAEEFEARTIE RUMEFP2BER: RF HEE
ZEHEM e
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties Controls and Mitigation

TERBRFREMN EHRERER

Risks related to increasing food price, labor costs e The Pandemic, the war and other factors seriously affected
and commercial real estate rent the global productivity level, resulting in price inflation

FHERRER  ADKAREEMERS LR on commodity prices especially in agricultural by-products
2B such as corn, soy beans and meat. In order to cope with

this cost price pressure, procurement team have to work
professionally to demonstrate their sourcing capability and
negotiating skills.

RE BFMEMEZREXEL2RNEELTH KT 8
HAFEARERTRLER HHEELR  KERAREE
Em - RTRERHERBRALRES RBABZEBEEER
S Ree T REERN -

1. Sourcing from upstream: To source directly from
upstream directly in order to minimize the middle
agency fee during the production season.

RERE  EEFHNRER - JRBEERE R+
MIRERX o

2. Signing annual contract: During production season,
when the pricing is right, sign annual procurement
contract with supplier as soon as possible to develop
long term strategic relationship.
FI2FERBAR : EEERE  BRABENRRE -
BRREABREZIT2FERBAR  BRRYPBBA(E
BA% -

3. Introduce competition: Explore the top suppliers in
the industry, expand the suppliers pool, establish
competition on product price.

SIABE HETXRBAXCRAHRER BEAHERD
Mo TEKEmERBRSE

4. Develop alternatives: To source from different
locations to find alternatives with the similar quality as
a backup plan.
FMEEAR : EREHERANARE SRAREMNE
miERREM -

5.  Strategically reserve scarce ingredients: Following the
deterioration of the international situation, the Group
will take action to reserve ingredients by adding on
purchasing volume and increase the reserve for its
core ingredients in order to hedge against the risks on
out of stock and price inflation.
BEFEAEBRIERME : BEERT 2 E H
HE l’f%uﬁﬁfﬂfg%ﬁxbﬂkﬁ‘b £ &DDK Hg :
RS MR E R
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

TERBRTEEME

Controls and Mitigation

BRI ERER

Risk related to labor cost inflation

BREANRA LR R R

Faced with increasing labor costs, the Company has
reshuffled the different roles in the office and the human
resources allocation at the restaurant level, through a
strictly controlled scheduling of the team to integrate the
workload in order to lower the number of staff needed
to improve efficiency, and to reasonably allocate the
proportion between part timers and service team. Going
forward, we shall also adjust the employment strategy at
any time depending on business needs and the Pandemic
situation.

HE B EANHANKE  RRFEEFMIENRERAEL
REBHAEBENANEE  BBBRREZEANBRFS
RSN ITIERERAUBREABREYIRANE I
ERRESBHEL RRBEMGL R bEREEF2
KB AEE I BE R 38 2 A A KB -

Uncertainty as to how Covid-19 pandemic
will impact the restaurant operations in
the future

[l 7R B B TE AR 2R T AL TE AR R B I AR 1B
B B EEEE

Comply with the manual for “Preventive measure on
managing cold chain food products”, strictly check
all imported cold chain food produce, strengthen the
management of disinfecting process on supply chain,
storage and delivery, regularly conduct nucleic aid test
for the staff, environment and products when necessary,
restaurants operations team to ensure that all Pandemic
measures are taken place in order to protect the safety on
the tip of customer’s tongue.
BTFORERMTEGEEETFM  BREREEDR
BREMEE  MEYR ERMNERSHSERRBER
EEFTENBATERESBEMIRALG RE Ym
ETRERA  EREKLERHEERBANRER - TEL
BEEERENZR -
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Impact of the Pandemic

Following the development of the Pandemic, restrictions on
consumption areas imposed as a result of the Pandemic affected the
Group’s business greatly. In order to ensure the safety of its staff and
customers, the Group gradually suspended some of its restaurant
operations in 2022. As the effective Pandemic management by the
Central Government, the domestic Pandemic situation had eased up
significantly since December 2022, the Group started to gradually
reopen some of those restaurants that were closed due the Pandemic,
the Group's business has been recovering gradually.

o The Pandemic continued in the form of Omicron, posing challenges
to the operations of the Group. The Group is learning from the
past three years and adopts a cautious and modest restaurant
opening strategy, choosing locations only where the Group sees
there is sufficient customer traffic to ensure the restaurants are
able to generate normal profitability level and can generate stable
source of cash flow. In 2022, there was a huge change to business
environment, the Group altered its strategy, for example, closing
down non-profitable restaurants that are located at old commercial
locations where sales dropped as a result of lower customer traffic
and in locations which do not match the brand’s image;

o Took on a proactive approach to negotiate rental free concessions
with owners and landlords in order to reduce the operating
overheads of the Company;

. During the period where dine-in business was affected, the Group
puts in additional efforts to promote online delivery business,
rolling out fresh ingredients and hotpot deliveries. In 2022,
revenue generated from delivery business contributed RMB338.9
million;

o The Group started to relaunch the “value for money” set menu as
it is the core strength and roll out bar seating whereby customers
can dine safely and economically. The Group believes alongside
with its branding and marketing initiatives, the Group will be able
to strive through this Pandemic and be able to stand out in this
highly competitive environment;

o The Company understands that at this challenging times, it is
imperative to remain financially healthy, therefore maintaining
a healthy cash flow position even during the Pandemic, as at 31
December 2022, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of
RMB300.7 million.
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Outlook for 2023 —EC=FRE
In 2023, the Group will continue its efforts to achieve its goal of —EC=F  REBRBEERNINER
becoming the leading operator of Chinese catering industry and EEBE SERKARKERITENEL
maintaining its leading position as a hotpot restaurant chain operator &% % @ WRFEIEABRAN A REHEE
in China. Discussions on the outlook for 2023 are set out in the section AT EBEN  —E - =FRx
head “Business Review and Outlook — Outlook for 2023 in this annual 2w iliE A ARNER [EHBOE LR L —
report. ZEZ=FRE]—f -
DIVIDEND BB
The Board recommends the payment of the 2022 Final Dividend EECESMADBRM G BED K%
of RMBO0.028 per share for the year ended 31 December 2022 31 #HE-_ET-_—F#+-_A=+—HIFE
December 2021: RMB0.028 per share) to be paid out of the Company’s N _T - _FFREKREFRARE0.028
share premium account. Such payment of dividend will be subject to the T(ZE—F+=_A=+—H: 8k
approval of the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”) at the A R #0.0287T) © A # MR 8k % AN ¥
AGM to be held on 25 May 2023 and is payable to those Shareholders R-_ZE-_=FHRA-+HBRTHRE
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on 7 HEAE XK€ FESALTIRE ([RE]) #
June 2023. Together with the interim dividend of RMB0.028 per share &> AR B IR _ZE_=F XA+ H
paid in October 2022, the total distribution of dividend by the Company ZHRNABEREZMOEE L - FE
for the year ended 31 December 2022 will be RMB0.056 per share (31 RIE-_—_F+ AT EHREFR
December 2021: RMB0.056 per share). The 2022 Final Dividend will be ARB0028C ' AR FIHE-_T-——%F
declared in Renminbi and paid in Hong Kong dollars, the exchange rate + = A =+—H L EEFMEMNEKEH
of which will be calculated based on the rate of exchange as quoted A&GRARK00S6TL (ZE-—F+=
to the Company by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporaton A =+—H : & A R #0.0567T) - —
Limited at its middle rate of exchange prevailing on 7 June 2023. The Z - —EXRHREBEUARESTIELIA
2022 Final Dividend, if approved by the Shareholders at the AGM, is B HEXEKES L /GELZE
expected to be paid on or about 16 June 2023. TERARBREBEER-_ZT-_=ZFA+
A I8 17 Y F 8 DE 3= ) X 2 | P S A B 3K
HE - MAREAFARE LESREL
B T _FRERSFEABR T
Z=FARNATAEHBIESN -
CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS EERERREER
The register of members of the Company will be closed from 23 May ZAAGENR_E-_=FRARA-_+=HZE
2023 to 25 May 2023 (both days inclusive), during which period no —ZE-=RA-+HAHE (BEEW
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be HBIEMER) (= PHIERFE XL BR
entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM to be held on 25 BEreRnBEA AR RMDBEER -
May 2023, all transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share ANAERMEEBENR _ZE-_=FHAHA
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share Z—+HAESRTHERREAEARSER
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops @ R Z  FrERMDBP Xt ERIEE
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, WENBEBR-_E_=FRA_+=-H
Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on 22 May 2023. TR =Z1+28  REARAQRANETEFE
FELREAPRELFELBERAA
it ABEBEFE2FKNERI83HKAE M
FRLT7E1712-1716F ©
Subject to the approval of the declaration of the 2022 Final Dividend FREERFEAFAS HAEATRER_-ZT
at the forthcoming AGM, the register of members of the Company will ——=FKHBEE% AQGNFENR -
also be closed from 2 June 2023 to 7 June 2023 (both days inclusive), —=%XA-ZRAZE-_E-_=FxXxA+H
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be  HiIfS (BHRW A 8 IEEN) B =i 12 5%
registered. In order to qualify for the 2022 Final Dividend, all transfer & & - IR A @R IBE A A RQ T K G5
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be BEBFERL - AFNEEKER_-_ZT -
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare  KHEIIR S - FTERMD B S X ER HE
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, ENBER-_ZE-_=ZFA—HTNFHE
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no F=15R RERARANEAETELEE
later than 4:30 p.m. on 1 June 2023. NEREEATRESELARAA - ik
REBETERERNERISIHSMA L
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s distributable reserves
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands comprise
the share premium and retained earnings totaling approximately
RMB228.6 million (2021: RMB272.1 million).

RESERVES

Changes to the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out in the consolidated statements of changes
in equity.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Particulars of the bank and other loans of the Group as at 31 December
2022 are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, except the fixed assets with the net carrying
amount of RMB14.3 million which was pledged as security for
short-term borrowings by the Company, there was no other charge on
the Group's assets.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2022.

For details of the shares purchased by the RSU Trustee for the purpose
of the RSU Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2022, please
refer to the section headed “Restricted Share Unit Scheme"” below and
Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

MBHRE
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SHARE INCENTIVES
Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan

On 28 August 2009, a pre-IPO share incentive plan (the “Pre-IPO
Share Incentive Plan”) of the Company was approved and adopted
by the then Shareholders. The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive
Plan is to promote the success of our Company and the interests of our
shareholders by providing a means through which our Company may
grant equity-based incentives to attract, motivate, retain and reward
certain officers, employees, directors, consultant or advisor who renders
or has rendered bona fide services to the Company, and other eligible
persons (the "Eligible Person”) and to further link the interests of
the grantees or recipients of the options (“Options”) or share awards
("Share Awards”, together with the Options, collectively referred to as
the “Awards").

Each Award is evidenced by an award agreement, which shall contain
the terms for such Award, as well as any other terms, provisions, or
restrictions that may be imposed on the Award, and in the case of
Options, any shares subject to the Option, and in each case subject
to the applicable provisions and limitations of the Pre-IPO Share
Incentive Plan. The maximum number of shares which may be issued
and/or delivered pursuant to all Awards granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Incentive Plan must not exceed 40,000,000 shares (representing
approximately 3.70% of the total issued shares of the Company
("Shares”) as at the date of this annual report).

As at 31 December 2022, Options to subscribe for an aggregate of
438,998 Shares (representing approximately 0.04% of the total issued
Shares as at the date of this annual report) have been granted by the
Company and are outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan.
No Share Award has been granted or agreed to be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan since the adoption of the plan.

An Eligible Person whom an Option is granted in accordance with
the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan and the relevant award
agreement (the "Grantee”) is not required to pay for the grant of any
Option under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan.

hgrigd )
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No Grantee shall be entitled to any rights, interest or benefits attached
to the underlying Shares of the Options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Incentive Plan unless and until the Option in respect of such Shares has
been vested on him/her and exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan. There is no maximum entitlement for
each Eligible Person under the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan.

An Option shall not be exercisable on any date unless such terms and
conditions (including, without limitation, any performance criteria,
passage of time or other factors or any combination thereof which the
exercise of the Option shall be conditional) as set out in the relevant
award agreement, if any, are satisfied and to the extent that the Option
has vested.

The exercise price in respect of any Option granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Incentive Plan is set forth in the relevant award agreement, and
the exercise price of an Option shall be no less than the greatest of:

(i)  the par value of the Shares of the Company; and
(ii)  the value as reasonably determined by the administrator,

provided that no Shares newly-issued by the Company may be issued
for less than the minimum lawful consideration for such Shares or for
consideration other than that permitted by applicable law.

An Option, once exercisable and unless the administrator otherwise
expressly provides, shall remain exercisable until the expiration or earlier
termination of the Option. Each Option shall expire not more than
ten years after its date of grant. No fewer than 1,000 Shares may be
purchased on exercise of any Option at one time unless the number of
Shares purchased is the total number of Shares at the time available for
purchase under the Option.
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All of the Options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan were 8 #8 & X A B 2 & B iR 1) 22 B) =t 21 1%
granted in four different tranches on 31 August 2009, 17 May 2011, 24 H &2 IMBERES OHIZTE - BFH AW
December 2012 and 21 March 2014. As at 31 December 2022, there SR A-—ZEZETAENA=+—H =Z

are altogether 2 Option holders of the Group. Details of the Options ——®HRA++H  —_ZT—_-F+_-A
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan and outstanding as at 31 Tt+HEARZE—NF=A=Z+—H-
December 2022 and details of the vesting period, exercise period and WRZ-ZZ-Z—_F+_A=+—H x&EH
the exercise price are set out below: EREREARGTML KT

tT-A=1T—H REEXAHEEHN
P fn B2 Dt &I ) B i) R 1T (2 1O B A 42
HEMEBHS  TEMEITEEFEH

MR :
Weighted average
closing price
Number of the Shares Number
of Shares immediately of Shares
represented before the dates represented by
by the Options Exercise on which the Cancelled Lapsed  the Options at
at 1 January price Exercised Options were during during 31 December
Option holder 2022 Date of grant (RMB)  during the year  exercised (HKD)" the year the year 2022
ZEBRE
RZBZZf TRERA RZB-ZF
-A-H BBt mE +ZB=t-H
BRESRY T%E THEHE BRESR
BRESEA RGEE RHAH (AE#T) FRTE (8x)" FREH FRENR HRAHE
Senior management members
of the Group
FEEEHEREAS
2 employees of the Group 14,400 24 December 2012 1.84 (14,400) 7.01 - - -
REBOMILEE “R-CHt-ACtmA
701,570 21 March 2014 2.78 (262,572) 457 - - 438,998
“Z-ME=RA=t-H
715,970 (276,972) - - 438,998
Note: Ty

(1) As a result of the exercise of the Options under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive (Y BHREXRXAHBEESARMEE 28

Plan during the year ended 31 December 2022, a total of 276,972 Shares THEREASE-"ZEZ-_—F+—-A
had been issued in 2022 and the total funds received by the Company Z+—BItFEETHE & $£276,972
with respect to the exercise of such Options amounted to RMB756,446. BBRHOR T —_FEET BARQ

AT ZERREMNGSNRRIE
B ANRHET56,4467T ©

Details of movements in the Options under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive — B X ABEE R ZEFT S TE T B
Plan are also set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.  #EHEFHF IS NS R GEA T ERERM =
33

The holders of the Options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive  _ERIRM AR & IR Q52 Ep ko 88
Plan as referred to in the table above are not required to pay for the  EIETEIFTEEBERENSEABERIR
grant of any Option under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan and the EEXAFEERRMDEE S XHEH
relevant award agreement. REHRERNTAERENER -
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Subject to the satisfactory performance of the Option holders, the
Options granted to each of the Option holders shall be vested in
accordance with vesting schedule as follows:

(i) as to 25% of the aggregate number of Shares underlying the
Option on the date ending 12 months after 17 December 2014,
the date of listing of the Company (the “Listing Date");

(i) as to 25% of the aggregate number of Shares underlying the
Option on the date ending 24 months after the Listing Date;

(iii) as to 25% of the aggregate number of Shares underlying the
Option on the date ending 36 months after the Listing Date; and

(iv) as to the remaining 25% of the aggregate number of Shares
underlying the Option on the date ending 48 months after the
Listing Date.

Each Option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan has a
ten-year exercise period.

No further Options have been granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive
Plan after the Listing Date. Save as disclosed above, during the year
ended 31 December 2022, no Options have been exercised by the
holders, nor have any of the Options lapsed or been cancelled.

The Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan has expired on the Listing Date but the
provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan shall remain in full force
and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
Options granted prior thereto. No further Awards will be granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan after the Listing Date.

Restricted Share Unit Scheme

On 28 November 2014, a restricted share unit scheme (the “RSU
Scheme”) of the Company was approved and adopted by the then
shareholders of the Company. Such plan became effective on the Listing
Date.

The purpose of the RSU Scheme is to incentivize Directors (excluding
independent non-executive Directors), senior management, officers
and other selected personnel of the Group (“RSU Eligible Persons”)
for their contribution to the Group, to attract, motivate and retain
skilled and experienced personnel to strive for the future development
and expansion of the Group by providing them with the opportunity
to own equity interests in the Company. The Board selects the RSU
Eligible Persons to receive restricted share units (“RSUs"”) under the RSU
Scheme at its discretion. There is no maximum entitlement for each RSU
Eligible Person under the rules of the RSU Scheme.
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The RSU Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of ten years,
commencing from the Listing Date (unless it is terminated earlier in
accordance with its terms) (the “RSU Scheme Period”). As at 31
December 2022, the remaining life of the RSU Scheme is approximately
two years.

The maximum number of RSUs that may be granted under the RSU
Scheme in aggregate (excluding RSUs that have lapsed or been cancelled
in accordance with the rules of the RSU Scheme) must not exceed
42,174,566 Shares, being 4% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at the Listing Date (the “RSU Scheme Limit”) and approximately
3.9% of the total issued Shares of the Company as at the date of
this annual report. The RSU Scheme Limit may be refreshed from time
to time subject to prior approval from the Shareholders in general
meeting, provided that the total number of Shares underlying the RSUs
granted following the date of approval of the refreshed limit (the “New
Approval Date”) under the limit as refreshed from time to time must
not exceed 4% of the number of Shares in issue as at the relevant New
Approval Date. Shares underlying the RSUs previously granted under
the RSU Scheme (including RSUs that have lapsed or been canceled
in accordance with the rules of the RSU Scheme) prior to such New
Approval Date will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
limit as refreshed.

The Board can determine the vesting criteria and conditions, the
vesting schedule, the exercise price of the RSUs (where applicable) and
such other details as the Board considers necessary, and such criteria,
conditions and details shall be stated in the letter granting such RSUs
("RSU Grant Letter”). Within a reasonable time after the vesting
criteria, conditions and time schedule have been reached, fulfilled,
satisfied or waived, the Board will send a vesting notice ("Vesting
Notice”) to each of the RSU participants (the “RSU Participants”).
The Vesting Notice will confirm the extent to which the vesting criteria,
conditions and time schedule have been reached, fulfilled, satisfied
or waived, and the number of Shares (and, if applicable, the cash or
non-cash income, dividends or distributions and/or the sale proceeds
of non-cash and non-scrip distributions in respect of those Shares)
involved.
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The Company has appointed Computershare Hong Kong Trustees
Limited as the RSU Trustee for the administration of the RSU Scheme
pursuant to the rules of the RSU Scheme. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the RSU Trustee, under the instruction of the
Company, purchased an aggregate of 29,577,421 Shares at a total cash
consideration of approximately HK$120.2 million from the market. Since
the end of the reporting period up to the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this annual report, the RSU Trustee did not buy any Shares
from the market. As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of
this annual report, the 37,851,587 Shares, representing approximately
3.48% of the total issued Shares of the Company as at the date of this
annual report, remained to be held by the RSU Trustee. Pursuant to
the RSU Trust Deed, notwithstanding that the RSU Trustee is the legal
registered holder of the Shares held upon trust pursuant to the RSU
Scheme, the RSU Trustee shall refrain from exercising any voting rights
attached to such Shares held by it under the trust.
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%

ZEZZF+ZA=+—H ¥k
1,992,143 Shares, representing approximately 0.18% of the total issued & £1,992,1438% i 17 ({h AN 2 B & & &
Shares of the Company as at the date of this annual report, remained FHHE D TN Z240.18% ) B
outstanding. Details of the RSUs granted under the RSU Scheme and SRHEIRMDBEMDARTE AR _-Z

As at 31 December 2022, the RSUs in respect of an aggregate of

outstanding as at 31 December 2022 and details of the vesting period — =&+ A=+—B%R&IKXMEBEA
and the movements in RSUs during the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZBETEEERARTEIRESEMDE
are set out below: UWEFHE UREESEBHARZRGIR

HBENREE T -_—_F+-_A=+—
AIEFEMESHOFBERINAT :

Number of Shares represented by RSUs

ERHIRGENSRNRHBA
At Granted Vested Cancelled At
Name and category of First vesting 1 January during during during 31 December
grantees of RSU Date of grant date 2022 the year the year” the year 2022
FRHRBENRRA g -3 RZBZZf
HERER RAAH HESERH -A-8H FREY ERGE" FRE#E +T-A=t-H
Director
EZ
Ho Kuang-Chi 8 May 2017 1 April 2019 246,494 - (246,494) - -
BrE “E—t¥RANR “E-NFEA-A
14 December 2018 1 April 2020 263,845 - (131,922 - 131,923
“E-\FT-ATER —T-TFMA-A
30 September 2020 1 April 2021 471,003 - (157,001) - 314,002
ZR-ZENAZTA ZR--4NA-H
30 September 2020 1 April 2022 1,610,700 - (402,675) - 1,208,025
ZZZZFAA=TR ZTZ-fMA-A
Sub-total 2,592,042 - (938,092) - 1,653,950
a5y
Five Highest Paid Individuals of the Group”
FEMTAREHALY
2 employees of the Group 8 May 2017 1 April 2019 20,592 - (20,592) - -
REENMIES “T—tFRANA “E-N\fEA-A
14 December 2018 1 April 2020 - - - - -
ZE-\§tZATER ZZ-TFMA-A
30 September 2020 1 April 2021 - - - - -
“E-EEAAZTHE ZE--£MA-H
30 September 2020 1 April 2022 - - - - -
“Z-FENA=TR ZZ-CZEMA-A
Sub-total 20,592 - (20,592) - -
Nt
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Number of Shares represented by RSUs
ZREARGENSROROEA
At Granted Vested Cancelled At
Name and category of First vesting 1 January during during during 31 December
grantees of RSU Date of grant date 2022 the year the year” the year 2022
ERHBRGERERA R-BzZ% R=BzZf
HERER RiBH EREELEE -A-H ERRH FRER" FREHE T-A=t-BH
Employees of the Group
2EFES
12 other employees 8 May 2017 1 April 2019 264,265 - (264,265) - -
of the Group “T—tf5HANR “E-N§MA-A
REBMIEMES 14 December 2018 1 April 2020 44,832 - (22,413) (2,566) 19,853
“F-\5TZAtRA ZT-TEMA-A
30 September 2020 1 April 2021 85,940 - (28,641) (9,910) 47,389
ZE-EEAR=TH ZZ--4MA-H
30 September 2020 1 April 2022 735,358 - (108,961) (355,446) 270,951
ZRCZENA=TE ZZZCZEMA-A
Sub-total 1,130,395 - (424,280) (367,922) 338,193
it
Total 3,743,029 - (1,382,964) (367,922) 1,992,143
@zt
Notes: P ET

(1) The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the (1) ZEZRHIBRHEMEBE BHRG
RSUs were vested was HK$3.96. B A3.9658 7T °

(2)  The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year include one ) AEBEBFRARAAEsSTATBEBE—F

director where details of the RSUs granted and outstanding as at 31 EE O HMERN-_ZE-__F+=A8
December 2022 and details of the vesting period and the movements =+ —HBHREARTENIRG KD B
in RSUs during the year ended 31 December 2022 are reflected in the HEEkHE-ZE-_—_F+=-A= +*
category of director. HIEFE AR R AR5 %676 5 & 5

REHIE2INNESER -

Details of movements in the RSUs under the RSU Scheme are also set EEZEHIRMOEMTEIE T RS R
out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. MBMNMEEFBENHINGEETBRE
BfEE33 ©

The grantees of the RSUs under the RSU Scheme as referred to in the  FRIZWMAVIEIE TR HIAX (D B 5t 2P

table above are not required to pay for the grant of any RSUs under the BHSREEIEMDEMNEFEABARIE

RSU Scheme and the relevant RSU Grant Letter. ESHESRMDEMNTE RIEE SRS R
MEBRE T RHERAEMZR GRG0 E
UENEA-
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Subject to the satisfactory performance of the grantees, the RSUs
granted to each of the grantees as above shall be vested in accordance
with the vesting schedule as follows:

(i) asto 25% of the RSUs on the first vesting date;

(i) as to 25% of the RSUs on the first anniversary of the first vesting
date;

(iii) as to 25% of the RSUs on the second anniversary of the first
vesting date; and

(iv) as to the remaining 25% of the RSUs on the third anniversary of
the first vesting date.

Each RSU granted under the RSU Scheme has a ten-year exercise period
commencing from the date of grant.

THE SUBSIDIARY SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 25 May 2018, three subsidiary share option schemes (the
“Subsidiary Share Option Schemes”), namely the share option
scheme for each of the three wholly-owned PRC operating subsidiaries
of the Company, namely Coucou Catering Management Co., Ltd. (&
EEREIEBR AN A, Xiabuxiabu Catering Management Co., Ltd.
(MR RIS E g E B AR A 7)) and Xiabuxiabu Catering Management
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (MW HEGEE (LE) BR 2 A) (the
“Operating Subsidiaries”), were approved and adopted by the
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting.
The Subsidiary Share Option Schemes are on substantially similar terms
and are designed to provide respective employees of each of the three
Operating Subsidiaries with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the relevant Operating Subsidiary, which will retain the
grantees of such options and encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Operating Subsidiaries, and for the benefit
of the Company as a whole. As at the date of this annual report, none
of the Operating Subsidiaries has adopted any other share option
scheme.

HARANKRRESARE  BUARA
BEERSZRS R0 ECERE TS
BREXREE -

() REERBEHEEBIREHRMDE
IH925%

iy REERERHNE-—BFRBEX
BRI A £ BB (L 925 %

(i) REEGEAHNE_BFRBEX
PR IR {0 BB AL EN25% ¢ &

vy REERERHNE=ZBFHREX
B A& 1) BB L8R T H925%

BEXRGBROEMCABRENEEAR
REIB O EMITERSBE RN B R
RE0F »

B 8 2 7 BB AR R ST &

RZEBE-NERA-+HB  =@ANB
AEIERERS ((MEQRBRES
g AXRAEFEHEEN=-MBE2E
WEA AR Z28REEERAA - HIFH
MR IR B AR B 3R B PR A A K TR I R I A AR
EE(EB)ERAR (GBI EEMEQ
A EEMNBRETEZAREFERIKR
SERNRBIBREIERER - M BRA A
BEREST S 2 ERABRMER - UEER
—HEENBRASAECEERMHHES
EESEBELENBARMATE EER
M B ERBEBREARALEEFS
BHEALENBRARZEBE EMA
RAFIBEANRERER - RAF®A
B EELENBE R RN TR EE
IR ERTE -
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The Subsidiary Share Option Schemes shall be valid and effective for a
period of five years from the date of adoption of the Subsidiary Share
Option Schemes or upon listing of the relevant Operating Subsidiary.
The Subsidiary Share Option Schemes will be expired on 25 May 2023.

Further details of the principal terms of the Subsidiary Share Option
Schemes are set out in the circular of the Company dated 7 May 2018.

No option has been granted pursuant to any of the Subsidiary Share
Option Schemes since it was approved on 25 May 2018.

Bt B R m R AR AR AT EHS B BT B A R BB AR
HEFHEIR M B BTSN AR L B B
REILMERAFHMAERRER - KB
RABEREFEER T _=FHA
—t+EBER-

BRI QR B ARER  E E R
—HSHBERARRBHA-_ZT-N\F
TAEHMBEKA -

BT - N\FREAZTHBEIER
BERBEANE AR BRE SR

DIRECTORS

B -
BEE

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of FANEZAREEH AR ESW

this report were: T
Name Position
mE ;=4 a
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi Executive Director
BREKE HITES
Chairman of the Board
EFxglR
Chief Executive Officer
TR AR
Ms. Chen Su-Yin Non-executive Director
PRERL T+ EMITESE
Ms. Li Jie Non-executive Director (re-designated on 25 November 2022)
FRLL FPTEE(R_T-_F+—A=+HBHID)
Alternate Director to Mr. Zhang Chi (resigned on 25 November 2022)
RHEEEMNBEES(RZEZZF+—AZ+HABHMT)
Mr. Zhang Chi Non-executive Director (resigned on 25 November 2022)
R ot 5T A FRPTEE(R_T-_F+—A=-t+HBET)
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence Independent Non-executive Director
BN KL BYIFHITESR
Ms. Cheung Sze Man Independent Non-executive Director
ReT L+ BIUEMITESF
Mr. Kot Man Tat Independent Non-executive Director (appointed on 1 April 2022)
BXoERE BAUNTEE(RE-__FUA—HEZT)
Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun Independent Non-executive Director (retired on 1 April 2022)
WHEEZ L BAUFNTEE(RZEZ_FWA—HRME)
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In accordance with the article 84(1) of the articles of association of
the Company, Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi and Ms. Chen Su-Yin shall retire
by rotation at the AGM and they, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

In accordance with article 83(3) of the articles of association of the
Company, Ms. Li Jie, who was appointed as a non-executive Director by
the Board with effect from 25 November 2022 to fill a casual vacancy,
shall hold office until the AGM and, being eligible, offers herself for
re-election.

None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than under normal statutory
obligations.

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set
out in the section headed “Biographies of the Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements and the connected transactions as
disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
in this Directors’ Report, no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director and/or any of its connected entity had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, and no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance between the Company or any
of its subsidiaries and the Company’s controlling shareholders or any of
their subsidiaries, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

REARFRMEZERZARFE4E - B
REEERRERLETRNERBF KR
ELMERTARSFHNAERLBEE
BREE -

FPREUTRBEEFSELZTRIERNTES
NEMBRZER a2 -__F+—A
“TRBERBRER BEARRBEEE
MANES3B)E BB THEERERAF
Aeg kil BEFEARTREEERET-

BEEEFEEM IR -—FAHARE
FEEFMERARRMNEE(—REE
BRERR N MAR LR R IR S 40 -

ARAEENREEFBENAFRIE
EREREREREE] A -

EERERBRRREAXRS -
ZHEREHNNER

BaRe MMM 37 ENEE S
RERAEEERENFERERS |
—HRRBENREEI S RERKA
FAEAKEHEFTELARAREER
MEBARZ2EITLREER SHEEM
MEERRETERIERAREARE
BHERERRS  ZHRALH  NE
FEARRALETAMERREARR T
EREREETANME AR ZNER
R BHEBH
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(a) Interests of Directors and Chief Executive of the

Company

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the

Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

EFRARAEBITHABRAR T
REMBEZE (EEAEHFLRHPE
el (T3 2% R BEMRB ) EXVEL)
MR - RO SERET RS
RARBREEFES KRB RDE
2R BTFEMECMAECH
@ MORE - IR LR RIS 8+
PIBEMBETAESETESRRS
MIEEST A ((RESFA)) ANE
AAT R R ATHER KRBT

Number of Approximate

Name of Director/ Capacity/ underlying percentage of
Chief Executive Nature of interest Shares'” shareholding"”
-4 54,/ HHE RENBQ
BETHRABHSE ERntE RHE" BolY
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi? Founder of a discretionary trust 450,000,000 41.43%
8RR ED RREEFERIE

Beneficial owner 2,098,410 0.19%

BEmB A

Beneficiary of a trust 1,653,950 0.15%

EFEAEXmA
Ms. Chen Su-Yin®® Interest of spouse 453,752,360 41.77%
REEL LYY fliBiEn
Notes: B 5T -

(1) All interests stated are long positions.

(2)  The Ying Qi Trust, a discretionary trust established by Mr. Ho Kuang-
Chi (as the settlor) for the benefit of Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi and with
Ying Qi PTC Limited acting as the trustee, holds the entire issued
share capital of Ying Qi Investments Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Ho
Kuang-Chi is deemed to be interested in the 450,000,000 Shares
held by Ying Qi Investments Limited. Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi is also
interested in 2,098,410 Shares and RSUs representing 1,653,950
Shares held on trust on his behalf by the RSU Trustee which can be

exercised for nil consideration and are subject to vesting.

(1) FAEREHRER -

(2)  Ying Qi Trust(@ &L E (F
BELE) MABEBERE R ENE
Rz Z#EF WAYing Qi
PTC LimitedfEAZ T A)HHE
Ying Qi Investments Limitedf) &
B EITRA o F It - BREL
A ¥R A TFAYing Qi Investments
LimitedFT 5 /& #9450,000,000/%
RO FPEEER - BXBLEDN
72,098,4100% B 15 & i % BR I
RDBAZEAMSTEARRE
5% &1,653,9500% A% (5 1) =2
REIRDEMTPEEES  %F
PR HI B 19 BB A7 AT AE R AB 178
WEHRE -
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(b)

Inte

So fa

Ms. Chen Su-Yin is the spouse of Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi and is deemed
to be interested in the Shares which are interested by Mr. Ho Kuang-
Chi under the SFO.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had 1,086,174,481 issued
Shares.

rests in other members of the Group

r as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2022, the

following person is directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to

vote i

n all circumstances at general meetings of any other member

of the Group:

(b)

RERZLREXEEEZL
8 AR & E S R E R D%
BRAREAERELEREAEANR
PR -

WZEZZF+=ZA=+—H"
RANFWEHR,086,174,481 1% 2 %
1TRED o

RASEBHEMKERXTH

=

MESEMA RZEZ=_F+=A
—t+—H UWTALTEESEERE
B ARAATRERIER T EAE
EXAEMKERANBRRAS E
WENEMERRAMET0%IIA
Rk

Total
share capital Approximate
Name of held by the percentage
Name of subsidiary shareholder shareholder of interest
EEH
L) N R REE A PR R PR 4B R AR BHABED
Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Holdings Co., Limited"” Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi? US$400,000 40%
PRI RS (R E) R RIERARAR" B A 400,000 7T
Notes: P =E -

(1

Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Holdings Co., Limited is a 60%-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Holdings Co.,
Limited wholly owns Xiabuxiabu (HK) Food Holdings Co., Limited,
which in turn wholly owns Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Co., Limited
("R ORI (R B ) B S B FR A &), Accordingly, Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi is
deemed to be interested in each of Xiabuxiabu (HK) Food Holdings
Co., Limited and Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Co., Limited (0§ 0 1 g (AR
Bl) RmARRDF).

Ms. Chen Su-Yin is the spouse of Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi and is deemed
to be interested in the 40% interest in Xiabuxiabu (China) Food
Holdings Co., Limited, and in turn Xiabuxiabu (HK) Food Holdings
Co., Limited and Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Co., Limited (M5 i 15 I (Hp
) & ®mAR XA A, which are interested by Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi under
the SFO.

NER g O e (7P B R AR IR 22
R RARREHEH60%E K B
X o MR AR () R
BRA B2 E A WRHEFE (&
B)RmEBERARAGR WFH
R (B RMERER AR 2
AEAEETE (PR RAER
RAE - H BRARELEBRER
BRI R (B8 RMAERE
PR 2 ) T R g MER 1 (P ) R
R AR e o

(1

2) BMEEZETARBENREEZE
8 BREES LB ROIRE
RE SRS LA R 1) TR T
MR (PR B R iR RA IR A A
BA0% i a5 (A i 70 0 0 I IR (2
) RAERAR AR R IR E
W(PE)RRBERIBIEA#E

%) o

-
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any of the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS® AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) have interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

BEXFEBEN R-E-—F+-
A=+—F BSEFRARARET
By A B R A A B 3 E O (R B % B (5
% 5% K 15 01 BXVER) MR -
AR BB (3 2 (3 48 38 o B 7 (F (] A AR 28
14838 % B A R 1 ) 352 A F B Y
BRMAB RN ESLAL  RIBEE
P B A AN AR B B O M
KR

FERRREMALIRRG R
MERONEZRKXR

R-B- &+ -A=F—F HUTA
T (BEFRARFAESTHAERIN) R
R An AR AR 10 P A N AR AR B
% K HAE 150 553361 7B 17 B /) & A2 it
NERHERIRE

Number of Approximate

Shares or percentage of

Name of shareholder Nature of interest securities held” interest®

P #5 IR 49 =K EEH

RERERE ERME BHma" BMOFI

Ying Qi PTC Limited? Trustee of a trust 450,000,000 41.43%

FREXFEA
Ying Qi Investments Limited® Beneficial owner 450,000,000 41.43%
EmfEE A

Gap (Bermuda) Limited® Interest of controlled 147,000,000 13.53%
corporation
LB R

General Atlantic Genpar Interest of controlled 147,000,000 13.53%
(Bermuda), L.P.®) corporation
LB ER

General Atlantic Partners Interest of controlled 147,000,000 13.53%
(Bermuda) IV, L.P.® corporation
A EER

General Atlantic Singapore Interest of controlled 147,000,000 13.53%
Fund Interholdco Ltd.? corporation
LB ER

General Atlantic Singapore Beneficial owner 147,000,000 13.53%

Fund Pte. Ltd.® BEEEA A
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Notes:
(1) Allinterests stated are long positions.

(2)  Ying Qi PTC Limited, the trustee of the Ying Qi Trust, in its capacity as
trustee holds the entire issued share capital of Ying Qi Investments Limited.
The Ying Qi Trust is a discretionary trust established by Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi
(as the settlor) and the beneficiary of which includes Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi.
Accordingly, each of Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi and Ying Qi PTC Limited is deemed
to be interested in the 450,000,000 Shares held by Ying Qi Investments
Limited by virtue of the SFO.

(3)  The sole shareholder of General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte. Ltd. (“GASF")
is General Atlantic Singapore Fund Interholdco Ltd. (“GA Interholdco”)
and the controlling shareholder of GA Interholdco is General Atlantic
Partners (Bermuda) IV, L.P. (“GAP LP"). The general partner of GAP LP is
General Atlantic Genpar (Bermuda), L.P. (“GA Genpar”) and the general
partner of GA Genpar is Gap (Bermuda) Limited. Accordingly, each of GA
Interholdco, GAP LP, GA Genpar and Gap (Bermuda) Limited is deemed
to be interested in the 147,000,000 Shares held by GASF by virtue of the
SFO.

(4)  As at 31 December 2022, the Company had 1,086,174,481 issued Shares.

(5)  Pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, the Shareholders are required to file
a disclosure of interests form when certain criteria are fulfilled. When
a shareholding in the Company changes, it is not necessary for the
Shareholder to notify the Company and the Stock Exchange unless several
criteria have been fulfilled, therefore a Shareholder’s latest shareholding
in the Company may be different from the shareholding filed with the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors or chief
executive of the Company were not aware of any other person, not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company, who has an interest
or short position in the Shares or the underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

(1) FRKAEREZGRITFE -

(2) Ying Qi Trustfy %5t AYing Qi PTC
Limited AR FEAF D FAYing Qi
Investments LimitedZ 282 277 I 7N ©
Ying Qi Trust/hlE X A& (ERK
VE)KRUNEEET  EXm ABRE
BREEE A - BEFHFRHAER
B+ 2 Y& % & K Ying Qi PTC Limited
& B #18 ARYing Qi Investments
LimitedFfT #% 4 £9450,000,000% A% {5 =
AR -

(3)  General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte.
Ltd. ([ GASF]) &) Mt — iR & & General
Atlantic Singapore Fund Interholdco Ltd.
([GA Interholdco]) ' GA Interholdco
)1 B B% 3R A General Atlantic Partners
(Bermuda) IV, L.P.([GAP LP ]) = GAP LP
K] R A % A BGeneral Atlantic Genpar
(Bermuda), L.P. ([GA Genpar|) = &GA
Genpart) F @& # A HGap (Bermuda)
Limited o FE L - RIEFE 5 R EAE &0
GA Interholdco ~ GAP LP ~ GA Genpar
NGap (Bermuda) Limited& & #18 &7
GASFH5 4 #9147,000,0000% i 5 # ¥ A
T o

(4) WMZE-_—F+=-—A=+—8 42
BB 1,086,174,481 8B B ITRLD ©

(5 REZFLHEGHIE336HF - —BF
EETHRE BRRETUARIESR
BB WMRARBNREELEESY
M SRR | AN B B 2 A (BR IR
BEZARENSENR) - B RERR
A B RO B T BCRE AT B B K A B B B
X PrACERH) AR A PR R o

BRIAEFEREEN R ZF+=
AZ+—H BFRAQRAERSTHA
B FNNEBREETRARAZEITHA
B4 BEMEMALTRAR T K
HERDTHAE RN AR ABEES X
EEPIE336I(ATENERMAZER
MR TORA -
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As a restaurant chain, we have a large and diverse customer base. Our
revenue derived from our five largest customers accounted for less than
30% of our total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases of food
ingredients and other supplies from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 10.4% of the Group's total purchases from all suppliers
for the same period. The purchases from the Group’s single largest
supplier for the year ended 31 December 2022 accounted for 2.3%
of the Group’s total purchases from all suppliers for the same period.
All of our five largest suppliers are independent third parties. None of
our Directors, any of their close associates or any Shareholders that,
to the knowledge of our Directors, own more than 5% of the issued
share capital of the Company had any interest in any of the five largest
suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DONATION

No donation was made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB1.0 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company, although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

BEEEN

FAUWEITVZKFEEMNEBARA
EHMAEAEZLOEFNEERITH
a4 -

FTEEFRHEERD

EAE—REHEBEE RMHEF —EEX
MmZTtBEER BMREARER
HBRAGERMBEE=_FT__F+=H
=+ —BLEFERRADRI0% -

REBE_FT-_—_F+_H=+T—HLHF
BR - AEBERAEERRNHEEDRE
BM REAMFEM (AL B[R B R 250
JEREFTIEARIENI04% - REBRE
B -+ _A=1+—HIFEM
REBME S ARERAMERBMGA
SERBmEHEERMEERED
23% B ARHEFHBRELE=
HeoRBE_ZTE-_—_F+=-A=+—H
IEFEAN BEEE FENERER
HBAXIBEEMAHEE RNLQA5%MA
B BT IR AN B9 £ (AT AR R A ME ] K
ERPHEE AR -

BR
rEEREBEE_TE-_—_F+-_A=+—
AIEFERATEFERBR(ZE_—F

ARBI10AET) °
BriERE

ARAEHERANT ERBELER
BNEX  BERSHEERLENLA
BARE A BRI -
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

Restaurant operations are highly service-oriented, therefore the
Directors believe that the ability to attract, motivate and retain a
sufficient number of qualified employees, including restaurant managers
and operational personnel, is critical to the success of the Group's
business. The Company will continue to seek, to retain and attract
qualified employees, particularly restaurant staff and operational
personnel, by increasing efforts in recruitment and human resources
management, further its career advancement program and establish
a clearly identifiable long-term career path to motivate its employees,
implement a rigorous evaluation program to identify suitable candidates
for promotion, offer long-term equity incentive plans and tailored
compensation packages and offer training programs tailored to specific
needs of our employees’ career development. The Company also
provides various incentives through share incentive schemes to better
motivate its employees.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Particulars of the employee retirement benefits of the Group are set out
in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report
and based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the minimum public float of 25% as required under the Listing Rules.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'S SECURITIES
AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Incentives” above,
at no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executive of the
Company or their respective associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, nor did the Company enter into
any equity-linked agreement.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective associates
had interests in businesses, which compete or are likely to compete
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty,
or supposed duty, in their respective offices, pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company. Such provisions were in force throughout
the year ended 31 December 2022 and are currently in force. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought against the
Directors.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
1. Framework Cooperation Agreement

On 11 January 2021, the Company entered into the Framework
Cooperation Agreement (the “Framework Cooperation
Agreement”) with Tea Mi Tea (HK) Holdings Co., Limited (“Tea
Mi Tea (HK)"”, a company wholly owned by Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, a
substantial Shareholder and an executive Director, and is therefore
a connected person of the Company) for the sale of ingredients
needed for the production of the tea beverages and tea snack
products that are currently selling and/or expected to be sold at
the Group’s restaurants (the “Tea Beverages and Tea Snacks”),
pursuant to which (i) Tea Mi Tea (HK) agreed to provide relevant
operational support, primarily (a) recipes of Tea Beverages and Tea
Snacks and proprietary know-how as to the on-site preparation of
Tea Beverages and Tea Snacks; (b) advices on development of new
products of Tea Beverages and Tea Snacks; and (c) staff training
in respect of operation workflow at the restaurants, to the Group;
(i) Tea Mi Tea (HK) granted to the Company and its subsidiaries
a non-transferable right to use trademarks owned by Tea Mi Tea
(HK) to produce and sell Tea Beverages and Tea Snacks; and (iii)
the Company agreed to share 5% of the revenue from the sales
of Tea Beverages and Tea Snacks at the Group’s restaurants
with Tea Mi Tea (HK). The Framework Cooperation Agreement is
for a term commencing from 11 January 2021 to 31 December
2023. The annual caps under the Framework Cooperation
Agreement in respect of the three years ending 31 December
2023 are RMB45,000,000, RMB55,000,000 and RMB68,000,000,
respectively. The fees payable under the Framework Cooperation
Agreement will be billed every calendar month, which shall be paid
within five business days of the settlement day. The Company shall
pay the amount due upon receipt of the invoice issued by Tea Mi
Tea (HK). For the year ended 31 December 2022, the actual fees
paid by the Group under the Framework Cooperation Agreement
amounted to RMB30.5 million. The transactions contemplated
under the Framework Cooperation Agreement also constitute the
related party transactions of the Company under the International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), details of which are set
out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Licensing Agreement

On 14 December 2020, Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (HK)
Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Xiabuxiabu HK") and Coucou (HK) Holdings
Co., Limited (“Coucou HK"), wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company, separately entered into the Licensing Agreements with
Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Co. Ltd. (the “JV Subsidiary”, a company
indirectly owned as to 40% by Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, a substantial
Shareholder and an executive Director, and is therefore a connected
person of the Company) (the “Licensing Agreements”), pursuant
to which Xiabuxiabu HK and Coucou HK grant to the JV Subsidiary a
non-transferable right and license to use the Trademarks owned by
Xiabuxiabu HK and Coucou HK in connection with the production and
sale of Condiment Products and Instant Foods for a term commencing
from 1 January 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023. Xiabuxiabu
HK and Coucou HK shall charge a royalty equaling 1% of the total
revenue of the JV Subsidiary generated from the sale of Condiment
Products and Instant Foods. The total royalties payable by the JV
Subsidiary to the Company pursuant to the Licensing Agreements
are expected to be no more than RMB3,240,000, RMB5,280,000
and RMB8,160,000 for the years ending 31 December 2021, 2022
and 2023, respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
actual royalties received by the Group under the Licensing Agreements
amounted to RMB1.4 million.

Framework Purchase Agreement

On 14 December 2020, the Company entered into the Framework
Purchase Agreement (the “Framework Purchase Agreement”)
with the JV Subsidiary, pursuant to which the JV Subsidiary
agreed to sell, and the Company (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries (other than the JV Company and the JV Subsidiary))
agreed to purchase, certain condiment products and instant foods
from the JV Subsidiary for sale in the Group’s restaurants. The
Framework Purchase Agreement shall have a term commencing
from 1 January 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023. The
annual cap for the total purchase of condiment products and
instant foods by the Group from the JV Subsidiary pursuant
to the Framework Purchase Agreement shall be no more than
RMB38,000,000, RMB44,550,000 and RMB59,400,000 for the
years ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023, respectively. For
the year ended 31 December 2022, the total purchase under the
Framework Purchase Agreement amounted to RMB6.1 million.

Bt E
—E-FTF+-_AF+WTAB AR
EES NN LR G
B (HB) ERER A ([ E e
ﬁ Bl REE(EB) ERER
Bl ([EEEB]) » 5l &g g R
m$l>ﬁ%ﬁm®ﬂﬁéﬁw
BAT]  —XBAETERERHIT
EEE N A AR EERIO%ER
BAR WMAKRARBEEAL) I
ST ((SHE]) - Btk
BEEHEEEREEZEERTEE
BB A BT ] SRR A I I R AR
UMEERBEEANERLIRR
SR F R R DR 0 B 8 MR E BB AT
HENEIZ HRAE T -_—F
—HA—ARE-_ZET-_=F+=A
Zt+—H1 - BHBHES R EE
EEBWBEERECENE R A
%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁw
H1I%HNBETFEB - EEWBERT
RIEFTmEEN AR BB
EBEEBHNEHE T - —F -
B FR_E_=F+_-A
Z+—BLFESFTBAARE
3,240,0007T * A R #5,280,0007TC
,&Aﬁﬁsmommn HE_Z
T —F+ZA=+—BLtFE- K
EEREFTHRIE TERERE
HEABARBI4BET -

ERBEHR

RZE-ZFF+-F+WTH AR
RIEAEH B ARG IELEE
Z(ELBEHZE] B &8
WBARIRERE mMARA (A
EXGRRREMBRAR(AER
RAEAEWBRRKRIN) BAER
EENBRARBEETANER X
HERR  WEAEBENEEHETT
HE - EXBEMENHRE -

——F—HA—HBEBE-ZT_-_=F
+=—A=+—Bilt-BE-_T=-—
F_EBE_FR_F=F+=
A=Z+—BHIFE AEEREIE
REEMENSENBRARBER
PMEMMINEERAENFEE
IR RIS 1B A R #38,000,000
T - AR #44,550,0007T B A R
59,400,000t e B E T = —
+-—A=+—HIFE EXEE
HRETRARESEAARK1H
BT °

77;

DA

2022 ANNUAL REPORT —ZE=—4%% 69



Directors’ Report
EEZERE

Renewed Lease Agreement

On 30 April 2017, Xiabuxiabu Catering Management Co.,
Ltd. (“Xiabu Beijing”, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company) entered into a renewed lease agreement (the
“"Renewed Lease Agreement”) with Xiabuxiabu Fast Food
Chain Management Co., Ltd. (“Xiabu Fast Food”, a company
wholly owned by Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, a substantial Shareholder
and an executive Director, and is therefore a connected person
of the Company) to lease the factory located at Suncun Industrial
Development Zone, Huangcun Town, Daxing District, Beijing,
PRC with a total area of 7,066.75 square meters for a term of
three years commencing on 1 May 2017 and renewed on 1 May
2020. The leased property is used for industrial purpose and
which is utilized by Xiabu Beijing as the food processing plant
and warehouse. The monthly rental under the Renewed Lease
Agreement is RMB100,000. The transactions under the lease
agreement and the Renewed Lease Agreement constitute de
minimis continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules. For the year ended 31 December 2022,
the actual rental paid by the Group under the Renewed Lease
Agreement amounted to RMB1.2 million. The transactions under
the Renewed Lease Agreement also constitute related party
transactions of the Company under IFRSs, details of which are set
out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors, the
continuing connected transactions above were entered into by the
Group:

(i)

70

in the ordinary and usual course of its business;
on normal commercial terms; and
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such

transactions and on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Further, the Board has engaged the auditor of the Company to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transaction in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules.

A copy of the auditor’s letter on the continuing connected transactions
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions, the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules in
force from time to time.

The Company followed the policies and guidelines as set out in the
Guidance Letter 73-14 issued by the Stock Exchange when determining
the price and terms of the continuing connected transactions during the
year under review.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual
report form part of this Directors’ report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year set out in Note 37 to the financial statements include
transactions that constitute continuing connected transactions for which
the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have
been complied with.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu who shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offered themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board
Ho Kuang-Chi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance by focusing on principles of integrity, accountability,
transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness. The Company
has developed and implemented sound governance policies and
measures, and the Board is responsible for performing such corporate
governance duties. The Board will continue to review and monitor
the corporate governance of the Company, as well as various internal
policies and procedures, including but not limited to those applicable to
employees and Directors, with reference to the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and
other applicable legal and regulatory requirements so as to maintain a
high standard of corporate governance of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company complied
with the applicable code provisions of Part 2 of the Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except for a deviation from code
provision C.2.1 of the Code which states that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

As Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, the founder of the Company, is familiar with
and has extensive knowledge and experience in the Group’s business,
the Board considers that vesting the roles of both chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer in the same person provides the
Group with strong and consistent leadership and facilitates the
implementation and execution of our Group’s business strategy.
The balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by the
operations of the senior management and the Board, which comprises
experienced and high-caliber individuals. As at the date of this report,
the Board comprises an executive Director (i.e. Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi),
two non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors and therefore has a fairly strong independence element in
its composition. Furthermore, decisions of the Board are made by way
of majority votes. The Board will nevertheless review the Company’s
structure from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstances.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company for the purpose of complying with the Code and maintaining
a high standard of corporate governance practices of the Company.
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CORPORATE CULTURE

The Board plays a leading role in defining the purpose, values and
strategic direction of the Company and in shaping and fostering a
culture to instil and continually reinforce values of acting lawfully,
ethically and responsibly across the Company. Such culture of the
Company is developed and reflected consistently in the operating
practices of the Group, workplace policies and practices as well as
relationship with stakeholders, including but not limited to code
of conduct for employees, corporate culture incentive scheme,
remuneration policy for Directors and employees, whistleblowing and
anti-corruption policy and shareholders’ communication policy.

As at the date of this report, the Board has reviewed and considered
that the corporate culture of the Company is aligned with the purpose,
value and strategy of the Group.

DIVERSITY
Board Diversity Policy

The Company has formulated and adopted the board diversity policy for
compliance with the Listing Rules and the code provisions of the Code
concerning the diversity of Board members. The board diversity policy
sets out the approach adopted by the Board regarding diversity of Board
members.

The Board continuously seeks to enhance its effectiveness and to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance and recognizes
diversity at Board level as an essential element in maintaining
competitive advantage and sustainable development. In designing
the Board’s composition, board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, industry experience, technical and
professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge, length of services
and time to be devoted as a Director of the Company. The Company
will also take into account factors relating to its own business model
and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. Pursuant to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the Board
maintained and achieved the gender balance of Directors with at least 3
female Directors during the reporting period. Furthermore, the Directors
whose ages range from 42 years old to 63 years old have varying
education background from economics, business administration and
law with different industry backgrounds, including food and beverage,
accounting and financial management.

The Board strives to ensure that it has the appropriate balance of skills,
experience, knowledge and diversity of perspectives that are required
to support the execution of its business strategies and in order for the
Board to be effective.

ot 34

EZgXMEARANTRE  BEERL
REETRARBERBEERAEEZR
AERIY TERETERTERE A
BREABLBEEENTAERE L&E
EXTEBEMA - ARANXIERAKER
REFER THESHABREEERNARA
FOENBERTSAEMBER KRR -
BRETERNEETRAER  £EXIL
HEEE EENEENFMEEK £
N B BRI R R B BIR

RAREAH EFSERTAR/AE
RAIMEEXLEAEENRE - EE
B RmE — 5 o

%51t
EEERESZTIBE
ARABEHIELRMNEETEREZ T
BR  NBTETRAINRZTHEEE
EFENEZ TN TRRT - EFEHK
BETEBESBIEETEREEENE
Z AL MR AN BV HE B ©

EZSTHESHRAERE  #FFK
ENEEER UAPEEEEENS
T DRAKHFEZLAFEER
MMBBETLR - ARAEREEETGHEK
RiezEITmEEEETEXNBEZ Tl
BRERETRRMER  Fik XMEEHE
BR TEER RWREERERS
HER  ABARREFRAREEAR
AESERANKE - ARF T E B H
EAGEBEARIENABERERH
MR E » REREFHABAES BRA -
WEBMKEOAEREHEZTSHELN
BEE - REBELMRAUE1325G EFS
RE/LBEREEOERFE > RREH
MELAMLMEES - Mo FENTF
RA2BECENEZHALE THE
BANRERETRAHBEES  FREK
S MMBERESBITE -

E=ZENREREAAEENRE &
B HMBERBHZTA EtMREES
BUTHERBRE SEFERTAX
BAIE -

2022 ANNUAL REPORT —Z=—%%% /3



Corporate Governance Report
TRER/RRE

Diversity Across Workforce

The Company upholds the concept of diversity employment, and
adopts a variety of approaches to attract suitable talents with diverse
background. The Company prohibits any discrimination on ground of
age, gender, geographical region, cultural background, religion or other
factors, and steps up efforts to create an innovative, open, diverse,
equal and harmonious work environment. As at 31 December 2022,
the ratio of women to men in the workforce (excluding Directors of the
Company) was 61:39. Details of employee distribution structure are set
out in the ESG Report 2022 of the Company.

LINKAGE BETWEEN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AND ESG

Corporate governance provides the framework within which the Board
forms their decisions and develops our businesses. The entire Board has
focused on maintaining long-term sustainable growth for shareholders
and delivering long-term values to all relevant stakeholders. The Board
believes that effective corporate governance structure facilitates the
Company to have a better understanding of assessing and managing
risks and opportunities, including environmental and social risks and
opportunities.

The Board is responsible for the development of ESG strategy and
reporting thereon and is also responsible for reviewing and making
decisions on the material ESG-related issues of the Company. The
ESG working group of the Company is responsible for reporting the
ESG matters to the Board, covering employees, food safety, public
welfare and other ESG issues of various departments. During the
reporting period, the ESG development of the Group including the
ESG performance and reporting as well as the different sustainability
disclosure standards were discussed and reviewed by the Board at the
Board meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board has general powers
for the management and conduct of the Company’s business. The
day-to-day operations and management are delegated by the Board to
the management of the Company, who will implement the strategy and
direction as determined by the Board.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board consisted of six Directors, namely
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi (Chairman and chief executive officer) as executive
Director, Ms. Chen Su-Yin and Ms. Li Jie as non-executive Directors,
and Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence, Ms. Cheung Sze Man and Mr. Kot Man
Tat as independent non-executive Directors. The Board has a balance of
skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Company. The Company has also adopted a board diversity policy to
set out the approach adopted by the Board regarding diversity of Board
members. Details of board diversity policy are set out in the section
headed “Diversity — Board Diversity Policy” above.

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, Chairman, executive Director and chief executive
officer of the Company, is the husband of Ms. Chen Su-Yin, a
non-executive Director. Save as disclosed, no Board member has a
relationship with the other Board members and the chief executive of
the Company.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 38 to 41 of this
annual report.
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The executive Director, Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, has entered into a service
contract with the Company on 28 November 2014, which was renewed
in 2017 and 2020 for a further term of three years. The Company has
issued letters of appointment to each of the non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Chen Su-Yin on 28 November 2014 which was renewed
in 2017 and 2020 for a further term of three years, and Ms. Li Jie on
25 November 2022 for a term of three years. The Company has also
issued letters of appointment to each of the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence and Ms. Cheung Sze Man
on 28 November 2014, which was renewed in 2017 and 2020 for a
further term of three years, and Mr. Kot Man Tat on 1 April 2022,
respectively for a term of three years.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to
pension schemes, share-based compensation expenses, discretionary
bonuses, housing and other allowances and other benefits in kind)
payable to the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately RMB9.1 million.
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The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference
to salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and performance of the Group. Details
of the remuneration of the Directors for 2022 are set out in Note 14
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to code
provision E.1.5 of the Code, the annual remuneration of members of
the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December 2022
is set out below:

EEFM AL EAELB AT
e EZFNHEBRARBEURAE
EMRRBE - T —_FEZMHMW
HBENEAMBRRM L4 1 oh -
BIEZTRIR ST RMESCEEN5E - HE
B —F+ - A=+—BIFEESR
EEEKNENTEHMBESHINNAT ¢

Number of senior

management

Remuneration band member

BREEE

FMEE KE#HE

HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 2
1,000,001 75 21,500,000 7t

HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 2

1,500,0017% £ £2,000,000/% Jr
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000
2,000,001 7t 2,500,000 7T

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure independent views
and input are available to the Board and such mechanisms will be
reviewed annually by the Board. Directors are encouraged to express
their views during the Board/Board Committees meetings. The Board
has separate and independent access to the senior management and
the Company Secretary at all times. All Directors are entitled to retain
independent professional advisors as and when it is required. A Director
who has material interest in any contract, transaction or arrangement
shall abstain from voting and not be counted in the quorum on any
Board resolution approving the same. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Company has three independent non-executive
Directors, which meets the requirement of the Listing Rules that the
number of independent non-executive directors must represent at least
one-third of the Board and should not be less than three.

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and considers them to be independent.
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Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures are followed. The company secretary
of the Company is Ms. Tam Shuk Wah Carrie. She is a corporate
services director of Incorp Hong Kong Limited, and is responsible for
provision of corporate secretarial and compliance services to clients. Her
primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Ho Kuang-
Chi, Chairman, executive Director and chief executive officer of the
Company. In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Tam
has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The records of the continuous professional development trainings that
have been received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December
2022 are summarised as follows:

ERMESARWENRE  UHERE
BEEGRERF AARMARWERE
MELZL - FEEEXNILAERAAND
¥RGrs aEARPREEARWE
FERREE - ERARBHNEB QA
BABRRBIER WOTEERITHR
B A - RIFELETRAIE3 2905
ELtTRBE_E_—_F+-_A=+—
HEFEREZ2MA LRI/ EEER
ES

BE_T__F+_A=1+—HIFE
EFAMEIFEIRBREIEIC oML
LN

Director Type of Training*
= b= | bich
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi v/
BREKE

Ms. Chen Su-Yin v/
PREERL T+

Ms. Li Jie v/
FRELL

Mr. Zhang Chi (resigned on 25 November 2022) -
R dE (W2 F+—A=+HABEMT)

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence v/
BINE KL

Ms. Cheung Sze Man 4
RSt

Mr. Kot Man Tat v
BXGERYE

Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun (retired on 1 April 2022)
HEELxL+(R-_ZT-_—_FWA—AEM)

* During the year ended 31 December 2022, all Directors received training
and training materials, including from the Company’s external legal adviser,
about matters relevant to their duties as directors of a listed company
and the update on the Listing Rules. They also kept abreast of matters
relevant to their role as Directors by such means as attendance at seminars
and conferences and/or reading materials about financial, commercial,
economic, legal, regulatory and business matters.

The Company will continue to arrange suitable training for all Directors
in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as part of
their continuous professional development.
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In 2022, the Company convened and held one general meeting, being
the 2022 annual general meeting held on 1 June 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board held eight
meetings to discuss and approve, among others, the overall strategies
and policies of the Company, as well as to review and approve the
Company’s 2021 annual report, 2021 annual results announcement,
the payment of final dividend, 2022 interim report, 2022 interim results
announcement and the payment of interim dividend.

The table below sets out the details of general meetings and Board
meetings attendance of each Director during the year ended 31
December 2022:

RZZTBEZZF - ARAEBRAKETT —
KR RKE IR T - —FA—H
BTN T __FREBAFAE -

RBE-_T_—_F+-A=+— E¢$
EW*%%@%ﬁTA&Q%MW‘
o (B B 4E) AR R B8R R
ﬁ'ﬁ§%&H&$®7fE:—$¢
W T FFERELE RER
HEE T —FhH T
FEREAERREFHRE
TERFIRBEE_FT - _F+ A

St ALERERNEEFEERAAE
REFERHNFE:

Number of meetings
attended/eligible to attend

HEAEREEEBRAH
Director General meetings Board meetings
E=x BRRAE Exeed
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi 171 8/8
BREKE
Ms. Chen Su-Yin I7Al 8/8
PRERZ T
Ms. Li Jie (re-designated on 25 November 2022) - -
FRELLT (RZZB_ZF+—-A-THBERT)
Mr. Zhang Chi (resigned on 25 November 2022) 1*/1 8*/8
Rtk E (RZEZZF+—AZ+RHBHT)
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence 11 8/8
BINE KL
Ms. Cheung Sze Man 11 8/8
RETB L+
Mr. Kot Man Tat (appointed on 1 April 2022) 171 4/4

BxEsE (R E-—FMNA—AEZE)
Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun (retired on 1 April 2022)
HEEZT (R __FWA—HRIE)

- 2/4

* One general meeting and eight Board meetings were attended by his
alternate Director, Ms. Li Jie.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code. The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code and written employee guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three principal Board committees, namely the

Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Each of the Board committees operates under its terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are available
on the website of the Company and that of the Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. As at 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee
consisted of three members, being two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence and Mr. Kot Man Tat
and one non-executive Director, namely Ms. Li Jie. Mr. Hon Ping Cho
Terence has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise,
and provide an independent view of the effectiveness of, the financial
reporting process and risk management and internal control systems
of the Group, oversee the audit process and perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by our Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee held
two meetings to consider the Company’s 2021 annual report, 2021
annual results announcement, 2022 interim report and 2022 interim
results announcement. The Audit Committee also assessed the risk
management and internal control measures of the Company, as well as
the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Company.

The table below sets out the details of meetings attendance of each
member of the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December
2022:
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SRETAEZLTESEF -EZZETE
CMEIEH I AR RERAESEN
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Wt Ml S ENREELRBLIESR
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BEHAE AT o
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N_E - _FRHEENE  -EZRETE
§W§$¢§T$ —JE'/]J—L AAEE&W%B%
2 E A R AR B N BB EE AT B RS 2 AR o

TREINREBEE-_ZT-__F+_A4
—t+-HIEFEASEZZEGRE D
}E = ni‘ﬁt §$'|% :

Number of meetings

Director attended/eligible to attend
=<3 HECEREESRRH
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence 2/2
B IR AR 5

Mr. Kot Man Tat (appointed on 1 April 2022) 171
BNiESFE(R_ZE-__FMA—REZT)

Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun (retired on 1 April 2022) 11
HEELT(RZTZZFWUA—HRME)

Ms. Li Jie (re-designated on 25 November 2022) -
FRUT(RZZE_ZF+—AZ+HBEHRD)

Mr. Zhang Chi (resigned on 25 November 2022) 2*/2

RS E (RZE_ZF+— A+ HBEE)

* Two meetings were attended by his alternate Director, Ms. Li Jie.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules. As
at 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee consisted of two
independent non-executive Directors, being Ms. Cheung Sze Man and
Mr. Kot Man Tat, and one executive Director, being Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi,
who is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee are to review and assess the composition
of the Board and the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and make recommendation to the Board on the appointment
and removal of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee
held two meetings to review the Board structure and the board diversity
policy, the independence of the independent non-executive Directors,
and to recommend the re-election of the retiring Directors and the
appointment of independent non-executive Director.

The table below sets out the details of meeting attendance of each
member of the Nomination Committee during the year ended 31
December 2022:

REEZES

RABRE TR BISE3.27AKATH Z
SRR REBZES Wil U EMERE
HE N_TZ—_FF+=-A=+—8"
REAZECHMBBIIERNTES (A
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BEFE (BN EEE) B - BXELE
ARREZEZEEITR RRRZEEWMTE
BEARTAFHEETSHEM LB ILIE
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Number of meetings

Director attended/eligible to attend
E=x HERERLEEBERY
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi 2/2
BREEE

Ms. Cheung Sze Man 2/2
Rt

Mr. Kot Man Tat (appointed on 1 April 2022) -
EXERE(RZT__FHA—HEZE)

Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun (retired on 1 April 2022) 1/2

WEELLT(RF-__FWA—BEME)
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Nomination Process

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”), which sets out the approach to guide the Nomination
Committee in relation to the selection, appointment and re-appointment
of the Directors.

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
appointment of a Director in accordance with the following procedures
and process as set out in the Nomination Policy:

(i)  the Nomination Committee will, giving the consideration to the
current composition, diversity and size of the Board, develop a
list of desirable skills, perspectives and experience at the outset to
focus the search effort on suitable candidates;

(i) the Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertisements, recommendations
from an independent agency firm and proposals from
Shareholders;

(iii) the Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such
as conducting interviews, background checks, presentations and
third-party reference checks;

(iv) upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the
Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/ or by way of
written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation
to the Board for appointment;

(v) the Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment; and

(vi) the Board will have the final authority in determining the selection
of nominees and all appointment of Directors will be confirmed by
the filing of the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director
(or any other similar filings requiring the relevant Director to
acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director, as the case
may be).

Nomination Criteria

In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit against
objective criteria and with due regards to the benefits of diversity on
the Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference (as adopted by the Board on 28 November 2014
and updated with effect from 28 March 2023) in compliance with the
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. As at 31 December
2022, the Remuneration Committee had three members, being two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence
and Ms. Cheung Sze Man, and one executive Director, namely Mr. Ho
Kuang-Chi. Ms. Cheung Sze Man was the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
establish and review the policy and structure of the remuneration for
the Directors and senior management and make recommendations to
the Board on employee benefit arrangement.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee held five meetings to review the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management as well as the policy and structure of
the remuneration for the Directors and senior management.

The table below sets out the details of meetings attendance of each
member of the Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31
December 2022:
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Number of meetings

Director attended/eligible to attend
E=x HERERHEEBERY
Ms. Cheung Sze Man 5/5
RSBt
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi 5/5
BHREKE
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence 5/5
EIMAE L
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied
with the code of conduct during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company’s employees, who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company, have also been subject to the Model Code
for securities transactions. No incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by the Company’s relevant employees was noted by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

INTERNAL CONTROL MEASURES AND
OBSERVANCE OF UNDERTAKINGS RELATING TO
OPENING OF RESTAURANTS

The Company had established its internal control measures in respect
of the management of the licenses and approvals of its restaurants so
as to reduce the risk of penalties from the PRC regulatory authorities
in respect of restaurants that the Company operates. Such internal
control measures include, among others, (i) adopting of the Restaurant
Opening Approval Policy and amending the Licenses and Permits
Management Policy, (ii) compiling and maintaining a list of relevant
licenses and permits that would be required for the commencement of
the operation of a new restaurant, (iii) strengthening the site selection
and approval procedures, (iv) streamlining the development plan and
timetable for opening new restaurants to cater for time required for
applying and obtaining various licenses and permits prior to opening of
new restaurants, and (v) regularly carrying out compliance status review
on individual restaurants and identifying, assessing and monitoring
compliance risks.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has strictly
implemented the above internal control policies and measures relating
to restaurants opening and their operations, and had strictly complied
with and fulfilled the relevant undertakings provided by the Company
with respect to the opening of new restaurants. In particular, the Group
has obtained all the relevant material official licenses and permits prior
to the opening of restaurants.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is appointed as the external auditor of the
Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the fees paid/payable to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu for the audit of the financial statements of the Group
were RMB3.0 million.

Fees paid/payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for non-audit services
provided to the Group in the year were RMB0.8 million. The non-audit
services conducted include the issuance of the ESG report and tax
service.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Pursuant to code provision D.1.3 of the Code, the Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow during the reporting period. A
statement from the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out on pages 91 to 96 of this annual report.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and estimated that are
prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for maintaining sound
and effective internal control and risk management systems in order
to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests and
reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and
risk management systems on an annual basis so as to ensure that
internal control and risk management systems in place are adequate.
The internal control and risk management systems are implemented to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risks (including ESG risks) to which
the Group is exposed. The systems therefore serve to provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatements or losses.
The Company also has an internal audit function which primarily
carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2022, and reports their
findings to the Board on, at least, an annual basis. The management
has provided to the Board such explanation and information as are
necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of
the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the Board for
approval. The Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on Company'’s performance, positions and prospects.
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The Company has established a sound internal control and risk
management system, and formulated internal guidance covering a
full range of operations including restaurant opening, site selection,
procurement, quality control, marketing, finance, treasury activities,
finance and human resources management, with a complete
organizational structure and clear responsibilities and authorizations.
The Group’'s internal control system includes a well-established
organizational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and
authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are entrusted to
individual department which is accountable for its own conduct and
performance and is required to operate its own department’s business
within the scope of the delegated authority and to implement and
strictly adhere to the strategies and policies set by the Company from
time to time. Each department is also required to keep the Board
informed of material developments of the department’s business and
implementation of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a
regular basis.

As the risks faced by the Company stem primarily through various
aspects of its operations, including restaurant opening, site selection,
procurement, quality control, marketing and human resources
management, these departments are in the best position to observe and
identify recent development that might lead to material risks for the
Company, and the management and the Board take into account the
reports made by these departments in assessing and managing the risks.

Procedures to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

(1) Establishment of the risk context: evaluating and reviewing the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group to reduce the costs of operational risk and ensure
compliant operation of the Company.

(2)  Formulation of the risk management policies: ensuring that the
Group carries out consistent procedures and criteria for risk
identification, measurement and reporting.

(3) Identification of the risks: identifying any potential risks of various
business segments and key procedures.

(4) Evaluation on the risks: evaluating and rating the impact on
business and its likelihood of the risks identified.

(5) Response to the risks: evaluating the risk management solutions
and the effectiveness of risk management.

(6) Report and monitor: monitoring and reviewing the policies and
evaluating procedures for risk management, and the measures for
managing and effectiveness of controlling significant risks, and
report the findings to the Board.
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Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Board conducts regular review and assessment of inside
information, discusses with the management or authorized persons
of the Company about disclosure of inside information, reports to the
Board once identified any inside information for dissemination. Inside
information disclosure policies are formulated to provide employees
with guidelines on report and disseminating inside information,
confidentiality and compliance with restrictions on trading.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group to ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated by the
management in compliance with the agreed procedures and standards.
The review covered all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions. In particular,
the Board considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs, budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit, financial reporting functions, as well as those relating to
the ESG performance and reporting of the Company. The review was
made by discussions with the management of the Company, its external
and internal auditors and the assessment conducted by the Audit
Committee. The Board believes that the existing risk management and
internal control systems are adequate and effective, in particular, for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company has established the whistleblowing policy which aims to
encourage and assist employees of the Group or relevant third parties
who deal with the Group with guidance and reporting channels on
reporting any suspected improprieties in any matters related to the
Group directly addressed to the chief executive officer or the Audit
Committee of the Company. The internal audit function will investigate
the reported cases in a confidential and timely manner and report the
results of investigations to the chief executive officer and the Audit
Committee.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Board adopted an anti-corruption policy to outline guidelines and
minimum standards of conducts and the responsibilities of employees
to resist fraud, to help the Group defend against corrupt practices and
to report any reasonably suspected case of fraud and corruption or
any attempts thereof, to the management or through an appropriate
reporting channel. Discussions on the anti-corruption management of
the Company are contained in the ESG Report 2022 of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the dividend policy adopted by the Company, distributions
of dividends are determined at the discretion of the Board. In
determining whether any distribution shall be made and the amount
of dividends, the Board shall take into account the Company’s results
of operations, cash flows, financial condition, capital requirements,
business plans and prospects and any other conditions which the
Board deems relevant. Any declaration and payment as well as the
amount of dividends will be subject to compliance with the Company’s
constitutional documents and the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands.

The Company will evaluate its dividend policy and distributions made
in any particular year in light of its financial position, the prevailing
economic climate and expectations about the future macroeconomic
environment and business performance.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Board may
whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Pursuant
to the articles of association of the Company, extraordinary general
meetings shall also be convened by written requisition to the secretary
of the Company of any one or more members of the Company holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. Such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may convene the extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Boards
hall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

To safeguard Shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions are
and will be proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as
Director is available on the Company’s website (www.xiabu.com).
Shareholders may lodge written proposal to the company secretary
of the Company at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong, provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such written notice is given, shall be at least seven days and
that the lodgement of such notice shall commence no earlier than the
day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the date
of such general meeting. In order to ensure that other shareholders
would have sufficient time to receive and consider the information of
the person proposed for election as a Director, Shareholders are urged
to lodge their written notice of his intention to propose a person for
election as Director as early as practicable in advance of the relevant
general meeting and, in any case, not less than 12 business days (as
defined in the Listing Rules, i.e., day(s) on which the Stock Exchange
is open for business of dealing in securities) before the date scheduled
for holding the relevant general meeting, so that the Company can
complete the verification procedure with the Company’s share registrar,
and procure the publication of an announcement and/or the dispatch
of a supplementary circular to Shareholders in compliance with the
applicable requirements under the Listing Rules. In the event that any
such written notice is received by the Company later than the 12th
business day before the date of holding the relevant general meeting,
the Company will need to consider whether to adjourn the relevant
meeting so as to give Shareholders a notice of at least 10 business days
of the proposal in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATION

Enquiries about the Company may be put to the Board by contacting
the Company or directly by raising the questions at an annual general
meeting or extraordinary general meeting. The contact details of the
Company are set out in the Company’s website (www.xiabu.com).
Shareholders can also direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, whose address is Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
In addition, the Company maintains different sections on its website,
such as “Corporate Governance”, “Investor Relations” and “Press
Releases”, to provide key information and updates of the Company to
its Shareholders.

Further, the Company try to understand investors’ perspective and also
share with them a full picture of business, including the views on market
outlook and the development strategies of the Company, etc. The
Investor Relations team of the Company is committed to maintaining an
open and constructive dialogue with them.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has reviewed
the effectiveness of communication with Shareholders and made
on-going updates to meet the needs of changing circumstance.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Upon the shareholders’ approval by way of special resolution at the
general meeting held on 1 June 2022, the Company has adopted the
amended and restated articles of association, the latest version of which
is available from the website of the Company (www.xiabu.com) and
that of the Stock Exchange.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 BE RS

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO.,
LTD.

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xiabuxiabu
Catering Management (China) Holdings Co., Ltd. (the “Company"”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages
97 to 224, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
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XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., HEEEEREE (PR ZERERA T

LTD. — continued
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BR — &
(RESHEZMALAFRLAE)

BARETEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, — B4 5T 518 S 1B 15 T (79 0 =2 22 ) i -
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial RAUAHAGETBERRNBTRAS
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the EEIE - B ETH S E R IR =
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,  4FABERE K E BB BEHEITRIEH -
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate EfT e s LEHmREHEBZBNER -

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAWETNMMEEEARETER

Impairment of leasehold improvements and right-of-use assets

HEYEREREHEEENRE

We identified the impairment of leasehold improvements
and right-of-use assets as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance on the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022 and the
significant management estimation involved in determining
the recoverable amounts of leasehold improvements and
right-of-use assets.

HR-ZZE__F+_A=1+—HEEMBRRKRM2 RO
SREXR BEFTHEVMERERERAREENAT KD SRS
REREEEMR #EMASHEHEDEEEREREEERE
BRBREFEE -

The Group recorded leasehold improvements and right-of-use
assets of RMB691,657,000 and RMB1,417,290,000 as at 31
December 2022, respectively, and impairment loss amounting
to RMB21,786,000 and RMB30,026,000 were recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2022, respectively.
HEZT-_—_F+-_A=+—H0 ESEHSHEWERER
FRAEEED R AARE91,657,0007T & A R%1,417,290,000
T UVREE—_E - —_F+ A=+ —HBLFEDRERRE
&8 AR #21,786,0007T & A R #30,026,0007T °

As disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
management determined whether leasehold improvements
and right-of-use assets are impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of individual assets or the cash
generating units to which the assets belong using a value in
use calculation. Management'’s estimation is primarily based on
the cash flow projections and the discount rate.
BIGRE T BRRMTANEE EEEECHEREYER
EREEESAHRAE REBEREBEFEUGAERE
EXFBEEMBREELAETNHATRECHE - EREMN LT
FEERREREBARREMEDL -

Our procedures in relation to impairment of
leasehold improvements and right-of-use assets
included:
B EEMERERCAEEERBEMETHIE
FFEiE

o Inquiring the management on their
identification of impairment indication
and their method used for the impairment
assessment of leasehold improvements and
right-of-use assets;
REEBRNRETRREAEEMEERE
MEREEENRENGMABL L HER
EHEITER

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the
valuation methodology and assumption of
pre-tax discount rate used in determining the
recoverable amount;

T & 8 7 AT W Bl & #A AT R AR Al (B 75 0K R B AT
MIRERBROVEESE

o Evaluating the appropriateness of other key
assumption and input, including the growth
rate of revenue by comparing to historical
performance and relevant operation plans.
FEEBERTRRBBALETEETHER
ATl E A B SRR K i A BUR (B IR WAL 1E)
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO.,
LTD. — continued

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO.,
LTD. — continued

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO.,
LTD. — continued

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO.,
LTD. — continued

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lung, Wing Hung David.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REeBEsEREMEEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_S__F+_A=1+—HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B £ ARET T ARETF T
Revenue A 5 4,724,834 6,147,262
Other income E g A 7 120,551 103,767
Raw materials and consumables used B B B & & 1 (1,798,872) (2,341,334)
Staff costs 8 TRk AR 11 (1,553,543) (1,829,717)
Property rentals and related expenses )2 & M HEREFH 11 (251,793) (298,069)
Utilities expenses NAEXEER (177,465) (201,567)
Depreciation and amortisation e N5y 11 (963,551) (1,052,911)
Other expenses HMp X 8 (356,004) (441,814)
Other gains and losses H W zs L EE 9 (16,498) (206,708)
Finance costs B 75 B AN 10 (78,594) (92,562)
Loss before tax FAEE 11 (350,935) (213,653)
Income tax benefit (expense) FrEfiE e (FAx) 12 19,747 (69,480)
Loss for the year FE N EE (331,188) (283,133)
Total comprehensive expense for FRZMEB XA
the year (331,188) (283,133)
(Loss) profit for the year RTFALTEAEER
attributable to: (fE548) F@ :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE = IN (353,052) (293,212)
Non-controlling interest VAR HE = 21,864 10,079
(331,188) (283,133)
Total comprehensive (expense) DTATEMGZE (AX)
income attributable to: N
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZF=IN (353,052) (293,212)
Non-controlling interest FE 12 A% A 2 21,864 10,079
(331,188) (283,133)
Loss per share BRER
— basic (RMB cents per share) — ER(BRARES) 13 (33.42) (27.28)
— diluted (RMB cents per share) —HE(BERARE D) 13 (33.42) (27.28)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE KRR ER
As at 31 December 2022
WZZE_—F+=A=+—8H

As at 31 December

BR+=-—A=+—H
2022 2021
—EC-_F T —4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 AR%T ARBET T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BENERE 16 961,235 1,052,577
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 17 1,417,290 1,638,334
Intangible assets BmEE 2,010 2,403
Deferred tax assets RAEF IHE B 18 73,222 43,020
Rental deposits e e 19 175,373 169,582
Financial assets at fair value through BBEZIEAFEFZ
profit or loss (“FVTPL") ([FREREBEAFE
TR ZEREE 22 100,014 =
Interest in a joint venture NESDHE 7R 34 49,149 49,000
2,778,293 2,954,916
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 20 614,486 598,962
Trade and other receivables and B 5 e AR 30 K A fE U
prepayments TRIE LA K FE A 5RIE 21 264,943 394,790
Restricted bank balances PR I ER 1T A5 55 23 61,521 66,268
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReEE 24 300,706 920,533
Financial assets at FVTPL FEBBRIEZEAFESZE
LERMEE 22 290,189 15,832
1,531,845 1,996,385
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables 5 EMNERR 25 242,734 250,694
Accrual and other payables FEtE R N EMESHIE 26 542,955 603,868
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 493,231 509,492
Income tax payables IS TS HL 35,741 10,111
Contract liabilities EXEEAE 28 399,934 316,640
Deferred income RIEU A 29 1,277 1,277
Bank borrowings RITHE 30 58,678 75,804
1,774,550 1,767,886
Net current (liabilities) assets HRE(AB EESE (242,705) 228,499
Total assets less current liabilities B&EERREB AR 2,535,588 3,183,415
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As at 31 December 2022
WZZE_—F+=A=+—8H

As at 31 December

Rt+=-—B=+—H
2022 2021
—E_ = —_F-—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7 AR%T ARBET T
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income PR IE WA 29 23,756 25,033
Lease liabilities HEEE 27 933,989 1,089,793
Deferred tax liabilities REHIBERE 18 = 3,958
Provisions B 31 56,422 53,329
1,014,167 1,172,113
Net assets EEZEE 1,521,421 2,011,302
Capital and reserves EXKHE
Share capital % A% 32 176 176
Share premium and reserves IR 1 5 1B M RE 1,457,667 1,969,412
Equity attributable to owners of the &R B A EIG#ES
Company 1,457,843 1,969,588
Non-controlling interest JEFE PG RE S 63,578 41,714
Total equity RS 1,521,421 2,011,302

The consolidated financial statements on pages 97-224 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 28 March 2023
and are signed on its behalf by:

BN EFEITE224B 2 IR A T HMKRE R
BFEeN _TE_=F=A-_+NBHtE

REEEMN I

HTIIEFARESE

Ho Kuang-Chi Chen Su-Yin
Bk PR 3= 3%
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EBEF BEF
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S A ilE 3L 4
REERBER
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-Z-—F+-A=+—HUFE

“Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the company

ARAREARGE
Equity-
settled
share-based ~ Statutory  Treasury Non-
Share Share  payments  surplus share  Retained controlling
Capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interest Total
N
BENRS
RERM EE ER
kx  BRHEE AREE BHEE  ROBE  REEA @it FERER &t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TRE ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR AR¥Tn AR¥TR
(Note)
(&)
At 1 January 2021 W_F--5-A-H 175 42,1 25,561 44670 (68,123) 1,844,326 2,318,880 21,288 2,340,168
(Loss) profit for the year En(BE)HE - - - - - 93212 93212 10,079 (283,133)
Total comprehensive (expense) A 2HE (A1)
income for the year KA#% - - - - - (93210 (93212 10079 (283,133
Recognition of equity-settled RAREEEL KD
share-based payments BERRAT - - 8,778 = = = 8,778 = 8778
Exercise of issued share option  {TEE #{1ER#E 1 8,513 (2,584) = - = 5,930 = 5,930
Exercise of RSU Scheme X BHIRG Efzt 2
(os defined in Note 33) (R&AME) - M) (300 - 15191 - - - -
Payments of dividends (Note 15) K& & (Ki3E15) - (60,000 - - - - (60,000) - (60,000
Purchase of treasury share REZRHRG &l
under RSU Scheme BEE LU - - - - (10789) - (10,788) - (10788)
Capital injection from FRRERTE
non-controlling interest - - - - - - - 10,347 10,347
Appropriation of statutory RIEERARE
surplus reserve - - - 2,496 - (2,496) - - -
At 31 December 2021 RZF=-F12
== 176 418,614 18,734 47,166 (63,720) 1548618 1,969,588 a4 2,011,302
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\  /
&@
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE
Attributable to owners of the company
ARAREARGE
Equity-
settled
share-based ~ Statutory  Treasury Non-
Share Share  payments surplus share  Retained controlling
Capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interest Total
HRE
GENRR

REEMD LR L1
Bx  RftEE GREE  BHEEE  ROER  REEW i FeRRs it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETL ARETZ ARET:

(Note)
(W)
(Loss) profit for the year ER(BE)FIE - = - = - (353,052) (353052) 21,864 (331,189
Total comprehensive (expense) M2 (%)
income for the year KA#% - - - - - (353052) (353052) 21864 (331,188)
Recognition of equity-settled RAREEEL R
share-based payments BEBOMAH = - 4,838 - - - 4,838 - 4,838
Exercise of issued share option  {TEE #{1ER#E - 1,089 (338) = - = 751 = 751
Brercise of RSU Scheme TR R HIR A Bt 3l - 4618 (10,626) - 6,008 - - - -
Payments of dividends (Note 15) JE(TAR & (Ft3k15) - (60,000) = = = - (60,000) - (60,000)
Purchase of treasury share REXRH R Bzt 2
under RUS Scheme (Note 33) ~ BEERFR - - - - (104282) - (104282) - (104282)
Appropriation of statutory RIEERARE
surplus reserve - - - 2,314 - (2,314 - - -
At 31 December 2022 ot a2 g
=t+-8 176 364,321 12,608 49,480  (161,994) 1,193,252 1,457,843 63,578 1,521,421
Note: Ff=E -

According to the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) Company Law and the  BIEFFEARAME (THE]) R RDERKE
Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group, these companies E W%’Aﬂﬁ’g%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁiﬂ‘] A
are required to transfer 10% of their respective after-tax profits, calculated in %aﬁﬁ%g *ETE?@EH?fE%?LE%WW G
accordance with the relevant accounting principles and financial regulations gEJFE"?‘LJ&E\M%%%EEJFEE’\]m%ﬂﬁmlp%
applicable to entities established in the PRC, to the statutory surplus reserve until %A;ﬁmﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ ’ Egﬁ%%’%mﬁ%?&ﬂ o fi

' BARM50%  KLEBEEBAILER X ERR

the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The statutory surplus BB AR S EER R INZEA DY
reserve can be utilised, upon approval of the relevant authorities, to offset SMER MR EEG T DERSESRE
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of these companies, provided IR25% B 7k S o

that such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered capital.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z_—_F+-A=+—BHItFE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
=2—_- —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR% T ARBTT
Operating activities R
Loss before tax Ay (E18) FHE (350,935) (213,653)
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of property, ME BERZETE
plant and equipment 400,669 464,925
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 561,449 586,365
Impairment loss, net of reversal REEE - HEREE
— property, plant and equipment — ME  BEMKRE 23,274 64,981
— right-of-use assets — ERAEEE 30,026 54,447
— other receivables — H b fE U R IE (259) 17,662
— rental deposit —HeHe 5,328 13,439
Losses on disposal of inventories HEFEER 7,323 -
Amortisation of intangible assets A 1,433 1,621
Recognition of equity-settled TR L/{Hx% & E DA BR D AR
share-based payments El’]ﬁ K 4,838 8,778
Interest income on bank deposit HRATE KA E WA (4,399) (3,782)
Interest income on financial asset REBEKATTENE M
at amortised cost BEMFEWA (5,575) (7,078)
Gain from changes in fair value EBRERZAFLEFENS R
of financial assets at FVTPL BEEMNATFEZEISHMAERS (14,000) (5,965)
Government grant released from deferred 5 & %E Ug A % [0 &9 B2 AT 48 B
income (1,277) (1,818)
Foreign exchange (gain) loss, net & 5 E51E - FRE (4,793) 8,095
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BERREEHE -
plant and equipment, net FEE 1,515 761
Finance costs B 75 i 7R 78,594 92,562
Gain on termination of lease mIFAE Y = (27.860) (44,482)
Gain on reassessment of lease liabilities BEAEEEHRE (5.419) (5,975)
Covid-19-related rent concessions Covid-191EH & B = (5,060) (3,965)
Share of results of joint ventures BIHEERRIZEE (149) -
Loss on closure of restaurants FAEA B EE 5 18 1,363 100,501
Operating cash flows before movements in ZBEELEFAMEEEERE
working capital 696,086 1,127,419
Movements in working capital BIEE G
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE () R (22,847) 91,959
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables B 5 U AR 3k (38 n) Rk > (9,258) 10,632
Decrease (increase) in other receivables H b E U =E R TR SR IE R
and prepayments (3% 4n) 127,421 (35,251)
Decrease in trade payables B 5 1S R FOR (7,960) (90,531)
Increase (decrease) in accrual FEZ+ B A N E b pE S R IE 1 0
and other payables O 6,085 (12,775)
Increase in contract liabilities EHaFEE N 83,294 14,939
Cash generated from operations KEZEFSEE 872,821 1,106,392
Income taxes refund (paid) BR(ER) MEH 8,798 (57,856)
Net cash from operating activities KRETEHFERESFEE 881,619 1,048,536
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_—_F+-A=+—HItFE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—g== ==
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARBTT
Investing activities REED
Interest income received 2 A2 A 4,399 3,782
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BEAAEREATETEN
SREE (1,953,174) (1,879,669)
Proceeds from disposal HEZRBEREATETED
of financial assets at FVTPL SREEMSRE 1,592,803 1,906,117
Purchases of property, BEME BEK W
plant and equipment (401,014) (438,959)
Acquisition of investment WENRAEELENKESE
in a joint venture = (49,000)
Payments for right-of-use assets 2 A EMNK (2,863) (5,146)
Utilisation of provisions B AEE (4,729) (16,200)
Payments for rental deposits He ML MR (13,189) (31,407)
Proceeds from disposal of property, ﬁﬁi%% = K R P S
plant and equipment N = 1,874
Purchases of intangible assets ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ,éﬁ? (1,040) (2,047)
Withdrawal of restricted bank balances IREZRFIRIT4ES 110,073 118,503
Placement of restricted bank balances TR HIER1T 4 84 (105,326) (147,162)
Net cash used in investing activities REZHMAREFEE (774,060) (539,314)
Financing activities MEED
Dividend paid 2R A (60,000) (60,000)
Interest paid on bank borrowings 2R ERTT AR A A (2,547) (1,732)
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER (75,804) (20,000)
Repayments of leases liabilities HEBEEX (563,237) (663,958)
New bank borrowings raised FESRITER 58,678 75,804
Cash received from exercise TEEREEENRS
of share option 751 5,930
Payment for purchase of ordinary shares B B & i B& < 3% (Bt 5£33)
(Note 33) (89,541) (12,294)
Capital injection from IR ERTE
non-controlling interest - 10,347
Repayment from other financing activities — E i & & & 8038 3¢ (100) (17,402)
Net cash used in financing activities MEZBMARSTE (731,800) (683,305)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents IR& MR € ZEE R HE (624,241) (174,083)
Cash and cash equivalents FYRekBEEEE
at the beginning of the year 920,533 1,097,324
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERgHg & 4,414 (2,708)
Cash and cash equivalents attheend SXBEERELZEY
of the year 300,706 920,533
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'Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E M AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (China) Holdings Co., Ltd.
(the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands. Its shares have been listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX")
on 17 December 2014. The address of the registered office of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company is an
investment holding company and the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) are principally engaged
in Chinese hotpot restaurant operations in the PRC.

The Company’s immediate holding company is Ying Qi Investments
Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands), and its ultimate
controlling party is Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, who is also the Chairman
and the Controlling Shareholder of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.
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RAR ([RAR])BERSHS
RELEEREFHESTMX Y AERH
REREFERF - ARARHKRMNE
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R ET - AR B FEMPFEEM
ik A Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
KRR BFEER AR - MARF]
MEMBRAG (B AEH]) £
SRR ER ARG LCEETS

RARABWEZEZERA R AYing Qi
Investments Limited (A 2 8 iE 2 Bf
SHMK) REGKERT AR
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ERRAR R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_S__F+_A=1+—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z_—_F+-A=+—BHItFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2. ERERMK®RSESER
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING ([ BB B 75 38 5 2 B ) 45
STANDARDS (“IFRSSs") (CONTINUED) HE:NE )

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet CEMERERENZFHEEH
effective PR ¥R H 2 A R HABRT AR
The Group has not early applied the following new and ANEFIWHEIEFIERA T EHE
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet i R AR 2 HT 5] B R B K iy A XE |
effective: REABFTA :
IFRS 17 (including the June 2020 and Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments' B R B 7 iR 5 2 B RRANREBETA
December 2021 Amendments to F175 (81520205
IFRS 17) 6AM2021E 127 4
B PR B 7 43 5 e
FITRELR)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor B BR B 7 S 25 2 REEZEEBENT
and its Associate or Joint Venture’ FIRREREHE HEBELECHD
HIZE28%% (B3] ) BEMERTE
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’ BIRR B 7R 4R % 2 B ERARTHAEARE
F165% (BFA)
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or T\E,ﬁr’iﬁw 18 RBRERDY
Non-current’ (B3T%) aEzAE
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants’ BB e ERE15 B RLEHR
CHEY) FRPEE
Amendments to IAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies’ BRe: Ll 1%k eHRERE
IFRS Practice Statement 2 AR BREENE
ﬁ& F2% (B &)
Amendments to 1AS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates' BReiEAgEsR g zEE
(L.:W)
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising Bl e ERIE1Y EBE-QHELZ
from a Single Transaction’ CHEY) BEREEERL
EIEHIE
1. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. 1. RZZE_=F—AF—Hz#%EH
IR H) BRI AR -
2. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 2. RAEEBETHHZERBNEE
determined. HAR R o
3. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. 3. R-ZE_MFE—A—Hsz2%&HA
IR H) BRI AR o
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that ARRESE(BEE)EHER
the application of all above new and amendments to IFRSs will MFTA FTE] BN B RS R A YE A e B
have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements EHPN =2 ;T‘HEE;E;}:W%/\
in the foreseeable future. BB REEEMNERTE

106 MEERHEREE (FE) ZAR AT XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.



For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_—_F+-A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on HKEX (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’'s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB242,705,000. The liquidity of the Group is primarily
dependent on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows
from operations and sufficient financing to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. Considering the
Company’s cash flows from operations, and the unutilised
bank facilities of RMB225 million available as at the time
of approving the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors believe that adequate funding is available to
fulfill the Group’s debt obligations and capital expenditure
requirements when preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis that the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36
Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_S__F+_A=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. w44
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT REEE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

iR o BEE
TR (@)

I o)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 3.1 RBGEHBHRR2E
statements (continued) tE (4Z)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value o B E2EHEmME - A

measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based TEA=EBREAFLES=N

on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value WABRBAHEEREERAF

measurements are observable and the significance of the Bt SR8 A8 L g

inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which NEEMSBRE-—K F

are described as follows: ZHRE=R BT

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active . FE—RBABELSETR
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity B AR st= HEES
can access at the measurement date; HMREEXE8ERE

Bis R EmE CREHE
)

e  level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices e EHBMASEBANE
included within Level 1, that are observable for the —RET A Z B LASNAT
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and HEZEEEREES

BEGFHNE ASE
K

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or e ZE=RBWABBREAE

liability. FBENTIEZH A
BIE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z_—_F+-A=+—BHItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

(i)  has power over the investee;

(ii) is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

(iii)  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specially, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
controls until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_—_F+-A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

RAEGECHBHRECEE
REEESBE#®)

32 EEEBE(E)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements
of joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of joint venture. When the
Group’s share of losses of joint venture exceeds the Group's
interest in that joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_—_F+-A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e., when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

J the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

The Group generates revenues from restaurant operation and
sales of condiment products and other goods.

For restaurant operation for which the control of services is
transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised when
the related services have been rendered to customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from the sales of condiment products and other
goods for which the control of goods is transferred at a
point in time, is recognised when the goods are delivered
and titles have passed.

For delivery service for takeout orders for which the control
of service is transferred at a point in time, revenue is
recognised when the related services have been rendered to
customers.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“IFRS 9”). In contrast, a receivable represents
the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e., only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_—_F+-A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

The Group operates a customer loyalty program through
which reward credits are granted to the customers on
consuming in the restaurants that entitle them to consume
by offsetting the reward credits on future purchases and
consumptions in the restaurants. These reward credits
provide a right to consume by offsetting the reward credits
to customers that they would not receive without future
purchases and consumptions in the restaurants. The promise
to provide the right to the customer is therefore a separate
performance obligation.

The transaction price is allocated between the restaurant
operation service provided and the reward credits on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. The stand-alone
selling price of each reward credit is estimated based on the
right to be given when the reward credits are redeemed by
the customer and the likelihood of redemption, as evidenced
by the Group’s historical experience.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component
and are accounted for by applying other applicable
standards.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of restaurants, rented premises and
catering delivery robots that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. MEFESHMBEHRRZEE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT BEEESHHE &
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EZETRE (&)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities other
than adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from Covid-
19-related rent concessions in which the Group applied the
practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3.

118

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments).

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets, and are recognised as expense in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs. When a lease contract contains a specific
clause that provides for rent reduction or suspension of rent
in the event that the underlying assets (or any part thereof)
are affected by adverse events beyond the control of the
Group and the lessor so as to render the underlying assets
unfit or not available for use, the relevant rent reduction
or suspension of rent resulting from the specific clause is
accounted for as part of the original lease and not as a lease
modification. Such rent reduction or suspension of rent is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers those payments to occur.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_S__F+_A=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RBGEUBBERZ2EE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT REESTHE#)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EESTTHE (&)

The Group as a lessee (continued) AEEFERBKRHAA (B

Lease liabilities (continued) HEARE (&)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a WMBEELATER AEEE

corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) MErEMEAE L HAERGE

whenever: FRiEEEFLARERE) :

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in o THHARAZHLEHNIT
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in FHEEEEENTGHE
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by FrEg)  EBERT
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised HAEMNHE B
discount rate at the date of reassessment. {EETBEER K BRI B ET

MEMK - B BT
ERMAESERE-

e the lease payments change due to changes in market . R MG HREIET S
rental rates following a market rent review, in which HeBXEHAENHE
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by MR- ERERT - &K
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial FA A 85 BE 3R R BRI & (8
discount rate. RIMENR - FEULERR

STEHBEEEAE -

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on REBRGEE P HMRAEXE

the consolidated statement of financial position. HEBGE2IRBEIIER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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B+ A=t+—RHLEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts
for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant
right-of-use asset. When the modified contract contains
a lease component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the modified contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_—_F+-A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether
the change is a lease modification if all of the following
conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying IFRS
16 if the changes were not a lease modification. Forgiveness
or waiver of lease payments are accounted for as variable
lease payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to
reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the event occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items and on the retranslation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
government grants are presented under “other income”.

Retirement benefit costs

The employees of the Group are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes, the obligations of the
Group under which are equivalent to those arising in a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan. Payments to
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contribution.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options and restricted share units granted to
employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair
value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in
Note 33 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Share options and restricted share units granted to
employees (continued)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (equity-settled
share-based payments reserve). At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instrument expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of
the revision of the original estimate, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
equity-settled share-based payments reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in equity-settled share-based payments reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When restricted share
units are exercised, the difference between the amount
previously recognised in equity-settled share-based payments
reserve and the cost of purchase of treasure share before
will be transferred to share premium. When share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in equity-settled share-based payments reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below). Property, plant and
equipment other than construction in progress as described
below are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management, including costs of testing whether the related
assets is functioning properly. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property, plant and equipment,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent
the allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified
as property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets representing trademark and software that
are acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives as below:

Trademark
Software

10 years
3 years

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated to the
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before tax
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
joint venture, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the year, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Restoration provisions

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their
original condition, as required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, are recognised at the date of inception of the lease
at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure that would
be required to restore the assets. Estimates are regularly
reviewed and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. f%:z?.a?\ér BER2EE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT BEESTHE %)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EESFTHE (&)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (8)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial ﬁgyﬂﬁ%ﬁ? S HR A % ET
assets (continued) = (&)

A financial asset is held for trading if: WETINER eHEER

FHIEEHE :

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of e EHWBNIFERNEH
selling in the near term; or WHE sk

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of e RUTHRFEEDH
identified financial instruments that the Group manages Rler T REAEH—&B
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term DoMASEERER
profit-taking; or Z#e BEHEBE

BRAEMEMERN K

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as e HYWIHEEEAHEMI
a hedging instrument. A BEREIFEHHAT
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In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial 3] N N SSE ] T I =T
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost 1 7R AR B B K AN S iR
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or PEHBRAZRLTEFENS
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch. MEERETERAEBBERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

Q Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

B

3.

138

EF__F+-_RA=t—RAILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, other receivables, rental deposits, restricted bank
balances and bank balances) which are subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since

initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment is done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually

for debtors.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

3 an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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3.

140

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. MEKREMBHRR2EE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT BEEESHEHE &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EZETRE (&)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) 2 EER R E (E)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued) () fEERBAEENNE)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_ZT_—_F+-_A=t+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is past
due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.

142

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

—~

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability of default
and loss given default is based on historical data
and forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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3.

144

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the

financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, other receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance

account.

Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition/modification of financial assets
(continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.
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3.

146

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer
in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies, (ii) held

for trading or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

repurchasing it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term

profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and

effective hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including bank borrowings, trade payables
and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_S__F+_A=1+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RGEVHHRER2EE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT REESHBE &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EESTTHE (&)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the
net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts: and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and the future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group applies judgement to determine the lease term for
lease contracts in which it is a lessee that include renewal option,
specifically, the leases relating to restaurants. The assessment
of whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise renewal
options impacts the lease term, which significantly affects the
amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised.
Re-assessment is performed upon the occurrence of either a
significant event or a significant change in circumstances that is
within the control of lessee and that affects the assessment.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(continued)

When assessing reasonable certainty, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances including economic incentives/
penalties for exercising or not exercising the options. Factors
considered include:

o contractual terms and conditions for the optional periods
compared with market rates (e.g. whether the amount of
payments in the optional periods is below the market rates);

o the extent of leasehold improvements undertaken by Group;

o costs relating to termination of the lease (e.g. relocation
costs, costs of identifying another underlying asset suitable
for the Group's needs);

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the exercise of the
renewal option, which is detailed in Note 17, resulted in an
additional amount of RMB153,652,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB166,693,000) of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
recognised.

The Group has termination options for leases of restaurants. These
are used to maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing
the assets used in the Group’s operations. The majority of the
termination options held are only exercisable by the Group not by
the respective lessors.

FESHHERMETAE
EREMNEEREFE#)
FERE
(#)

SIS 0 B 9 T

EFRSBEELR ~EEEE
BRAERBNEERBR - BT
FEHTTEARAEERNEEE

g FTEBNAREE :

e HUMBEXME AaHE

42598 B 77 D 60 16 5K R AR (1
MEREE N RS EE T
N BE)

s AEHETHHEMEREE
RE:

. i“t%ﬁi"fﬂ’ﬁﬁfﬁﬁi$(ﬁllzuﬁ
BRA -VEBEGAKEF
KOEMBEREENKA)

HE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HI1
FETHEEHEEE GEHEN
MiaE17) B EEINEREREEE
FHEEAEARKI153,652,0007C
—E_—F+-_A=Z+—H: A
R #166,693,0007T) °

AEBRAERHENRLERE
#o-ZTEERDARMERAS
BREmAEERNEEHESK
LEEM - IR AR DR IEE
BREJHAEETE - MIIFH
BRAHBEATRE-

2022 ANNUAL REPORT =T = =443 149



For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—

4,

150

B+ A=t+—RHLEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(continued)

The Group assessed at lease commencement date and concluded
it is reasonably certain not to exercise the termination options. In
addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain not
to exercise a termination option, upon the occurrence of either a
significant event or a significant change in circumstances that is
within the control of the lessee.

As a result, the Group remeasure the lease liability to reflect
changes to the lease payments. The Group recognised the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to
the right-of-use asset. However, for the leases that the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is
a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the
Group recognised the remaining amount of the remeasurement in
profit or loss amounted to RMB5,419,000 (2021: RMB5,975,000)
during the current year.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Leasehold improvements and right-of-use assets are stated at
costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. The
Directors review their impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable at the end of each reporting period. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group have to
exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may
affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and
an appropriate pre-tax discount rate. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset (including
right-of-use assets), the Group estimate the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the assets belongs, including
allocation of corporate assets when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, otherwise recoverable
amount is determined at the smallest group of cash generating
units, for which the relevant corporate assets have been allocated.
Changing the assumption and estimate, including the growth rate
of revenue and the discount rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the recoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of leasehold
improvements and right-of-use assets subject to impairment
assessment were RMB691,657,000 and RMB1,417,290,000 (31
December 2021: RMB792,930,000 and RMB1,638,334,000)
respectively, after taking into account the impairment losses
of RMB21,786,000 and RMB30,026,000 recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB44,016,000 and
RMB54,447,000). Details of the impairment of leasehold
improvements and right-of-use assets are disclosed in Note 16 and
17 respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable temporary difference and taxable profit
will be available. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimates, such difference
will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and income
tax in the period in which such estimates are changed. As at 31
December 2022, deferred tax assets recognised are approximately
RMB73,222,000 (31 December 2021: RMB43,020,000), in which
RMB373,000 (31 December 2021: RMB11,504,000) is from
deductable temporary difference of royalty expense (details
reference to Note 18). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
on the tax losses of RMB623,558,000 (2021: RMB379,287,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams in respective
subsidiaries. Further details are contained in Note 18.

The Group applies incremental borrowing rates as the discount
rates of lease liabilities, which require financing spread adjustments
and lease specific adjustments based on the relevant market rates.
The assessments of the adjustments in determining the discount
rates involved management’s judgement, which may significantly
affect the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets. As at
31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are RMB1,417,290,000 and RMB1,427,220,000
(2021: RMB1,638,334,000 and RMB1,599,285,000) respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

5.

REVENUE

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers

During the year, the Group’s revenue which represents
the amount received and receivable from the restaurants
operation, sales of condiment products and other goods
and services, net of discount and sales related taxes, are as
follows:

5. WA

(i) BEFEHNWRADH

FA-AEEOHEA (NEEE
X% HERAMNEMRMEM
7 am A0 AR 75 B9 B W B 8 U R
R (BRI R EERER
)W

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_S-__f+-A=1t-HLEE

Xiabuxiabu Coucou Others Total
TR g MER O BE Hit Fy
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®Tn AR¥®Tn AR%Tx
Type of goods or service 7 fn =% AR 1 3 Bl
Restaurant operations BEX 2,268,490 2,205,488 - 4,473,978
Sales of condiment products  $5% 3£ E m - = 142,617 142,617
Sales of other goods and HEHMEm
services 17,329 361 90,549 108,239
Total FEE 2,285,819 2,205,849 233,166 4,724,834
Geographical markets it B IS
Mainland China GETPNG 2,285,819 1,981,654 233,166 4,500,639
Hong Kong B - 171,399 - 171,399
Singapore N - 52,796 - 52,796
Total At 2,285,819 2,205,849 233,166 4,724,834
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—RHILFE

5. REVENUE (conTINUED)

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers (continued)

5. WA #®)
(i) BEEEHWADIF(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+_A=1+—HLEFE

Xiabuxiabu Coucou Others Total
ER 135 AR Oy =& HAth BET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTIT ARETRT ARETRT ARETT
Type of goods or service 7 i =X FR 75 38 5
Restaurant operations 2B 2 3,497,210 2,353,479 - 5,850,689
Sales of condiment
products SHEFRE S = - 126,210 126,210
Sales of other goods HEHMPE S 27,544 203 142,616 170,363
Total 1Bt 3,524,754 2,353,682 268,826 6,147,262
Geographical markets & T iE
Mainland China A B K P 3,524,754 2,229,446 268,826 6,023,026
Hong Kong BB - 124,236 - 124,236
Total HBEt 3,524,754 2,353,682 268,826 6,147,262

No revenue from individual external customer contributing
over 10% of total revenue of the Group.

BEEMSETER AW AR
HEEBEBAEEAKARI10% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_ZT-_—F+-_A=1+—RHILFE

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 5. WA
(ii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) "EHEEZEFEHNTIEE
performance obligation for contracts with HNEINRSE
Customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance SREFBKBHORE KRBT
obligation (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) and the KESDRETT) I 5B N iE
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows: R AR TE AR RS0 T ¢
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-_—_F+-HA=+—H
Customer Advance
loyalty Prepaid from
scheme cards customer
BE
BHEE BN+ BEFEX
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T ARET T

Within one year —F R 19,140 377,451 3,343
Total HEr 19,140 377,451 3,343
As at 31 December 2021 R-BE-_—F+_A=+—H
Customer Advance

loyalty Prepaid from

scheme cards customer

B
B E B BEFE R
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000

ARETTT ARETIT ARBTT

Within one year —F R 14,985 294,391 4,201
More than one year but not 88—

more than two years BB 3,063 = =
Total HET 18,048 294,391 4,201
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 5. WA @@

(ii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) ?7EEEZEFSANFRE
performance obligation for contracts with HNEEINXRZE (&
Customers (continued)

The customer loyalty points have a twelve months to BERERHEDRE D HE S
twenty-four months’ valid period after the grant of award AR REXRED K
credits based on different types of loyalty programmes Byg12@ B =224@ AR A
and can be redeemed anytime within the valid period at W WA HBFEREERAMN
customers’ discretion. The amounts disclosed above represent HANBTARE LK - EaltFr
the Group's expectation on the timing of redemption made BEZEHERRAEEYHE
by customers. FPELRBREHTEHSE -
The Group issued the prepaid cards which can be utilised AREFBRTRENMNRK ITARE
in the future consumption in restaurants at customers’ FPRAEARBENEEEE -
discretion. The amounts disclosed above represent the FiFrRBE & BERRAE
Group’s expectation on the timing of utilisation made by BEHEFHAENRFEHNTE
customers. BiE & ©

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS 6. K&

156

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered or
provided.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under IFRS 8 are as
follows:

° Xiabuxiabu: restaurant operation and related service under
brand name of “Xiabuxiabu”.

° Coucou: restaurant operation and related service under
brand name of “Coucou”.

In addition to the above reportable segments, other operating
segments include operation of the condiment products and
other goods that were not sold out by Xiabuxiabu restaurants or
Coucou restaurants. None of these segments met the quantitative
thresholds for the reportable segments in both current and prior
year. Accordingly, these were grouped in “Others”.

LERDE KD BREBEFEMAEA
NRAMTER (BRI ELERRE
(TXEEERRE]) RENEH
TERRXMN AR @A RBEE

o
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B —HF+-A=+—HLFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)
Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

from continuing operations by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

ﬁ«(r‘—“&/'\ ﬁB (&)
ﬁﬁﬁ%l)\&%z\
RNEBIRA 2 MY F 2 D FELK
%%%Hﬂl?\&%ﬁ ST -

BZEZ-_Z-_—_f#+-HA=+—HL
FE

Total Adjustments
reportable and
Xiabuxiabu segments Others  eliminations  Consolidated
B R T2RIHAE Hff  REREE A
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR AEETR  ARETR  ARMTn  ARETR
SEGMENT REVENUE AHPA
External sales e 2,285,819 4,491,668 233,166 - 47483
Inter-segment sales PHEEE - - 299,904 (299,904) -
2,285,819 4,491,668 533,070 (299,904) 4,724,834
Segment results (Note) AHEE (M) (192,609) (263,709) 44,552 = (219,157)
Impairment losses on property, plant and VERTE
equipment (13,087) (23274) - - (23,274)
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets FREAEHESS (22,654) (30,026) = = (30,026)
Reversal of impairment losses on EfEYHERERE
other receivables 259 259 - - 259
Impairment loss on rental deposit ReAezAERE (1.327) (5,328) = = (5,328)
Loss on closure of restaurants BREESE (1,214) (1.363) - - (1,363)
Gain from changes in fair value of FARRRATEI BHERERN
financial assets at FVTPL AYEEBRENR 15,542 15,548 746 - 16,294
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LENE BRRAEEEEE
equipment, net (1,226) (1,515) - - (1,515)
Interest on bank borrowings RIS (1,000 (1,000 (1,547) = (2,547)
Segment (oss) profit A (EE)HE (217,316) (310,408) 43,751 = (266,657)
Unallocated loss from changes in fair value of ~ EABZEATEHENEHEED
financial assets at FVTPL NTEEHNAARER (2,294)
Unallocated central administration costs AARG-EBRRE (74511)
Unallocated directors' emoluments APREEEH (1473)
Loss before tax RaEE (350,935)
Other segment information H o ZpE R
Amounts included in the measure of segment results: HADEEESTENS R -
Total
reportable Unallocated
Xiabuxiabu segments Others costs  Consolidated
L T2RAHAE R KOEEA &a
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT AE®TR  ARBTr  ARETn  ARETn
Depreciation and amortisation TEREY (522,694) (945,130) (16,284) (2137) (963,551)
Gain on termination of lease KERENYE 27,860 27,860 - - 27,860
Gain on reassessment of lease liabilities EREEERUE 3,38 5419 - - 5419
Finance costs (excluing interest on bank BRI (FRERAERHE)
borrowings) (42,098) (75,015) (1,032) - (76,047)
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. RE&EDME)
Segment revenues and results (continued) DEBRARFEE ()

158

Fo—Ft+-A=t-ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-_F-_-F+=-A=t—-HL

FE
Total Adjustments
reportable and
Xiabuxiabu Coucou segments Others ~ eliminations  Consolidated
RE AR 22 T2ENPEE iy BERER 58
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETn  ARETT  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR
SEGMENT REVENUE ABUA
External sales NEHE 35754 2353680 5878436 268,826 - 6147262
Inter-segment sales HHREE - - - 332,850 (332,850) -
3,524,754 2,353,682 5,878,436 601,676 (332,850) 6,147,262
Segment results (Note) PBEE (W) 34,079 71203 105,302 38,853 = 144,155
Impairment losses on property, plant and % BERAERESE
equipment (48,535) (5,811) (54,346) (10,635) - (64,981)
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets FREEERERE (50,03) (4,394) (54.447) - = (54,447)
Impairment losses on other receivables EhRENTERERE (1,109) (153) (1,262) (16,400) = (17,662)
Impairment loss on rental deposit ReRe iEER (13,184) (255) (13439) - - (13439)
Loss on closure of restaurants BRAEEE (103,654) = (103,654) = = (103,654)
Gain from changes in fair value of finandial ~~~ BABERATEFENEREEN
assefs at FVTPL DYEEBRENS 26947 - 26,947 - - 26,947
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE HRRABEATE
equipment, net (368) (312) (680) 81) - (761)
Interest on bank borrowings BERNE (975) = (979) (757) = (1,732)
Segment (loss) profit AP(EE) MR (16,852) 60,298 (96,554) 10,980 = (85,574)
Unallocated loss from changes in fairvalue o~ BBEERATEiF ENEREEH
financial assets at FVTPL ATEEBNRIEEE (20982)
Unallocated central administration costs APRA-ERRA (97.392)
Unallocated directors emoluments AOEEZHM b7y
Loss before tax ikl (213,653)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_—_F+-A=+—HItFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (conTINUED)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

AN

KEDE (w)
=B

DEUAREE (Z)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bz E2-_—F+=-—BA=+—H1
L3
Other segment information H o2& R
Amounts included in the measure of segment results: HADELEAENSE
Total
reportable Unallocated
Xiabuxiabu Coucou segments Others costs  Consolidated
REER R TZENDEE iy KARRA e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT AREBTz  ARETRT  ARETR  ARETR
Depreciation and amortisation TEREY (688,199) (339574)  (1,027.773) ARIEY B3424)  (1,052911)
Gain on termination of lease A rREHKE 44482 - 44482 - = 44.48)
Gain on reassessment of lease liabilities EfHERENA 5,975 - 5975 - - 5975
Finance costs (excluding interest on bank HERA(FRERaRRAE
borrowings) (57,736) (33,014) (90,750) (80) - (90,830)
Note: The measure used for reporting segment result is the adjusted Wit : E|MOXXEEFMBIAESES

segment profit (loss) before (i) Certain gain or loss from changes
in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL, (ii) Interest on bank
borrowings, (iii) Impairment loss and disposal loss on non-current
assets, (iv) Impairment loss on financial assets and (v) Loss on closure
of restaurants.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z_—_F+-A=+—BHItFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. KREDE @)
Segment revenues and results (continued) 7 &B Llﬁz NEE(E)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as ZERES NS TR REARER
the Group's accounting policies. Segment profit/(loss) represents =5 Q;ﬁ B pEAIE, (EE)
the profit earned by/loss from each segment without allocation of BESHEBAFE ELNE
certain gain/(loss) from changes in fair value of financial assets/ B 2hiESREREBEREAF
liabilities at FVTPL, central administration costs and directors’ BEtENeREE  ABHNATEHE
emoluments. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the gEmEs Tk (BE) &
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment. fﬁﬁIEWﬁ&%%#ﬁ@H I Tt E
SR KRB R EELEREK
%#ﬁ EHIETE 5 ©
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DEEHERBEITMISEXREE -
Segment assets and liabilities THEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by AREE KR 2R MLEE D EE D
reportable and operating segments: BERBEITWT
As at 31 December 2022
R-8-ZF1ZA=1-H
Total
reportable Unallocated
Xiabuxiabu Coucou segments Others assets  Consolidated
RERE R UREANER i  XAR4E &4

RMB0O0  RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMB0O0  RMBOOO  RMB'000
ARRTR  ARBTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARRfR

Segment assets PBEE 2,397,152 1,314,600 3,112,352 530,817 66,969 4,310,138
Other segment information EfbABEn

Amounts included in the measure HASDEENENEE:

of segment assets:

Interest in a joint venture REELENER - - - 49,149 - 49,149
Additions to property, plant and equipment  RENE * BERRE 153,419 148,945 302,364 31,752 - 334,116
Additions to right-of-use assets TEFAELE 309,707 107,225 416,932 5274 - 422,206
Segment liabilities yiE-3 1,742,129 82133 2504262 194,455 -8
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (conTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

RZF-F12A=1-R
Total
reportable Unallocated
Xiabuxiabu Coucou segments Others assets  Consolidated
R EE U2HNIER i kokHE ke
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTL  ARBTR  ARMTRT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Segment assets AREE 2,516,105 1823464 4,339,569 542,626 69,106 4,951,301
Other segment information A HER
Amounts included in the measure TADBEETEHEE
of segment assets:
Interest in a joint venture R4 - - - 49,000 - 49,000
Additions to property, plant and equipment RENE BERRE 150,335 201,548 351,883 17,592 - 369,475
Additions to right-of-use assets REERREE 283,267 234315 517,582 - - 517,582
Segment liabilities AR 1709625 1114809 2824434 115,565 - 2939999
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and B EE i 3 SR 2238 T FA Y 2 5 4 iR
allocating resources between segments: BiR
— all assets are allocated to operating segments based on — FABRERHEBSYLDES
the corresponding operating brands other than certain RS T RD
unallocated corporate property, plant and equipment and RATIYE  BE MR
right-of-use assets; and BEEBRN &

— all liabilities are allocated to operating segments based on
the corresponding operating brands.

Revenue from major products and services, geographical
information and information about major customers please refer

to Note 3.

The Group’s non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets
and financial assets), including property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets and interest in a joint venture

are detailed below:

FH2BMEESIA T R E B E M MR
BEOWA - EEHRERZETFH
Er} o

AEEFRBEE ELEHBAEE
REBEERI) BEYE BE
M EREEE BYEER
EELERD  HFdwT :

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1T—-HLEE

2022 2021

—E=-= T —4F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET ARBT T

Mainland China A B i 2,269,888 2,662,286
Hong Kong E5 125,252 60,462
Singapore EZIIE3 34,544 19,566
2,429,684 2,742,314

2022 ANNUAL REPORT —ZE=——%%% 16]



For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

7. OTHER INCOME 7. Hiug A
For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-BA=1+—HLEE
2022 2021
—s=-= —T——
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBET T
Interest income on: FBWA :
— bank deposits — RITHERK 4,399 3,782
— other financial asset at — RE AT 2R A Aty
amortised cost SREE 5,575 7,078
9,974 10,860
Covid-19 related value-added tax Covid-1918 A2 BRI Eh &
exemption (i) (i) - 22,086
Government grants B 478 B
— released from deferred income — EEUR AR E (F5E29)
(Note 29) 1,277 1,818

Additional tax deduction (ii) LI ANET B (i) 73,266 28,110

74,543 29,928

Delivery income for takeout orders HNE T BE AR R U A 15,763 16,299

Others Hib 20,271 24,594

36,034 40,893
120,551 103,767

Notes: M &E -

() During last year, the Group recognised RMB22,086,000 in respect () WRER-F-_FF-A—AEH
of Covid-19-related value-added tax exemption provided by the local Y B8 S 8 R B E IR B R A
government in accordance with Cai Shui [2020] No.8 Tax Policy on 9 fib A 5% 1 B 12 /9 B #6[2020] 8
Supporting Covid-19 Prevention and Control Measures, which came WK REF - NEEBER
into effect on 1 January 2020. According to Cai Shui [2020] No.8, & BT BT 2 i Covid-194H 8 18
restaurant operations revenue of the Group is temporarily exempted B % R AR 22,086,000
from value-added tax till 31 March 2021. JC ° R ¥ Bf #4[2020] 85% - A&

EEESEWATRRHEE
B EE-_E-_—F=A=1+—
BHALE -

(i)  The amounts represent the additional input value added tax (i) BEHEG B  ERBEER
deduction, pursuant to the announcement of the Ministry of Finance, &/ FA4E 52019F48 184
the State Administration of Taxation and the General Administration ME) RS - ZRIBREEER NG
of Customs of the PRC, which become effective from April 1, 2019 HRER -
onwards.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

8. OTHER EXPENSES

HAth B <

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—=E-= T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETF T
Delivery service fee INEIRTE B 87,680 87,701
Professional service fee HERBE 63,915 71,406
Marketing expenses i EiHE 55,640 68,265
Logistics expenses ) 7 2 47,642 52,928
Travel and communication expenses  Z= ik K& B AN F 2 19,548 43,311
Maintenance fees HER 20,616 34,047
Office and administrative expenses MARITHAS 28,798 30,087
Others Hith 32,165 54,069
356,004 441,814

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES Hit Wz Kk EE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-BA=+t—HLEE

2022 2021
—E—-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  WEREE
plant and equipment, net B 18 558 (1,515) (761)
Gain on termination of lease (i) £ FR & Yeas( 27,860 44,482
Gain on reassessment of lease EHEEAENS
liabilities (ii) 5,419 5,975
Foreign exchange gain (loss), net M 5 B 18 )5 5E 4,793 (8,095)
Loss on closure of restaurants (iii) 4 B & B2 B 1A (i) (1,363) (103,654)
Reversal (provision) of impairment loss H #f & U 7R & 18 < & (g
on other receivables (FH#2) 259 (17,662)
Impairment loss on rental deposit HeMe 2 REEBE (5,328) (13,439)
Impairment loss recognised in respect FL¥IZE - WE MR EER
of property, plant and equipment B RSB (23,274) (64,981)
Impairment loss recognised in respect &t {8 Ff ¥ & B W 2R (B E5 18
of right-of-use assets (30,026) (54,447)
Gain from changes in fair value of BEREREAFTEFTENSE
financial assets at FVTPL BENAFEZHHMERE 14,000 5,965
Loss on disposal of inventories HERFEEE (7,323) (91)
(16,498) (206,708)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (conTINUED)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

According to the performance of the restaurants and the
business development plan, the Group closed down a
number of under-performing restaurants to reinitiate the
business and maintain the overall profitability level of the
Group. The Group exercised the early termination option to
terminate the lease contracts before the previously expected
date. A net gain on termination of lease amounting to
RMB27,860,000 was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB44,482,000).

For the restaurants that the Group plans to exercise the early
termination option, the Group remeasures the lease liability
to reflect changes to the lease payments and recognised the
amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. However, for the leases
that the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced
to zero, the Group recognised the remeasurement of lease
liability in profit or loss amounting to RMB5,419,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB5,975,000).

Due to the decline in restaurants’ operating results
as well as the management’s strategic decision to
permanently close certain restaurants, the Group incurred
loss on closure of restaurants, including write-off of the
leasehold improvements, uncollectible rental deposits and
compensations paid, amounting to RMB1,363,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB103,654,000).

10. FINANCE COSTS

164

Hbwsz REE &)

Wik

(@)

(if)

(iii)

BIEZENRENEBZRR
B AEEBRATETEENE
WER EEERKEHLEE &
MAEFAREEEERFKE K
SETETRAKILEEERE B
S RITEET BRI AR IETHES A -
BHE-_ZT-_—_F+=-RA=+—H
IEFE - ARIEHESEESF RS
A R 27,860,000 (Z & — —
& AR¥44,482,000T) B F

7 o
FLAKEGBIITEIR PR ILER
BOER ASEENAEHE
BENRMRBEENRES - ki
ENFEHERENSBER
REEREEEZAE - AW
MR EREEEREEARE
T AKERAFERED AR
REMFENRTERARE
5,419,000t (ZZT = —%F: AR
#5,975,0007T) °

HREEKEEETBEUARE
EEXABRASE TEENSK
RE - BE-_ZT-_=—_F+=-HA
=t+t—HIEFE AEEHEASR
FEHEEMEREME - e E
HeHeRENBENBREZ
FEE1E A R1,363,0007T (— =
——%: AR#103,654,0007T) °

10. Br #& R A

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—HLEE

2022 2021

—E=-= —E -

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ET T AREF T

Interest on lease liabilities HEBEHNE 73,464 89,208
Interest on bank borrowings RITERF A 2,547 1,732
Interest on provisions BEAE T B 2,583 1,622
78,594 92,562
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_—_F+-A=+—HItFE

11. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss for the year has been arrived at after charging
the following items:

11. BHATEE
AEENERNBBD NG THEE:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-BA=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E-C —EF - —F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ET R AREF T
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEERE 561,449 586,365
Depreciation of property, Y BEREEITE
plant and equipment 400,669 464,925
Amortisation of intangible assets 28 B Y 1,433 1,621
Total depreciation and amortisation EMEEAE 963,551 1,052,911
Rentals in respect of EHEERENZNAES
restaurants lease payments
— short-term lease (i) — HHIMEE>) 29,382 40,699
— Covid-19-related rent concessions — Covid-19/8fEH & E= (5,060) (3,965)
— variable lease payment (ii) — AR E MK I) 57,861 79,588
— other rental expenses (iii) — H 74 (i) 169,610 181,747
Total property rentals MEREREERZ AR
and related expenses 251,793 298,069
Directors’ emoluments Ea0)| 9,053 9,705
Other staff cost HEM 8 TRA
Salaries and other allowance 4 & H b yE AL 1,412,751 1,691,166
Equity-settled share-based payments LA P& #E 4% & DARR 1D
AR (359) 2,216
Retirement benefit contribution R ARAE A 3 132,098 126,630
Total staff costs BT A4%8 1,553,543 1,829,717
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 3,000 3,600
Notes: Mo :
(i)  The short-term lease refers to leases of restaurants, catering () EHHSEEE XEREAR

delivery robots and rented premises. HEYWENRE -

(i)  The variable lease payment refers to the portion of property (i) FAIEAENZEREBELETHN

rentals based on pre-determined percentages to revenue less WABDLLEERNYERS IS
minimum rentals of the respective leases. WEROHRIEMRS o

(iii)  The other rental expense refers to the property management (i) EHE#fSEiEmEELFHY
fee paid to the landlord. e
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

12.

166

INCOME TAX (BENEFIT) EXPENSE

12. FRIEHREAX

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E-= T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARET T
Enterprise income tax (“EIT") TEMSH((LEmMER])
Current tax B EA #5418 14,413 22,339
Deferred tax IRERIE (34,160) 47,141
Total income tax recognised FiEmRERNTSE R
in profit or loss (19,747) 69,480

The Company is a tax exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%.

The Company’s subsidiary, Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (HK)
Holdings Co., Ltd., (“Xiabu Hong Kong") incorporated in Hong
Kong is qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
Accordingly, the Hong Kong profits tax of Xiabu Hong Kong is
calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

ARARR/RFASHEEMKR LK
LR AT NI

R_E—NE=A=-+—H &%
SOAEEB2017TERE (BE]) (B
75) B ER ((FHER]) - H
SIAMBEFNEHEGE o ZIEHE
BN _ZE-—N\E=A=-F/\BEE
MELZZENRBHTIEZER - BIE
MAFERESE  AEREEE
BHNE28 875 B 128.25%
BB mBGE2E 88 xHE
153 16.5% W EET o TRFE MR
FEREHENEBEEBNFBEH
EEIR16.5%M G — B REH -

RABREB TN E A R
MEAEmERER (B8 BERE
RAa ((HEEB]) HEERE
AR ST R E T - Bt -
BEBGTERGEABENE2E S
B REFERTANEERA2E 8
BT R D 9 BIl1£8.25% K 16.5%
STEEBFEH -

BREPBECEMRSHE ((REMHR
BEE) REXMBHRIZER K
)+ AR R] Y A BB 2 ) S R
FROB R H25% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12. FTE#HBE X &)

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared and paid to non-PRC resident in respect of profits earned
by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the temporary differences attributable
to the accumulated undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to RMB1,159 million as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB1,772 million), as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

With respect to the trademark license agreements entered into
between Hong Kong subsidiaries and PRC subsidiaries, certain
PRC subsidiaries have recognised royalty expenses with reference
to the predetermined percentages over the revenue earned. For
such royalty expenses which have not been paid, PRC subsidiaries
recognised the deferred tax assets for these tax deductible
expenses according to the trademark license agreement and the
prevailing PRC tax regulations. The Directors, in reviewing the
uncertain tax treatment of the Group, continuously consider effect
of changes in circumstances and new information in the context
of applicable tax laws as well as taking into account the Group's
settlement strategy based on the latest progress of negotiation
with the relevant PRC tax authority and has reflected the effect of
uncertainty over tax treatments at the best estimate at the end of
each reporting period.

BECEMSHE BT N\F
— B — AR EHKE A T FTERER
B A A FE R B R R AT E R KK 5
R BB TENT - R F
+=—A=+—H BHREAEEEHN
THIEREEENREERR AT
R e TN B R AR RE
B - MW ARIELR A M HREK T R
BEEAR R RDEABHE
BHE=EARK 15988 T (=
——F: AR¥1,772B8T) iR
FEEFIE -

EHEEENMBAREPEKNE QA
RIMAARFFA B B THEN
BARZEMRBEANBEED L
BRESEE AR ARSI ER
RS - E e B P A AR
FAR AT A 1 Ne P B ZR 1T B AE R B
R EFAMBAXERRELEHRE
E EFKENAEERBERIEN
THEEM - HEEZ BN REZ( KA
MERBRBEZENTERNZTE
(] By &t N 74N 2 18] 2 mp (50 4 A 7 795
e HEmEREH ENEER
B - AE RGN & RS
AMBRETHEEENTE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z_—_F+-A=+—BHItFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12. FRBHBExX &)

FARBRAXEGE RS LR
EBAKRABATB R RET

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

BZE+-—BA=+—BHLtEE

168

2022 2021
—TE-—fF T —F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET ARBTT
Loss before tax i Bl B 18 (350,935) (213,653)
Tax calculated at applicable domestic 1% & F B (N 51 R 25% 5T H 1Y
tax rates at 25% I8 (87,734) (53,413)
Tax effect of different tax rate SERNARIBEFFERAR
on intra-group royalty income TR TEIR ) B A B
and interest income subject to TRMENT B E
withholding tax (2,199) (15,967)
Effect of different tax rates of P E fth BAERE (R 48 & 8 2 A
company operating in other TRMENZE
jurisdictions (2,855) (1,529)
Tax effect of income not taxable for — HH7B R U A BT 75 =7 22
tax purpose (840) (2,100)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT 1% 5 X MO FR 75 2 2
for tax purposes 8,842 12,960
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible & %R 75 & 18 & /] H18
temporary differences not TRMEEONGTE
recognised 64,799 84,117
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BB 5t Bl R RIS B 18
recognised (357) (616)
Reversal of deductible temporary & [5] 5% B e 2R &9 B] 008
differences previously recognised TR EZERE - 58,528
Under (over) provision in respect of BEFEBRETR
prior years (EBEER ) 597 (12,500)
Income tax expense FriS®if X (19,747) 69,480
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

B —FH - A=+—HILFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

13. BRRE#E

ARBEEARGERERARESR
BRIBRBIATBEE :

For the year ended 31 December

BZE+-—BA=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—EC-_F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET AREFIT
Loss figures are calculated as follows: E5iE&(1E1E40T -
Loss for the year attributable to RKARER ANEEFR
owners of the Company BB (353,052) (293,212)
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose B E SR E AN R L@ A%

of basic loss per share reconciles to the weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation of diluted loss per share
as follows:

BIOEERNFTESREEERE
B E R BUINE A B BRI T

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1+—HBLEE

2022 2021
—TE-—fF T
‘000 ‘000
TR F A&
Weighted average number of ordinary ARt E SR EREEH
shares for the purpose of basic loss 3 AR N AE S 15 5
per share 1,056,404 1,074,900
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BE#EEHEBRAOTZE
shares (Note) (P 7E) N/ATiE A N/AT i F
Weighted average number of ordinary FR & G E# S EEH
shares for the purpose of diluted loss 3@ A% hn#E T 5 &
per share 1,056,404 1,074,900

Note: The calculation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2022 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
share options and restricted shares since their exercise would result
in a decrease in loss per share (2021: decrease in loss per share).

Mizr: stEHEE_E__F+_ A
=+ BLEEESREESIS
Th B 2% A 8 7 AN 2 ) B AR 4
EBHERG  ZERETEEE
BEREERD (ZTE=—4F:
BREBERD) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_F__F+_A=1+—HIFE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF 14. EERESITHRAEUR
EXECUTIVE AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EEHMERSE T HM
EMPLOYEES
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments for the year, BHEEA LR A RESRQREH
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong BENESERERITRABRAKE
Companies Ordinance, is as follows: EEHMAT

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-S--EtCASt-RLER

Retirement
Performance henefits  Equity-settled
Salaries and related scheme  share-based
Directors' fee  allowances bonuses  contribution payments Total
HRELE
BB HRHA
Esne  gemEy RBEA TEfR ERNAR it

RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMB000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTZ  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR

Evecutive director: Hings:

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi (B 1B %) Exiis 1,044 1,580 - - 5,197 7821
Sub-total INe 1,044 1,580 - - 5197 7821
Non-executive directors: FifES:

Ms. Chen Su-Yin(REE % 1) REELL 308 - - - - 308

Mr. Zhang Chi (&3 % 4£) Rt - - - - - -

Ms. Li Jie(Z %) () ZEIL() = = = = = =
Sub-total Izt 308 - = - = 308
Independent non-executive directors: BUFamEs:

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence (4 56 ) EErE 308 - - - - 308

Ms. Cheung Sze Man (8% £) it e 308 - - - - 308

Mr. Kot Man Tat (& JC& %) i) BICER () 3 - - - - 231

Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun (FZ 25 1) (i) HEZ 01 /] = = - = /]
Sub-total It 924 - - - - 924
Total a5 9,053
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_ZT-_—F+-_A=1+—RHILFE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF 14. =%
EXECUTIVE AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID A
EMPLOYEES (conTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-F--Ft-A=t-BLER

Retirement
Performance benefits  Equity-settled
Salaries and related scheme  share-based
Directors' fee allowances bonuses  contribution payments Total
RIEH WRHE
E3he  HeERY RARA et AR it

RVBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBODO  RMBOOD  RMBO0
ARETTE  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTT  ARBTR  ARETR

Erecutive directors: HEE:

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi (B 1B % 5) BRELE 1,012 = = = 8,950 9,962

Ms. Zhao Yi (1% L) i #iag i 151 3 - 11 (238) (1453)
Sub-total it 1,163 13 - 11 6,562 8,509
Non-executive directors: FHES:

Ms. Chen Su-Yin(REE % 1) REET 299 - - - - 299

Mr. Zhang Chi (& ) ks - - - - - -

M. Li Jie (FRR L) ) FRLL) - - - - - -
Subtotal it 29 - - - - 299
Independent non-executive directors: BUHES

Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun (§ 224 1) #5220 299 - - - - 299

Ms. Cheung Sze Man (K8 % 1) Rt 299 - - - - 299

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence (2 %:1%) L 299 - - = - 299
Sub-total NGt 897 = = = = 897
Tota 3t 9,705
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their i ITEENTNARESEE
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the RABRANEEBEEABOREH
Company and the Group. T 45 o
The non-executive directors’” emoluments shown above were for FiERITEEN TN A B SIET
their services as directors of the Company and its subsidiaries. AN RENBATIEEHENL o
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown BT IERITESNENARS
above were for their services as directors of the Company. EERNTIEENENL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

EMPLOYEES (conTINUED)

Notes:

(i) Ms. Li Jie is Mr. Zhang Chi’s alternate. Mr. Zhang Chi has resigned
due to personal reasons with effect from 25 November 2022 and
Ms. Li Jie has been re-designated as a non-executive director of the

Company.

(i) On 1 April 2022, Ms. Hsieh Lily Hui-yun has retired and Mr. Kot Man

Tat has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

(iii)  Ms. Zhao Yi was removed as the chief executive officer and executive
Director of the Group with effect from 20 May 2021 and 28 July

2021 respectively.

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included one director (2021: one director), details of whose
remuneration are set out above. Details of the remuneration for
the year of the remaining four (2021: four) highest paid employees
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are

as follows:

1. ESEREETHRABUR
LEFMESRBIHM @
g3

() ZBRZLTARBEENEETE
HoRBAERMBEARREET -
BE2022F 11 B25H AWM T2
ZEEREABRATFERTES -

iy MRZTEZ_—_FWHWA—H: G HEE
ZEIERE MBXELEDE
ZEBBYIERNTES -

(i) HRAXEIREBEAEEITHE
BRMTEERE DB %
T —FRAZF+HRZ=ZZT=_—F
tA-TNHBER-

FAAKBEFHERENARET
FERRE-R2EF (T _—F: —
) EFEMEHINR EX BT
mME(ZT_—F MOB) FMHEK
BET(AFARRBEFTHEZESIT
BAB)FAMESFBOT :

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE

2022 2021

—E=-= T

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARETIT

Salaries and allowances e HEAL 5,730 3,946
Equity-settled share-based AR #E 45 B AR (0 7 BTl

payments ") - 5% 7 1,190

Retirement benefit scheme RONEFET &)
contribution 113 79
5,850 5,215
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF 14. EERBEESTHRAEBUR
EXECUTIVE AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID ﬁ%iﬁﬁ}ﬂ?.‘%‘ ITHM =)
EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)

The number of these highest paid employees whose remuneration FMN LT SEEN TR S EE
fell within the following band is as follows: L= U N

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—4F
RMB'000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000 1,000,001 7L 2= 1,500,0007% 7T 2 2
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 £ 2=2,000,0007% 7T 2 1
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7Tt 22,500,000 7T = 1
Total HBET 4 4
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no Directors BE—_E_—_FER_T-_—F+=
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments, and no emoluments B=1+—HIFE HEEEKE
were paid by the Group to the Directors or the five highest paid X [E B E T H R - AN E
employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or MEExXLEFMNERSE T X E
as compensation for loss of office. & MEAEMAREB KR IMNA

AR ER BB O SRR SR B AR AR ME

15. DIVIDENDS 15. BB

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Dividends recognised as distributions & R 4 0 K H I 8
during the year 60,000 60,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—

15.

174

E-—H+-A=+—HULFE

DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

On 13 June 2022, the Company declared a dividend of RMB0.028
per share with total dividends of RMB30,000,000 to shareholders
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2021: RMB30,000,000).
The dividend was paid in June 2022.

On 11 October 2022, the Company declared a dividend of
RMBO0.028 per share with total dividends of RMB30,000,000
to shareholders for the period ended 30 June 2022 (2021:
RMB30,000,000). The dividend was paid in October 2022.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 of RMB0.028 per
share, amounting to approximately RMB30,000,000 to be paid out
of the Company’s share premium amount, which is subject to the
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming general meeting.

15. RE (&)

RZE-_—_FAF+=H ' 4ARQ7F
MEREREE T =-_—F+=
A=T—HLEFENREFRA
R¥0.02870 r B RFEEARE
30,000,000 (ZE = —F: AR
#30,000,0007T) - Zfx B E R =
T ZFRNRAIRM -

R-ZEBE-_—_F+A+—H ' AR
AIARREREREE T - —F X
A=ZTHIBHHEAORESRAR
¥0.028L WMEBRFEEARK
30,000,000 (ZE = —F : AR
#30,000,0007T) - Z R B E R =
T —F+ HIR e

RmERKRE B2 ==
T A=+ —BLEFENRBRE
FRARK0.028T S REEY
A R #30,000,0007T# B AR 7 i%
DR ERPIRM - WEERERERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_S__F+_A=1+—HIEFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. W% BMERR®E

Leasehold Motor Furniture ~ Construction
Buildings improvements  Machineries vehicles  and fixtures in progress Total
Br RENRRE #8 RE  GERZE ERIR it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT NRETT ARETT ARETT
cosT B
At1 January 2021 N5 -F-f-A 103979 2,231,931 57,126 5958 213,548 771210 2,689,752
Additions e = = 988 294 43,257 324,936 369,475
Transfer g3 1427 302,244 - - - (303,671) -
Disposals & - (372,39) (1,648) (217) (15432) - (389,535)
At 31 December 2021 HNZEZ-F1ZR=1-H 105,406 2,161,937 56,466 6,035 U133 98,475 2,669,692
Additions RE - - 4439 851 2,99 305,836 34,116
Transfer &2 1357 269,346 - - - (270,703) -
Disposals & - (130451) (1,269) (605) (25,279) - (157,604)
At 31 December 2022 RIBZZE4ZA=1-A 106,763 2,300,832 59,636 6,281 239,084 133,608 2,846,204
DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT frERAE
At 1 January 2021 N5 -%-f-A 2,579 1,213,324 20,637 444 127,146 - 1,393,130
Charge or the year E% 713 102515 8725 49 16,063 - 164,905
Charge to loss on closure of BHEEERRE
restaurants (Note) (h3t) = 80,979 = = = = 80,979
Eliminated upon disposals of HESERER
accumulated depreciation - (330,808) (1,537) (207) (13329 - (345,881)
Eliminated upon disposals of HEZTREBELER
accumulated impairment loss - (41,019 - - - - (41,019
Impairment loss recognised in profit o loss WEZAEAHERE - 44,016 10,644 132 10,189 - 4,981
At 31 December 2021 [ 3y el o 3412 136,007 38469 4858 170,069 - 1617115
Charge for the year T 7,858 348,831 7.8 51 35,688 - 400,669
Eliminated upon disposals of HERHERAS
accumulated depreciation - (125,052) (1.1 (575) (21,785) - (148,589)
Eliminated upon disposals of HESTHERRRES
accumulated impaiment loss - (5397) - - (2,103 - (7,500)
Impairment loss recognised in proftor loss - R EA BT HEEE - 21,786 5 - 1436 - B
At 31 December 2022 R-B-ZE+-f=1-A 42,510 1,609,175 45,185 4734 183,305 - 1,884,969
CARRYING AMOUNT B
At 31 December 2022 R-B-ZE+-f=1-A 64,193 691,657 14,451 1,547 55,719 133,608 961,235
At 31 December 2021 RZE--E+-f=1-A 70,69 792,930 17,997 117 7130 98,475 1,052,517
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

16.

176

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated over their useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual value, on a
straight-line basis as follows:

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

20 years

Over the shorter

of the lease term and
estimated useful lives
up to 5 years

Machineries 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

Note:

As a result of the continuous changing and recurring Covid-19, the Group
has experienced negative conditions including closure and suspension of
operation of certain restaurants, lukewarm customer consumptions for
some periods of time during the year and the decline in operating results
of certain restaurants.

As at 31 December 2022, the management of the Group
concluded there was an impairment indicator for related leasehold
improvement and right-of-use assets, with carrying amounts of
RMB691,657,000 and RMB1,417,290,000 respectively (2021:
RMB792,930,000 and RMB1,638,334,000), and conducted
impairment assessment on the recoverable amounts. The Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the restaurants to which
the leasehold improvement and right-of-use assets belong as
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the
assets individually, including allocation of corporate assets when
reasonable and consistent basis can be established.

16. ¥  BERR®E#)

tamE - BERXRHBERAE (B
TRERIN) &5t KA RISEER
B AR T Al 2 R T

&=

BF 204

HEMHEEE RHABEER

ESF M EE

A] A H R A

BI8E

Hes 3E 104

TE 44

REREE 3&54
MoaE -

B 70 i R R B T M R R 1B
AEEEBAMNER EFERFAE
THRETEERALRDEFEEZEE &
PHBEITSURE TEENKE

R-_EBE-_—&F+—-_A=+—H ' &K
CSEEREERAHBEHEHEMFEE
EREAREERRENR  KH
E» Bl A AR#691,657,0007T &
AR #1,417,290,0007T (ZFE = —
F: AR#792,930,000T kAR
#1,638,334,0007T) © IF ¥ AT Yz [@)
SREETRERN G  c HREEER
AHEEAKESE (BERAR
VEB-—BEERSEAREE)
WASEEEHEMERERERE
BEMBZEEMNTHESBETH
it o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—

16.

E-—H+-RA=+—HULFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The recoverable amount of each restaurant has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management of the Group covering the remaining lease term
with a pre-tax discount rate ranging from 13.34% to 14.13% as
at 31 December 2022 (2021: ranging from 11.63% to 12.38%)
reflecting the specific risks relating to the relevant restaurants
operated in different regions. The other key assumption for the
value in use calculation is revenue annual growth rate which
is determined based on historical performance and relevant
operation plans.

Based on the result of the assessment, the management of
the Group determined that the recoverable amount of certain
restaurants are lower than the carrying amount. The impairment
loss has been recognised and allocated to relevant property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets such that the carrying
amount of each category of asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less cost of disposal, its value in use and
zero. Based on the value in use calculation, an impairment of
RMB23,274,000 and RMB30,026,000 (2021: RMB64,981,000 and
RMB54,447,000), respectively, has been recognised against the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets.

The impairment loss recognised for the above assets have been
included in profit or loss in the “other gains and losses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group with the
carrying amount of RMB14,264,000 (2021: Nil) were pledged as
security for certain short-term borrowing (as disclosed in Note 30)
amounting to RMB14,328,000 (2021: Nil).

16.

M- BERRE®

ZEEBEJREOSEREFEAEE
TEEBTE - ZAEEAERAE
EEEEMMAEMEEENRS
IR MERGEER  FERN
—EF-__H+-A=+—BNT
13.34%%14.13% (=& = — £ :
N F11.63%%=12.38% ) i Bil Bh
TR R R b & 48 & 7 48 B8
Aﬁmﬂ“ & o AT EFERAEEBED

M%%E“%WAEﬁET
ﬁﬂﬁ#ﬁi%ﬁ&m% EETE
e °

ERFTHER AEEEEEER
ETEEMAKE B ERRER
B EREIABREEBBELSEEH
BYE BE NMKENLRERBE
EE - MMSEEENEREAT
gRVEERREQLFERHENK
A -EFERAERSEZHNERS °
BEBEEAEETSE  EYE K
);‘%& SEREAEEAERDER
R ED B A AR%23,274,0007T
&/\E%oozcsooofc(_?_—
£ AR#64,981,0007T & A R ¥
54,447,0007C) °

?ﬁttﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁwﬂfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ)\
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ﬂﬂ”ﬂl &R 1R BB ES

AEBWNETHYWE WEMBKE
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FTH#i &) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_F__F+_A=1+—HIFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FAREE
Leasehold Leased
lands  properties Total
et HEWE et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBETIE ARETT ARBTET

As at 31 December 2022 RN-—EBE-Z
t=A=+-8
Carrying amount BREE 107,254 1,310,036 1,417,290
As at 31 December 2021 R —5F
+=BA=+—H
Carrying amount BREE 109,791 1,528,543 1,638,334
For the year ended BE-—E—-—&
31 December 2022 TZRA=E+—HLEE
Depreciation charge TEER 2,538 558,911 561,449
Impairment recognised in profit P48 %5 7 SRR 1EL() = 30,026 30,026
or loss (i)
2,538 588,937 591,475
For the year ended BE=-ZS=-—f
31 December 2021 TZA=+—HLEFE
Depreciation charge WweEsHA 2,426 583,939 586,365
Impairment recognised in P48 25 SRR ML) - 54,447 54,447
profit or loss (i)
2,426 638,386 640,812
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_—_F+-A=+—HItFE
17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. EAEEE &)

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021

—E-= -

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARE TR ARET T

Expense relating to short-term leases  E2%5 HAFH E AR &Y 5 2 29,382 40,699
Variable lease payments not included st A E B EE 28

in the measurement of lease Al S &~

liabilities 57,861 79,588

Total cash outflow for leases (ii) THER#IE L T L) 653,343 789,391

Additions to right-of-use assets (iii) 58 A & BN & (i) 422,206 517,582

B EE

Notes:

Vi

()

(iii)

After the assessment, the recoverable amount of the right-of-use
asset was RMB1,417,290,000 (2021: RMB1,638,334,000) and
an impairment of RMB30,026,000 (2021: RMB54,447,000) was
recognised during the current year.

Amount includes payments of principal and interest portion of lease
liabilities, variable lease payments, short-term leases and payments
of lease payments on or before lease commencement date. These
amounts could be presented in operating, investing or financing cash
flows.

Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from new leases
entered and adjustments to fair value of rental deposits at initial
recognition, lease modification, reassessment/exercise of extension
options and payments for leasehold land.

The Group leases restaurants land and rented premises for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed terms of
1 month to 20 years, but may have extension and termination
options as described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

() RFEE FREZEENAKE
4% AR %1,417,290,0007T (=
T=——4F: AR%1,638,334,000
Jt) KO E A R #30,026,0007T

T —%F: AR#¥54,447,000
T0) ERARFERER ©

(i) HEASEEERNEERS BN
ZHMEEREAS RAEEHD
ek ATEEE MR RERES
IR ANEENKRIE - ZF
REAREE REIMERS

MEZS -

(i) HEEASERERETZHELH L
RERKHEREAFEIE
HEBR b TEERER
HE L NRMELENEREE
o

rEEBAKERACHRAEELT R
HEM - BES L HIRE T FH
& A =20F 5] EATEB TX
Fraft 2 A B % 4% | E R i 4 o M HA R
BEREEFTEI RS EZ R TR
IR R AGE - RETHEB RFT-HT
ARGETHRRER  AEBERA
HHERRETE S QARG ENITHY
FH o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z_—_F+-A=+—BHItFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. ERAREE &®)
The Group regularly entered into short-term leases mainly for $%.£;<Eﬁfﬂ‘£%%&ﬁé§# 28
rented premises and catering delivery robots. As at 31 December ATHEIGI EHIFE - XN = 2::
2022, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio E+-H=+—H EHASHEA
of short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense BUREXFARECSHESEMRAY A
disclosed above (2021: similar). BEREHEAE (ZE=—F [
£)o
Leases of restaurants are either with only fixed lease payments ZEAAABENEBRTHEE N
or contain variable lease payment that are based on 1% to 17% @%%E@ﬁﬁ’%%ﬁ%éﬂ% (==
(2021: 2% to 20%) of sales and minimum annual lease payment Z—F 1 2%%E20%) ) FEBHEEN
that are fixed over the lease term. Some variable payment terms FNHEBAANEENREFHEEN
include cap clauses. The payment terms are common in restaurants e BT R ENATIERBIE ERIE
in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Singapore where the Group K BEANTIERANAERKZ AT
operates. MR BIA - BB RN E
The amount of fixed and variable lease payments paid to relevant TR ETEANEE XA &
lessors are as follows: ENFHESREAT :
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_ZE-_—_f+-H=+—HLt
Number of Fixed Variable
restaurants payments payments Total
BEYHE E E 14 & G- XN et

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTR AR®TR

Restaurants without EHENRNBE
variable lease payments 351 150,340 - 150,340
Restaurants with variable BB ENZHNEE
lease payments 779 334,400 57,861 392,261
1,130 484,740 57,861 542,601
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—_E—_—F+-_A=+—H1
FE
Number of Fixed Variable
restaurants payments payments Total
EBR¥E BEENR HFEARK #Et
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETTT
Restaurants without SIS RN EE
variable lease payments 423 202,314 - 202,314
Restaurants with variable BB ENZHEE
lease payments 799 378,974 79,588 458,562
1,222 581,288 79,588 660,876
The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms is that AR SN RIERNREE K&
higher rental costs are incurred by restaurants with higher sales. AEEERESEEELARSHEES K
Variable rent expenses are expected to continue to represent a Ko FBHAEALESTNAKEE
similar proportion of restaurant sales in future years. e s 0o (1 2% B 4 = 2 AR () B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—

17.

E-—H+-RA=+—HULFE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Restrictions or covenants on leases

Lease liabilities of RMB1,427,220,000 are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of RMB1,417,290,000 as at 31 December
2022 (2021: lease liabilities of RMB1,599,285,000 and related
right-of-use assets of RMB1,638,334,000). The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases committed

As at 31 December 2022, the Group entered into new leases for
several restaurants that have not yet commenced, with average
non-cancellable period ranging from 4 to 10 years (2021: 5 to
10 years), excluding period under extension options. The total
future undiscounted cash flows over the non-cancellable period
amounted to RMB61,336,000 (2021: RMB13,131,000).

Rent concessions

During the year ended 31 December 2022, lessors of restaurants
provided rent concessions to the Group through rent reductions
ranging from 16% to 100% over one to twelve months.

These rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence of
Covid-19 pandemic and met of all of the conditions in IFRS
16.46B, and the Group applied the practical expedient not to
assess whether the changes constitute lease modifications. The
effects on changes in lease payments due to forgiveness or waiver
by the lessors for the relevant leases of RMB5,060,000 were
recognised as negative variable lease payments for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: RMB3,965,000).

17. ﬁmﬁéﬁt&%}

MHEPRHI 2%
RZFE-_—F+=—A=+—H"
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TERMBHEAFCAEEEARE
1,417,290,0007‘1 (ZZE = — & :
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ThEBEREEEARE
1,638,334,0007T) — (fiER - FA &
1o a8 N £ e DRI 2255 - MR A A
B EEEERERKRIN - HE
BETABIEEENERD -

ERERE

RZE_—_#F#+-_A=+—H' K
SRR ZEERE M ARG
BE FHTAEEHEN TF4E10
F(ZEZ_—F :5Z210F) ' ™8
JEEH R IZRETE T AR S A] BiH
R ARRAMIRIRERELES
AR#61,336,00070 (=B = —4
AR#13,131,0007T) °

HEBE

HE_ZT-_—_F4+-_A=+—H1I
FE -ZBRELEAAZBER 21+
& A Ak 4 16%Z=100%#) 7 & [A)
AEERBEHSESR -

ZEHSBEERCovid-19% BEEE
Sl#e - B A BB SRS EE
16.46BIXFT B -1 « AL BE A
AITHEEE T HEH - TR
HEEBT -#HE2E-_T-_—F+—-F4
=+t—HLFE BREEEELR
AE B FH B AR ¥S5,060,000T
Eﬁfﬁiﬂﬁxﬁ@mwaﬁ% ==
BHENR(ZE=Z_—F: AR
3,965,00075)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_F__F+_A=1+—HIFE

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 18. EERIBEE &&
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of BREEMBERAKRENR  BETE
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have EFIBEEERBEDEHRIE - st
been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax BEREBEMZEERIBLEGHZOMN
balances for financial reporting purposes: AT

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H
2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—F
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTT

Deferred tax assets RIET IR B E 73,222 43,020
Deferred tax liabilities EERHIABE - (3,958)

73,222 39,062
The movements in the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the ERNELEHRBEBEE (BB &
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances (Wimst RS AR RS E NS
within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: R (N

Impairment ~ Accrued
Fair value  of property royalty  Right-of-use Impairment of
Ta  Deferred  Contract  changeof  plantand expense assets/lease ~right-of-use
losses income liabilities FVIPL  equipment  notpaid liabilities assets Others Total
i1l 5 UES
RAOVEHE BER  Afm: EREER/ kAR
HAFE  EEMA  AHAE HATERD  RRRE GRERY  RERE  EENE £ it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2021 HN-E-—%-5-B - 7032 38% (9079 7,806 14,553 9731 7942 138 8,203
(Charged) ceditto proftorloss B (H18) 5 A - (2616) 25 5,10 (6477) 309 (11.88) (688 (1886)  (47.141)
At 31 December 2021 WN-E--£+-A=t-A - 4416 1313 (395¢) 1329 11,504 17,84 1098 5516 39062
Credit (Charged) to profitorloss 5 (0B B3 A 32871 ©) 1337 3,958 2540 (113 1,564 1845 1259 34160
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZEtzf=1-R 3287 434 2650 - 3876 MW 19,408 298 65 B
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

B —FH - A=+—HILFE

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of RMB493,916,000 (2021:
RMB480,417,000) with no deferred tax asset recognised as it is
not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The unrecognised tax losses will be expired as follows:

18. EiERIBEE &FE @)

RB|ER - ANEEETHRE R
=28 A R1493,916,0007T (=&
— —4 : A R¥480,417,0007T)
R B 7 K AT BE BE AE A H0R0ET I 1 2=
A AERIMAERT G -
EIERELERIEEE °

RIERTIRE B R P LA T BRI &

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARET T
2023 :E:_i 11,599 12,709
2024 T4 60,596 60,913
2026 :Ez/ﬁ 202,169 202,169
2027 —EF 243,296 =
2028 —EZN\F 86,291 86,291
Indefinite 42 'R 5 19,607 17,205
623,558 379,287

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB623,558,000 (2021: RMB379,287,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams in respective subsidiaries.

RBEHRR  AEERSBAHEES
B AR#623,558,0007T (Z & = —
& AR#¥379,287,0007T) A K
ﬁﬁﬂixfru;ﬁ FR A 0 T8 B & [T /B

76’75KX%IJ/F3,M M LA B
REAHRBEBERELEHIBEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—RHILFE

19. RENTAL DEPOSITS 19. HeHE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8
2022 2021
—=E-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

Rental deposits Heme 190,508 183,021
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (15,135) (13,439)
Net of rental deposits HeHe FE 175,373 169,582
Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of rental deposits AR REBEREGE
are as follows: W
2022 2021
—=E-= T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTR ARBTT

At 1 January n—H—H 13,439 =
Impairment losses recognised BErERREEIE 11,206 13,439
Impairment losses reversed [RECAE: RN E (5.,878) —
Write-offs FE3H (3,632) -
At 31 December Wn+=—A=+—H 15,135 13,439
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_S__F+_A=1+—HIEFE

20. INVENTORIES

20. &

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2022 2021
—=E-= T —F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T
Food and beverage R & #e 539,905 532,595
Other materials H et 56,311 45,553
Consumables FEM 18,270 20,814
614,486 598,962

21.
PREPAYMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

21.

BESZEWERR R HMER
MIE AR B RE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H

2022 2021

—E2-= —E-—%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Trade receivables H 5 MW R R 51,006 41,748

Prepaid operating expenses B EER 24,978 32,181

Prepayments to suppliers TR AT B 7 FRIR 2,995 2,565
Amounts prepaid to the RSU trustee &t B B 3 A% [7) BRI P {0 BE iz

for purchase of ordinary shares XEAEMNB R 756 15,497

Input value-added tax recoverable A] Uk [B] 3% (5 Fi i TR 163,018 282,587

Other receivables H {th e W3R8 56,147 54,755

298,900 429,333

Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (33,957) (34,543)

Total trade and other receivables Z o EINER R N E b e
and prepayments We SR I8 DA R FB A+ SR IB 42 58 264,943 394,790
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_F__F+_A=1+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other

21. ESEWEBRFR R EAMER
MIEURESRIE#)

H UGN R EERBREES

receivables are as follows: RN

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
At 1 January mn—HA—H 34,543 16,881
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 171 17,662
Impairment losses reversed [RECIEINC RN (430) =
Write-offs +t 88 (327) =
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 33,957 34,543

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of
allowance for doubtful debts) presented based on the invoice

UTRRBEZEZEHZINE HE
Wk (HIBR RAR B B) M BRER 7

date: #r
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+—8H
2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET ARETF T
Within 30 days 30BN 40,420 33,083
31 to 90 days 31290H 9,595 7,817
91 to 180 days 912180H 991 848
51,006 41,748

At the end of the reporting period, there is no trade receivable
that has past due but not impaired.

RBEHR - LEEBAMERRKE
0B 5 I8 R

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
for the years ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 39.

BE_T__F+-_A=t—HL
FEEE 5 18 WK R E b FE U R
TE B0 R (B AT A R 1B B P E39 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_ZT_—_F+-_A=t+—HItFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial asset mandatorily measured at FVTPL:

38
i
=
8
o
B
%
5
-
o
E'It
i
=
&
-

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—8H
2022 2021

—=E—-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

Financial products (i) % Rl E () 390,203 -

Derivative financial instruments (ii) 574 % m T E(i) - 15,832
390,203 15,832

Analysed for reporting purpose as: HERBENDNTA :

Current assets mENEE 290,189 15,832

Non-current asset (i) IE 7 B) & (i) 100,014 -
390,203 15,832

Notes: Mot -

(i) As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL
amounting to RMB390,203,000 are the financial products issued by
banks and investment fund companies which have no predetermined
or guaranteed return and are not principal protected. These financial
assets are with expected rates of return, depending on the market
price of underlying financial instruments, including government
bonds, central bank bills, trust and other financial assets.

The maturity date of the financial product classified as non-current
asset is 4 January 2024.

RZT_—F+=—A=+—H"
7 £ @ A R #390,203,0007T 5
BESEATETENEREE
BIRTEEEESNRIBETNE
BER BEBERHIRBERK
TRE - ZE¢HEEELAFTEE
EHE - EEFHEECRIA (R
RHRFES RITZE 1k
HthSMEE) B ER -

DRRIERDEENSBERD
HBHAAR—T_WFE—AMA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

188

(if)

In 2019, Xiabu Beijing acquired certain property, machines and
fixtures at a consideration of RMB96,116,000 from two non-related
individual third parties (the “Sellers”) through obtaining ownership
of Xilin Gol League Yishun halal meat Co., Ltd. (“Yishun”) of which
Yishun has become a subsidiary of the Group. One of the sellers
of Yishun, Xiabu Beijing and a third-party trust company entered
into several trust agreements under which, the seller entrust the
third-party trust company to set up a trust plan (“the Trust”) and
transferred RMB60,000,000 to the Trust on 10 September 2019.
According to the Trust agreements, the Trust should complete the
purchase of the Company’s shares of RMB60,000,000 from the
market within the portfolio construction period which has been
eventually completed on 11 November 2019 (the “end of portfolio
construction period”). The Trust would be terminated within three
years since the end of portfolio construction period. According to
the Trust agreements, the investment principal of RMB60,000,000
and a fixed return of RMB2,400,000 per annum was guaranteed by
Xiabu Beijing and the seller is entitled to additional returns under
specific condition based on the price of the stock shares, while Xiabu
Beijing will take the residual return/loss from the Trust accordingly,
on the net settlement in cash, if any.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company’s right and obligation
in the Trust constitute a derivative which is based on the stock price
of the Company. The derivative was recorded as a financial asset
measured at FVTPL. The Trust was terminated according to the Trust
agreements in the current year.

22. EBRBERELAFYETEW
ERMEE (&)

(if)

RZT—NF - BEFiRERBER
BHEMBHBEFIEEERNEER
EErA ([HFIED FTERE (FIE
RAEXREENBAR) BMAGE
Rt OB ER AL ([EA))
WS TYE HEREE K
B A AR196,116,0007T « 7 IE
Hp—ZFH WL R R
BEELARLE TEER
FOBE EAZAMORmESE
ERARRMEFEE((EFED)
TR=—_ZTE—-—hENLA+BHEIE
sTE A R ¥60,000,0007T © 1R
BiExhs EXARNKREHRES
ERHRNEKEMSBEEE
A R #60,000,0007T B & A &) f%
D HEEERERKR=_Z—NF
+—A+—BRK([REASE
ERHBER]) - XA RER
AREHEREN=ZFRNKL -
BEETHZE BRELASEARE
60,000,0007T & @ & Bl )k & F A
R #2,400,0007T A " iF 46 = 4
R BREBEBFTEGEHGEE
BERBENEINE R - M FE
b F S RE B SR EIR & 405
BB TEREIE(E) -

BERE ARATNEEHERN
REBEXN —BHEREAQARKRE
HOTAETRE R-B-—F+=
B=+—H fT£ETEAKRAE
BEZEAFEFENERME
E-AFE  AEABRBETH
TEHR L ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_—_F+-A=+—HItFE

23. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 23. ZRFIRITHEER
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+-—H
2022 2021
—=E=-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE TR ARET T
Bank balances restricted for: REIEA T AEMIRITA R
Prepaid cards B R 61,521 66,268
Balances classified under current assets % %8 /& /i 8) & 2= 1Y) 4 64 61,521 66,268
The restricted bank balances carried interest at prevailing market R-E-_—_F+—-A=+—H ' %
rates which range from 1.30% to 1.75% (2021: 0.3% to 1.725%) FE4IER 1T 45 AR IR T IE M RN F
per annum as at 31 December 2022. FE130%E1.75% (ZE = —F:
0.3%%&1.725%) 5t 2 o
24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. BENBEESZEEY
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—8H
2022 2021
—E2-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE TR ARET T
Cash and bank balances ARSI ER G ENIR e &
denominated in: IRITH B
- RMB — AR 256,536 809,231
- USD — ETT 1,148 98,526
— HKD — BT 28,176 11,211
- SGD — Frhnig ot 3,495 1,565
- TWD —Hak 11,351 -
300,706 920,533
Cash and cash equivalents carried interest at prevailing market R-_E-_—F+-_/=+—8 &
rates which range from 0.250% to 2.100% (2021: 0.001% to N F0.250%F2.100% (=& = —
1.667%) per annum as at 31 December 2022. F :0.001%%E1.667% ) K9IR1TTH
BEFEEE o
The bank balances denominated in RMB were deposited with DABREAENEITESRAETIR
banks in the PRC and the conversion of such balances into foreign FENIRITOER B2 E&E6G
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign BAEINE BESTPRBTERNES
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. B8 HNE & Sl B 48 Bl 2 38 ) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. EZENERR

BHRNERR/TFHNE  B—K
RTEORMEEDR NEFER £
REMEKRBRANAEEE Z RN
BRAREDTET

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally granted
on 60-days credit term. An aged analysis of the Group’s trade
payables, as at the end of each year, based on the goods received
date, is as follows:

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
Within 60 days 60H A 237,424 246,217
61 to 180 days 612180H 4,391 2,619
181 days to 1 year 181BE14F 520 1,038
Over 1 year 18 LA £ 399 820
242,734 250,694

26. ACCRUAL AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. Bt ERA N EMENSFIE

As at 31 December

190

R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARB T ARETT
Construction fee payables FEfH e T & A 125,374 192,272
Amount due to a joint venture FEfT & B EFKIB
(Note 37) (M 5E37) 57,085 —
Staff cost payable FEfH B T A 132,534 147,172
Deposits from suppliers HEFHS 58,922 67,674
Accrued variable and short-term EerZEhERHeRWES
rental and property fee 35,760 48,621
Accrued operating expenses JEFT R EFE 84,228 77,540
Other PRC tax payables H b fE S AR B B IR 12,035 34,810
Others Ht 37,017 35,779
542,955 603,868
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HItFE
27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HE&E
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+-—H
2022 2021
—=E=-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T AREF T
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEEE
Within one year —FR 493,231 509,492
Within a period of more than one BB —FEENBBRE
year but not exceeding two years 2 B A 392,688 430,060
Within a period of more than two 78 38 R 6F B N HB 3R h 5
year but not exceeding five years Z B A 492,140 581,426
Within a period of more than five HR R R F 2 HIE R
years 49,161 78,307
1,427,220 1,599,285
Less: Amount due for settlement B mEBBEEE TR
with 12 months shown 128 B NZE&E B & 58
under current liabilities (493,231) (509,492)
Amount due for settlement after 12 FERBEBFEETAR
months shown under non-current 128 A& B BN S
liabilities 933,989 1,089,793
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to HEAGEANONEEYHIEEE
lease liabilities range from 3.60% to 5.88% (2021: 3.60% to K ZEANF3.60%%E5.88% (==
5.64%). ——F : N F3.60%%E5.64%) o
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other than AEAE R EEINE B A INEHE
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out HENHEESEEFHEI T :
below:
SG Dollars HK Dollars US Dollars
3 T BT EH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARET T ARET T
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-_—_F#+-A=+—8H 5,701 82,281 23
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+-_F=+—H 2,699 82,321 65
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE

—E-—H+-_A=+—HUIEE

28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

192

28. BB

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E=—= —T-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTTT
Customer loyalty programme (Note i) A% & 38 Z 51 & (P 5i) 19,140 18,048
Prepaid cards and advance from TR RE P B (H i)
customers (Note ii) 380,794 298,592
399,934 316,640
Current mE 399,934 316,640
Notes: =T -
(i) Customer loyalty programme 0) BE A EE
The contract liability of customer loyalty programme was recognised EE g BAHESENELAEE
along with the restaurant services provided during each reporting B & ﬁﬁt Hﬂ F'Eﬁ BT i2 it By B
period. As at 31 December 2022, the balance of RMB19,140,000 (as Eﬁ AR 7% — A cHMZEZ =
at 31 December 2021: RMB18,048,000) represents the unredeemed = el = Jr — E iﬁ%}\ =3

performance obligation relating to the customer loyalty programme.

Prepaid cards and advance from customers

The prepaid cards and advance from customers of the Group are
refundable. However, no material refund was raised historically and
the management of the Group expects the amounts to be refunded
in the future reporting periods is insignificant.

No revenue recognised in year 2022 are related to performance
obligations that were satisfied in a prior year (2021: Nil).

(i)

#19,140,0005T (#
F+-A=+-0:AR#%
18,048,0007T) #& £ A & 8 3 /2
AEIERNARBITRAORSL -

u
|

BN RRE PR

AEENENRREFEFP BRI A
‘E‘ﬁ A BEREEREXN
R BAEEEEERHEER
FRREHRRENSREYL S
s e

R-ZE__FHERIEE L —F
EE%TE’JE%,JEEEEE’UH&)\ (=

—FE) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 28. EHNEE#)
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in TREATRNRNFEREDRU A B4
the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. BANBEMNEBREE -
Prepaid
Customer cards and
loyalty advance from
programmes customers
BEE BAFR
BHEE BEFBX
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®EF T
For the year ended Bz—_E—-_—%
31 December 2022 +-A=+—HILEE
Revenue recognised that was included zF AF )& 4 & BEE %
in the contract liability balance at the &YBE#ERI A
beginning of the year 14,985 298,592
For the year ended BE=-ZS=-—f
31 December 2021 TZA=+—BLEE
Revenue recognised that was included &+ AFHIE LB ELHED
in the contract liability balance at the B R U A
beginning of the year 15,246 285,013
29. DEFERRED INCOME 29. IEFEW A
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB‘000
AR TR ARBTT
Government grant (Note) B S 7 B (B &%) 25,033 26,310
Current Vi) 1,277 1,277
Non-current ERE 23,756 25,033
25,033 26,310
Note: =T -

Deferred income represents subsidies granted by the government in
relation to acquisition or construction of non-current assets, which is
released over the useful lives of the relevant assets. During the year ended
31 December 2022, RMB1,277,000 was released to other income (2021:
RMB1,818,000).

2022 ANNUAL REPORT ZZT = —FF R

EIEWAEBFETHE BKESE
5% FE 7 B) & B A A AL o 3R T A R AR
HAEAENATRERANER -#HE-T
T+ -_A=1+—HALFEE&ED
EERAAREE,277,0000 (=2 =—
£ AR%1,818,0007T)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z_—_F+-A=+—BHItFE

30. BANK BORROWINGS 30. SRITMEXN

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8H
2022 2021
—=E=-= - —F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE TR ARET T
Unsecured AR 350 =
Secured (Note) BHEA (M) 58,328 75,804
58,678 75,804

Note: B 5E

As at 31 December 2022, the bank borrowings are guaranteed by a RZE_—_F+=_A=+—8 " #§1T
subsidiary of the Group and secured by certain property, plant and ERAANEEN BB AR ELE
equipment with the carrying amount of RMB14,264,000. R+ I ABRTE £ %8 A514,264,000T B9 &

THWE - BEMREELER -

As at 31 December 2021, the bank borrowings are guaranteed by a R-_EBE-_—F+=-_A=+—H  E17T

subsidiary of the Group. EREAREEN—FHM B A RIELER -

The carrying amounts of the above bank borrowing are repayable: LR ITE KA BRE E AR LA T E
FEE :

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H

2022 2021

—E—— —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥®T R AR®EF T

Within one year —FR 58,678 75,804
As at 31 December 2022, the bank borrowings carry fixed interest RZZTZ—_F+=-A=+—H " &
rate from 3.50% to 4.35% (2021: 3.85%) per annum. TREFHETEFEFNENT3.50%=

435% (=FE = —4% :3.85%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

31. PROVISIONS

31. &5

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2022 2021
—=E== —EB-—4F
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBTT

Non-current liabilities ERBEE

56,422 53,329

The balance represents provisions for an estimate of costs to be
incurred by the Group in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease. The provisions are measured at the present
value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
cost.

The movement of the provisions for the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 is as follows:

BREASERKEBRABE
= - BEEHHRRE E TS kAR
BEEREZHEGRRIIRMTR
TE IR RE R T BE A B BT A AN A0 B
B RERBEREERRAKRATAR
PRE MR HREE -

BE_S-_—_FR-_FT-—F+=
A=+—H L FERENEEHH
;R

As at 31 December

R+t=A=+—8H
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETT
At 1 January nN—HA—H 53,329 34,536
Recognition during the year FRER 5,339 33,371
Unwinding of discounts At IR B % = 2,583 1,622
Utilisation A (4,729) (16,200)
Derecognition RIETER (100) =
56,422 53,329
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_F__F+_A=1+—HIFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. BA&
Issued and fully paid-up: BERTERERE :
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+-—H
2022 2021
—E=-= T —4F
usD’000 usD'000
FEx FET
Share capital of US$0.000025 each &A% I {50.000025 3% 7T B B A 27 27
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET ARET T
Presented as: 15 ¢
Ordinary shares B 176 176
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+-—H
2022 2021
—E=-= T —4F
‘000 ‘000
T B T
Number of shares: &g :
Fully paid ordinary shares EHETBER 1,086,174 1,085,898
Ordinary shares X 38 AR
Authorised shares Issued capital
EERAR BRTRA
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
BB EE 8 BB EE KX
‘000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB'000
T AREFT T ARET T
Balance at 31 December 2020 —E-TFE+-B=+—H&H 2,000,000 336 1,083,790 175
Exercise of issued share option 174 E B{THRE - - 2,108 1
Balance at 31 December 2021 —E_-H+-A=1t—B#&% 2,000,000 336 1,085,898 176
Exercise of issued share option 1T{E B ZE 1T I A - - 276 -
Balance at 31 December 2022 —ZE-—F+_-A=+-H&& 2,000,000 336 1,086,174 176
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS

(1) Share Option Schemes

The Company adopted a share option scheme for the grant
of options to eligible participants on 28 August 2009 (the
“Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan”).
the terms of the scheme, executives and senior employees
may be granted options to purchase ordinary shares of the
Company when there is a qualified IPO. The share options

In accordance with

31&&%%?&&@%%%

NN BN

(1) BRREFE
KRBAR_ZEZENFN
— T NABmAER2HE
BOBRERE —EER
E((EXRAHBEER
B E) - RIEZTE
T ITHRAEBREREES
17
b
b

| Bk 2 5 5% = 7 D

granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan were granted EEBEBREHERAFHEER
in four different tranches on 31 August 2009, 17 May 2011, S AP NN
24 December 2012 and 21 March 2014, respectively. A% o RIE B R A B EE R
7 B2 5t &) 1% A0 B A A
AMR—ZZTNRFNA=T
B -—Z——FaHA++H"
—E——F+=-A=-+WEH
KZFE-—HWHE=H=+—H
HEESESRRE -
Share Number of Grant Expiry Exercise ~Fair value at
option tranche options granted date date pricc  grant date Vesting period
Fii i RYBH
BRERK BREHE REER  ERER €  WAVE SEAE
Share option tranche A 4,233,000 31/08/2009  31/08/2019 0.84 0.33 25% for each of 4 years after 12 months
BRES -1 from the date of qualified PO
AERERAREEERERIEAK
4EFES%
Share option tranche B 11,795,228 17/052011  17/05/2021 1.79 0.90 25% for each of 4 years after 12 months
RARES =S from the date of qualified PO
AERBEAAREERERRIEAK
4EFE%
Share option tranche C 9,670,361 2411212012 2411212022 1.84 1.10° 25% for each of 4 years after 12 months
BRES=H from the date of qualified IPO
AERBARREERERNNEAR
4EFED%
Share option tranche D
BRESDHY
Schedule | 3,207,461 21/032014  21/03/2024 278 1.19° 25% for each of 4 years after 24 months
B from the date of qualified PO
AERBEAAREERERRNUEAR
4EFE%
Schedule I 5717,140 21/03/2014  21/03/2024 278 1.2 25% for each of 4 years after 36 months
g from the date of qualified IPO
RERBRAREER BEROEAK
4EFEIS%
Schedule Il 6,604,542 21/03/2014  21/03/2024 278 1.24 5% for each of 4 years after 48 months
RS from the date of qualified PO

RERERAREEEARMBREAL
4EBEY
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—RHILFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 3B LURELEE LU AER
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) SENNEE D)
(1) Share option schemes (continued) (1) EBRESTE (2

Each share option can subscribe for one ordinary share
of the Company when exercise. No amounts are paid
or payable upon the acceptance of the option. The
options carry neither rights to dividends nor voting
rights. Options may be exercised at any time from the
vesting date to the expiry date as mentioned above.

The exercise price of the share option is the agreed
price at the date of the grant. The expiry date is no
more than ten years from the date of the grant and
the options would be forfeited when the staff resigned
before the vesting day.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_S__F+_A=1+—HIEFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(1) Share option schemes (continued)

33. UBREEEURD A ER

e NC )

(1)

8 B AR B )

The year ended 31 December

HET-R=t-AL%E

2022 2021
“EoCE “E--%
Share option tranches Tranche A Tranche B Tranche C TrancheD Tranche A Tranche B Tranche C  Tranche D
ERESR g% #£oh =M EmE E-H EoE E=h EDM
Share options granted to RPUTALHERE
Director £z - - - - - - - -
Other key management personnel EHTEERAR = o = - - - _ -
Other staff EfhER - - - 438998 - - 14400 701570
Qutstanding as at the end of the year  FRHATI(F - - - 138998 - - 14400 701,570
The year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—-HLFE
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise Number exercise
of options price of options price
Share options AR AE hREEH AR E nHEFH
B 2B TEE 2B 17fE(8
RMB RMB
AR¥TT AR
Balance at beginning of F )4
the year 715,970 2.80 3,061,064 2.29
Forfeited during the year FRR U = = (237,504) 2.76
Exercised during the year F R 77§ (276,972) 2.97 (2,107,590) 2.75
Balance at end of the year &£ K & 438,998 2.70 715,970 2.75
Exercisable at end of the FRA[{T{E
year 438,998 607,933
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z_—_F+-A=+—BHItFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 3B.UREEELURDAER
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) SENERE N )
(1) Share option schemes (continued) (1) BERRERTE(2)

The Black-Scholes option pricing model has been used
to estimate the fair value of the options. The variables
and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the share options are based on the directors’ best
estimate. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumption.

During the vesting period, at the end of each year, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest ultimately. The impact of
the revision of the estimate, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the
equity-settled share-based payments reserve.

As at 31 December 2022, The Group has recognised
total expenses of RMB nil (2021: credit of RMB182,000)
in relation to share options granted by the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(2) Restricted share unit scheme

3. UIRELZELURDAER
FTREORSZ @)

(2) ZBRFIRADEFT S

On 28 November 2014, a RSU Scheme of the Company was
approved and adopted by the shareholders of the Company.
The RSU Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of
ten years, commencing from the date, on which the shares
of the Company are first listed on the main board of HKEX
("Listing Date"”), being 17 December 2014 (unless it is
terminated earlier in accordance with its terms) (the “RSU
Scheme Period”).

The maximum number of RSUs that may be granted under
the RSU Scheme in aggregate (excluding RSUs that have
lapsed or been cancelled in accordance with the rules of the
RSU Scheme) must not exceed 42,174,566 shares, being 4%
of the total number of shares in issue as at the Listing Date
(the "RSU Scheme Limit”). The RSU Scheme Limit may be
refreshed from time to time subject to prior approval from
the shareholders in general meeting, provided that the total
number of shares underlying the RSUs granted following the
date of approval of the refreshed limit (the “New Approval
Date”) under the limit as refreshed from time to time must
not exceed 4% of the number of shares in issue as of the
relevant New Approval Date. The purpose of the RSU Scheme
is to incentivize directors, senior management and employees
for their contribution to the Group and to attract and retain
suitable personnel to enhance the development of the
Group.

The Company has appointed Computershare Hong Kong
Trustees Limited as the RSU Trustee for the administration of
the RSU Scheme pursuant to the rules of the RSU Scheme.

RZZE—mFE+—A=Z+N
= /NSNS ) s S
NA a2 PRI BALETE o
BRIEARIBR AR B G FIR BT AL LE -
& A 2 PR Il B% (0 B AL 5T 8l
BARRARGD ERRE B
RETE#R ETmEB(TESR
BED (A =ZF—m&F+= A
+ER) B +EHEEX
(TZRERMDEMTEEX
) -

B PR ) % 19 B8z 5t 8 AT
B R SRR B AR 1D BB AL AR
(T BIERIE X PR Hl| B (D BE L
TERAE RS AEENT
PRl % (7 BB Az) EFR SR8
42,174,5668% B 1 (BN 7 B
HEBITRMBEMNA% () F
PREIB D E st ZIPREE]) -
SR IR D B AT BIPR B A]
KIRRERR RS E= L
BT B EREER
REBH ((EHstEBH])
BREBETHEENORBER
Ay 52 BR &l iR 10 B8 L BT 04 iR
MBRHETBBBAEBE I
EBHEBBERTRMHEKB
H4% o X PR HI 3% 10 BE AL A El
ETRBESE SRERE
KB AAREBELER -
WK REE#EAE N AEB N
REAEBAER -

ARFEEREETERRES
ERERAR /TR N
BUXFEA REXZRHK
MEBEMAFEZREEREXR
il B fn BALET & -
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33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 3B.URELEEUROAER
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 'f__|'a=AE’33C5 ()
(2) Restricted share unit scheme (continued) (2) ZREIRMENFTE (£&)
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the RSU mEz - = —
Trustee acquired 29,577,421 (2021: 1,300,000) shares +=- A= —f— — EI JJ: F

with consideration of HK$120,156,000, equivalent to
approximately RMB104,282,000 from the market. The
shares will be held on trust for the benefit of the RSU
participants pursuant to the RSU Scheme and the trust
deed. The shares so purchased will be used as awards
for relevant participants in the RSU Scheme.

As at 31 December 2022, amounts about RMB756,000
(31 December 2021: RMB15,497,000) were held by
the RSU Trustee to purchase ordinary shares from the
market in the forthcoming period according to the
instruction of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 3B.URELAEURNAER
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) SENEE R ),
(2) Restricted share unit scheme (continued) 2) SR&IKMDENETE (&)
Number
of awarded Grant Expiry Fair value
RSUs tranche shares date date at grant date Vesting period
ZRH K5 b3 RtBH
BUHR ROHE RHLAH & B H NAYE FRHM
RSUs tranche A 2,910,920 17/11/2016  17/11/2026 4.83 25% for each of 4 years after
F BB IR BAL 01/04/2018
“E-\FHA BT
FE25%
RSUs tranche B 3,993,190 08/05/2017  08/05/2027 6.99 25% for each of 4 years after
FHZ BB Bl 01/04/2019
“Z-NFNA-HBREAE
FE25%
RSUs tranche D 33,378 31/01/2018  31/01/2028 14.98 25% for each of 4 years after
708 % IR 1A 17 B ir 01/04/2019
“E-NEEA-RE&LE
FF25%
RSUs tranche E 1,000,981 14/12/2018  14/12/2028 11.20 25% for each of 4 years after
FRBRBHIR B 01/04/2020
“ZTHENA-REAF
FF25%
RSUs tranche F 44,326 22/01/2019  22/01/2029 11.28 25% for each of 4 years after
FABR R AR B 01/04/2019
“T-NFNA-REAF
FE25%
RSUs tranche G 1,346,707 30/09/2020  30/09/2030 9.49 25% for each of 4 years after
FLHZRM A B 01/04/2021
“EZ-FNA-BELF
FFE25%
RSUs tranche H 4,407,078 30/09/2020  30/09/2030 9.49 25% for each of 4 years after
F\ B X R I f B s 01/04/2022
R CHIMA-REAE
§F25%
The grantees of the RSUs are not required to pay for SR I R (D B AL B AR A EBGER
the grant of any RSUs under the RSU Scheme or for 15 S 0B 4l % (5 B8 (7 =1 2 E BT ] &
the exercise of the RSUs. The expiry date is no more B %I % 19 B8 o7 2k mE 77138 = IR &I % 15
than ten years from the date of the grant and the RSU BUmMNE - BmBHEEL A
would be forfeited when the staff resigned before the B ABET+FE RETHNESRE
vesting day. HEA AT B - 2302 K R &l AR G5
BRI o
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33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

204

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(2) Restricted share unit scheme (continued)

The following table discloses the movement of the

Company’s RSU granted to the selected participants for

the year ended 31 December 2022:

3. UIRELZELURDAER
TR @)

(2) ZRFIRMD

BuErEl (®)
o

TREEARABE—
F__Ft+-_R=+—
AEFERBELEE
Fﬁi‘xﬁxﬁﬁﬂﬂxf\“ﬁ
HEBIE

Number of Awarded Shares

REROHE

Outstanding at

Exercised

Forfeited Outstanding at

1 January during during 31 December
2022 the year the year 2022
R-B=-ZF R-BZZF
ol +=A=+-"
i R1T B BATRE BRRK e R AT
RSU tranches SRHBABELR R
RSUs granted to BFUTALHZRH
f&in B f
Directors S 2,592,042 (938,092) - 1,653,950
Other key management EfTEEEAE
personnel - - - -
Other staff EpET 1,150,987 (444,872) (367,922) 338,193
Total o=t 3,743,029 (1,382,964) (367,922) 1,992,143

At the end of each year, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of RSUs that are expected to vest
ultimately. The impact of the revision of the estimate, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to the equity-settled share-based payments
reserve.

The Group recognised the total expense of
RMB4,838,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: RMB8,960,000) in relation to RSUs granted by
the Company this year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_T-_—F+-A=+—BILFE

34. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 3. REETENER

Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture are as follows:

AEERESLEEENREFBNOT

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—8H
2022 2021
—=E_= =g ==t
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

Cost of interest in a joint venture RELTLENER 49,000 49,000

Share of post-acquisition profits W B 12 A F1 A fb 4R & U am 1Y
and other comprehensive income (k] 149 =
49,149 49,000

Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the reporting
period are as follow:

AEERARERANE L0 EIE
m

Country of Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interest voting rights held
Name of entity registration held by the Group by the Group Principal activity
ERZH MR/ ERER AEEFSREERELA FEERSREELH 2 TEEK
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-_-f - FT-—4F ZE--FE -—-T-—&

Tianjin Richen Food Tianjin, China 50% 50% 50%
Co., Ltd. RERE
("Tianjin Richen")

KEARRmKH
BRAR(TRRAR])

50%  Food production and Sales

RmAERHE

Pursuant to the joint venture shareholders’ agreement (the “JV
Shareholders’ Agreement”) on 8 May 2021, Xiabuxiabu (China)
Food Co., Ltd ("Food China”) and Qingdao Richen Food Co., Ltd.
(EFEBREMBMHELR A A)("Qingdao Richen”) each would
hold 50% of the equity interest of Tianjin Richen. The decisions
about the relevant activities of Tianjin Richen require unanimous
consent of Food China and Qingdao Richen pursuant to the JV
Shareholders’ Agreement. In the opinion of the Directors, Food
China can exercise joint control over Tianjin Richen and the Group
accounts the investment in Tianjin Richen as interest in a joint
venture.

BERSHA-ZTS-_—FHA/N\BH
EELEBRRBH((EELER
RippeE]) e (FE) Ra
ERAB(RmHTE]) EESEA
ReEmBOHBRAR(EEBAR])
2RI A K2 A RS0% M - 1R
BEEELERRMGZ  XKEARMA
AR RRARRLTHESS
FR—HAE -EFRA Rm
B AT % K02 B R 760 R #22 1) -
BAEB BN RZRAROKE AR
BRERNBZLELFER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE=

35.

36.

206

T —H#+-_A=+—HULEE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EAREIE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-= B
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARBTT
Capital expenditure contracted for but BLUEEM ¥ - BiE K&
not provided in the consolidated FEEETAMERR
financial statements in respect of RE I wER A
acquisition of property, plant and BENERAZ
equipment 28,289 15,516
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME CONTRIBUTIONS  36. 3E K38 % 5+ & it 2k

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme") established under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong for all qualifying employees of
its Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributed 5% of the
relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme but limited to the cap of
HK$1,500.

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit plan operated by the government of the PRC.
The PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
plan to fund the employee benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the
specified contributions. The retirement benefit cost charged to
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to
RMB132,098,000 (2021: RMB126,641,000).

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
had no forfeited contributions under those schemes which may be
used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.
There were also no forfeited contributions available at 31
December 2022 under the schemes which may be used by the
Group to reduce the contribution payable in future years (2021:
none).

REE/ER BT BT K B
NANERAEREERARES
7858 Bl 1E AR & At &R RR AV 58
HELEEE ([BREEE]) -
RELFEMNEERARENEE
DHEE  YHIFEAMEHNES
A AREHRBESTEEHD
AR BEHFERANS% - B
88 EPR1,500/ 7T °

AEEFTRHEEY AT BRBTE R
MEXRERERKBHEEIKE o &
RRIM AR BB AR ERRERNE
BT & B D mZENRENGEH
o AEEERBAFTERFKIE ©
AEEHRRKREMNFGENE—F
FRANABELHRENHER BEZT
=&+ =-A=+—HBItEE "' B8
EanRTHERRENKASEAR
#132,098,000C (ZZF = —4F : A
R #126,641,0007T) °

REBEEZZT_—_FER=_FT=_—%F
+ZA=+—HLEFE AEER
ZEFT BN B S IR AR FRAT AR
SERERIVERHEIUKE - R
T__F+ZA=+—8 RN&=E
FHEI T IMEE SR R AT AR
BERLARBFREMNER(ZE
——F:E\E)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
- F+-A=t+—HIEFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Related party transactions

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group has following transactions
and balances with related parties:

37. BEAXRS
(a) BEITRS

B R 5% 5 7

AU BHRERAE
tb ZB 5 ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%?l\ :

REE

‘Eﬁﬁ%@ mx%&mﬂﬁ%ﬁur :

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

Relationship Nature of transactions 2022 2021
& XHEME —g-C —B_—F
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFTT
Related companies controlled by  Purchase of food ingredients 52 306
the Controlling Shareholder BERM
% AR R AT I B E A A Royalty expense 30,524 23,890
FET R X
Short-term lease expense 1,200 1,200
RHEERY

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

Relationship Nature of balances 2022 2021
& HBME et e —F_—F
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
Related companies controlled by ~ Trade and other receivables and 2,103 49
the Controlling Shareholder prepayments
7 R A% BR P 1 i B 1 A B 5 R U BR 50 e EL A e AR B Je
T RIA
Accrual and other payables 3,889 1,957
JEET & A N H At JE 5O

Joint venture (Note) Other payables 57,085 -

e (KE)

H At 3R

Note: The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

MisE: SHREER REREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—RHILFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (ConTINUED) 37. BEFRXR B (&)
(b) Emoluments of key management personnel of (b) REBFTEESEAEDN
the Group #r A

As at 31 December

Rt=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—_E-— T —%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETF T
Short-term employee benefits EHEER 1,085 1,062
Retirement benefit scheme RIRETET SR
contribution = 26
Equity-settled share-based payments LA % 45 & LA RR 17 & FL i
ORNE - (131)
1,085 957
No Director’s emoluments are included above, further details ExitEpitEEE - 5
of the Directors’ emoluments are included in Note 14. BEEHFEBMNE— S EHEH
R E14
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE_Z_—_F+-A=+—HItFE

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
interests in the following subsidiaries:

8. ANAEEMBARFE

HE—_Z_—_F#+-_A=+—H1t
EE NARHEE 5K E A R

$4b 3¢

Proportion ownership
Interest/voting power
attributable to the Company

ADFARITABER
Place of Issued and paid FERESR/RERLH
Incorporation registration ordinary share 31 December 31 December

and business capital/registered capital 2022 2021
Name of subsidiaries ERALUR BERAR k- S “E=—% Principal activities
i) NG AfREELE BERE/ERER Jr:)f!EJr-‘E +:HE+—5 IEEH
0 0
Xiabu Hong Kong (Note iii Hong Kong Ordinary share capital 100 100 Investment holding
R (A B HK$1 REHK
ERRA
1T
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management Co., Ltd * The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
(ERBEEHEEAR D) (" Xiabu Beijing’) (Note |) #E RMB55,000,000 e
REREERERARAR (M) A&
AR 55,000,0007
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* ~ The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
(MREBEAEE (LR ERAR) i Us$1,000,000 4gE
("Xiabu Shanghai") (Note i) AR
RERBEREE(LE)ARAA (W) 1,000,000% 0
Coucou (China) Holdings Co., Ltd. British Virgin Islands Ordinary share capital 100 100 Investment holding
(B2 (28)2RARAT) ("Coucou (China)") (Note i) ZEELES Us$ 1 REER
EE () ARERAA (ki) EREE
30
Coucou (HK) Holdings Co., Ltd. (& (%) 2l ERAA) Hong Kong Ordinary share capital 100 100 Investment holding
EE(FR)ERERAA i HK$ 1 REBK
17
Coucou Catering Management Co., Ltd. * The PRC Paid Registered capital 100 100 Operatmg restaurant
(BEEHEEARA) (Notel) e RMB51,919,000 L
EEENERARAR (K BARMER
ARES1,919,0007
Xiaburiabu (Shangha) Industrial Co., Ltd * The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Investment holding
(BRI (15) EEARLA) (Note ) e RMB100,000 REZR
R RE (18) BRARA (W) EARMER
AR %100,0007
Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Holdings Co., Ltd. Cayman Islands Ordinary share capital 60 60 Investment holding
("Xiabu (China) Food") (Note i) F2Hs US$1,000,000 REZR
(Wl (R E) R pERARAR) ERBRA
(TE) AR ERBRAT 1,000,000% 0

RERL
L

5
(1989 (R BR) R ) (B i)
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

210

8. ARTAETEMBRARAFE

(&)

Proportion ownership
Interest/voting power
attributable to the Company

ADARITABER
Place of Issued and paid FERES/ RERLH
Incorporation registration ordinary share 31 December 31 December
and business capital/registered capital 2022 2021
Name of subsidiaries ERALUR EETRAR k- S “E=—% Principal activities
KEAREH HRREELE BERE/ERER Jr:}iEJr-E +:HE+—5 IEEH
00 0
Xiabuxiabu (HK) Food Holdings Co., Ltd Hong Kong Ordinary share capital 60 60 Investment holding
(s ms (A8 )ﬁuu}“ﬁxﬁﬁ l) g% HK$100 REBK
RERE (&%) AntRARAA ERRA
100%7
Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Co., Ltd* (“Food China") The PRC Registered capital 60 60 Food Sales
(BRI (R E) AR ARLH) (Note ) e U5$10,000,000 ARHE
RERE (RE) 2aFRAF ((HEER]) () AR
10,000,000%7
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.* The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
(REREEREE (R2) ERAA) Note ) e USD20,000,000 H2EE
REREENER (X2)5RAR (M) AR
20,000,000% 7
Coucou (Tianjin) Catering Management Co., Ltd.* The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
(B2 (R2)EREEBRAH) Note ) i USD30,000,000 i
EE(R2)BRERBRAR (HH) HfER
30,000,000%7
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.*  The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
(MR EHEE (R ERAF) Note ) i UsD1,000,000 i
REMERHRER (R BRAF () AR
1,000,000% 1
Coucou (HK) Catering Management Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Ordinary share capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
(B%(58)BRERARAA) i HK$1 HERE
EE(ER)ENERERAR EERA
1T
Xilin Gol League Yishun halal meat Co., Ltd.* The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Slaughtering, processing,
(BHAHBFEFERBARERAR)(Note ) hE RMB190,000,000 cold storage and sales
BHASEFEFENERRAERR (W) 2R of raw material
AR#190,000,0007 2% NI REREERM
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (HK) Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Ordinary share capital 100 100 Operatmg restaurant
(RRBEENEE (BE) ARAR) i HK$ 1 BLRE
RERBERER (B8 FRAA %iﬁ%@‘
AT
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HE-_ZT_—_F+-_A=t+—HItFE

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

8. AREEXEMBATFE
(#)

Proportion ownership
Interest/voting power
attributable to the Company

ADARITABER
Place of Issued and paid FERESR/ RERLH
Incorporation registration ordinary share 31 December 31 December
and business capital/registered capital 2022 2021
Name of subsidiaries ERALUR BETRAR k- S “E=—% Principal activities
KEAREH HRREELE BERE/ERER Jr:EEJr-E +:HE+—5 IEEH
00 0
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary share capital 95 95 Operating restaurant
(TR Mﬂaiﬁ(mw&)ﬁ A7) Himk SGD1,000,000 HYEE
RERBEREE IR FRA ERRA
1,000,003 113 T
Xiabu (Shanghai) Design Engmeenng Co., Ltd The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Construction
(B ( £5) 3t TRERLH) MNote) e RMB10,000,000 et
W (L) Rt TRERAR (HH) ifER
AR %10,000,0007
Xiabuxiabu Investment Co., Ltd.* The PRC Registered capital 100 - Investment holding
WEFEREBRAR (Note i) (Note i) i USD141,800,000 AR
WEREREBRAR (HEH) (Ht) AMER
ZT0141,800,0007C
Xiabuxiabu (Shanghai) Food Trading Co., Ltd.* The PRC Registered capital 100 - Food Sales
BHRE (LR AnE5ERAT Notel) (Notel)  #E RMBS,000,000 Am#E
W (L) Am8 5ERAR (H) (W) AR
AR 85,000,000
X\abumabu (Shanghai) Food Co., Ltd.* The PRC Registered capital 100 - Food Sales
BEEE (H5) R 2ARAT (Note ) (Note i) nE RMB5,000,000 Rm#E
W (L8) RmAR AR () () ifER
AR 5,000,007
Shaohot Catering Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* The PRC Registered capital 100 - Operating restaurant
LREEHER(LE)BRAA (Note ) (Note i) i RMB10,000,000 i
CRERER (DF)BRAT (M) (st AMER
AR#10,000,0007
* The English name is for identification only. The official names of the

companies are in Chinese.
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) The entities are wholly-owned foreign enterprises.

(i) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debts securities at the end

of the year.

(iii)

Except for Xiabu Hong Kong, Coucou (China) and Xiabu (China)

Food, which are directly held by the Company, other subsidiaries are

indirectly held by the Company.

(iv)

These entities were newly established during the year.

38. ARARFEMB QRIS

(&)
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()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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B i s 0 R0R (Fh ) R IR
(PE) RmMBARAEERE
S E At P8 2 B B AR A R R R
KA -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL 30. SR TERSREAREIE
RISK MANAGEMENT
Categories of the financial instruments SR T EER
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—8H
2022 2021
—E-= —_F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Financial assets: ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHEK A ENEREE 610,796 1,218,343
Financial assets at FVTPL FERBREATETEDN
BEEE 390,203 15,832
Financial liabilities: TREAE
Amortised cost B H R AR 579,810 622,223
212 MHEEEREE (FE) ZRAERAF XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL 9. eRITAREREAKRER

RISK MANAGEMENT (CoONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, rental deposits, restricted bank balances, cash and
cash equivalents, financial assets at FVTPL, bank borrowings, trade
payables and other payables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk, which details are described as follows:

Foreign currency risk management

The Group undertakes certain financing and operating transactions
in foreign currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group does not use any derivative contracts to hedge
against its exposure to currency risk. The management manages its
currency risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates and considering hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should such need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the year are
as follows:

(%)
TREREEBZEREEK

AEENTE2ERIABRES
& U BR 3R I Lt R MR IR - T
T XBHIRTHES BREeLRE
FEY BBEBRaRAVENEZ
TREE  RITER  EZEME
AEEMEMNTIE ZEFERTA
HEREENERRE - BZFE
BTAMEBENRREET SRR
EERRNMREBE SRR o (AR
EZFRBROBRINTX - BHE
BRREEREEZFRAR - UiE
R BB R SREUE S R S a4 o

ARBENEDEEHTHAREE
BOMEERRFEER - BHHE
WamT

SR B
REBUIIEETETRERESE
RS WAEEHEEINERRE - K
SEYEEREFITESOE T E
PrERERRER - &2 ERBEK
BERINEEXNBHAEELE
KRR YRR ERERHTE
RN Rz o

RERE  AEBAIINEHENEE
BENMEEREREENT :

Assets Liabilities
As at 31 December As at 31 December
EE =K
R+=-B=+—H R+=-—B=+—H

2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C_F T —4F —EC__F T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREETF T AR T ARBEF T
usD ETT 1,386 98,573 2,664 533
HKD BT 29,740 27,468 87,921 91,810
SGD N3 T 4,303 176 9,813 11,439
TWD e 11,351 1,856 - =
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis on foreign currency risk is presented as
management consider the sensitivity on foreign currency risk is
insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to restricted bank balances (Note 23), fixed-rate bank borrowing
(Note 30), lease liabilities (Note 27) and rental deposits (Note 19).
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances (Note 24), which carry prevailing
market interest. The Group manages its interest rate exposures
by assessing the potential impact arising from any interest rate
movements based on interest rate level and outlook.

Total interest income from financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost is as follows:

30. eMIEREREKRERE

(4)
SREREIEEENRBER (&)

IR R EE ()
BREE DM

BB EINE R ETTRRMED AT
R E T B 58 HT NS [ i ) B %
M REKXK -

T £ 7 B

7N &2 [ [ B PR I SR 1T 45 8 (P =
23) - EERITERK (KFFE30) -
HEaE (ME27) kAR (H
H19) HEAFENXAR - K&
B JrmE R Y BRIT AR (e
24) - ZEFERBRITHIS M X
E\ﬁﬁﬁgjmiﬁimbiﬂjgﬂ Z’S%
B33 AR AR A K Ko i R AL
MMNEREFELEETEEERA
A = @ g o

RRER AN B SBEENTE
W AR T -

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—s=-= B
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARET T
Other income Ha g A
Financial assets at amortised cost HEEKN AT ECEREE 9,974 10,860

No sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk is presented as
management consider the sensitivity on interest rate risk is
insignificant.

HREEERRMERERHRERN
FER/)  EUb W E 25N X
RS REN DN -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL 39. 2RI TEAREREAKRER

RISK MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position (including trade receivables, other
receivables, rental deposits, restricted bank balances and bank
balances).

The management of the Group considers bank balances and
restricted bank balances that are deposited with state-owned
banks or financial institutions with high credit rating to be
low credit risk financial assets. In addition, trade receivables in
connection with bills settled through payment platforms such
as Unionpay, Alipay or WeChat Pay are also with high credit
rating and no past due history. The management of the Group
considers these assets are short-term in nature and the probability
of default is negligible on the basis of high-credit-rating issuers
as at 31 December 2022, and accordingly, no loss allowance was
recognised as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

In determining the ECL for rental deposits and other receivables,
the management of the Group has taken into account the
historical default experience and forward-looking information, as
appropriate. Except for the rental deposits and other receivable
that were identified as credit-impaired, the management believes
that there has been no significant increase in credit risk of the rest
of rental deposits and other receivables since initial recognition
and the credit impairment was assessed based on 12m ECL. The
management concluded that the ECL for those receivables and
deposits are insignificant for the year end 31 December 2022
(2021: insignificant).

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made throughout the year ended 31
December 2022.

(%)
TREREEEEREE &)

AEERZXZHEFHAREBITEME
MeAEERIMBERNRSE
B RRIRB RS M EIRRR A%
HERRTMEENKREE (217
B RWERR - RtEERE M
THE - ZREBIIRITERRAKIRTT
KmER) e

AEBEEERAGTERRSE
BEFEMHRGIRTHS B EE N
RITHEBLIRARTEHRBE
EERKRESMEE - I HBER
BE TNEHIMEZINEINTF
BEEENEBEEHENE S EIWE
RN EREETL  BXEAHRE
B ANEEETEERAREEER
EHME BERRE_ZT_=_—
+—A=+—BBTAEERSE
B - MEAR AT BE 1] 2 BT
AR ER T _—_F+=H
—t+—HERAEERE (T =—
FmE) o

RETHESHFS REMEKIER
HHEEEERK  A5EEEED
ZRIBABHEHREATEMEER (0
HA) - BREBMNREERENHES
He REMBUFIEN  BEER
BEVRERARKTHEHE R
H b e W FRIE 15 B R B I 4 7
e mEEREDERN2EA B
EEBEERIHE BEEBRTE  %Z
FERIE MBS NBHEEEBEER
HE_Z-_—_F+=-A=+—H8H1I1
FEATAERN(ZE=Z—F: F
BAK) e

RBE_T__+_A=t—H

IFEEAFE  HEDEREARR
W EHIREF o
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39.

216

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

In the management of the liquidity risk, the management of the
Group monitors and maintains a reasonable level of cash and
cash equivalents which is deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on the cash generated
from operating activities as the main source of liquidity. For
the year ended December 31, 2022, the Group had net cash
generated from operating activities of RMB881,619,000 (2021:
RMB1,048,536,000). As at the time of approving the consolidated
financial statements, the Group also had unused banking facilities
of RMB225 million to meet their financial obligations in the
foreseeable future.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities and lease
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

39.

TRMIARSRERERE
(#)

TRIEREEERERBER (&)

HRRBECRRER  AESEE
BEEERMEEREER A EHAN
He MRS ZEAEKE  AKE
EmEERNES  BIERSRE
BN E - EEBRBLELEE
EENREERARHESHNEER
ReBE_E_—_F+_A=+—
HIEFE ASELEEIHELER
FIRE A ARES81,619,0007T (=
T - —F: AR¥1,048,536,000
To) c RBLER A M RERE - &
L@ B ARE2 25 TR AS B
RITEREUERBENRRETH
WIERE °

TRALASENFITESRAE
EAERENRTAORHER
ZRDBEAEREATINNEKT
PHemAaBrEEABHREE
HeREmE -

Over 1 Over

Weighted  On demand months 3 months Total
average  orwithin  but within  but within Undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate ~ Tmonth 3 months Tyear  1-5years  >Syears cash flows amount

As at 31 December 2022 mE  BERS EBE-fF HB=EA ABERS
WZ8ZZE+Zf=1-A 4HE  -@AR BOR=ER @OR-F  -ZRF  BBRE  fEHE EEE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETIn AREIR:
Trade payables BARREH 231,888 6,236 4,610 - - M 24,734
Other payables HitEfE 95,945 50504 122,049 - - 218398 278,398
Bank borrowings BOfRR 3.85% - - 60,242 - - 60,242 58,678
Lease liabilities HEBE 5.21% 2,180 109838 443275 1,046,279 65627 1,687,199 1,427,220
Total h) 30,013 175578 631,076 1,046,279 65,621 2268513 2,007,030
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL

0. EMIEAENSHEARERE

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies SREAMRETEEERKE &)
(continued)
Over 1 Over
Weighted ~ On demand months 3 months Total
average  orwithin - butwithin -~ but within Undiscounted Carrying
interest rate Tmonth 3 months Tyear  1-5years S5years  cash flows amount
As at 31 December 201 mE  RERS #B-FEA #A=fA REAHS
RZFZ-E+ZA=T-H TaHE AR BORZEAR BOR-F  -2RE  HBRE  E4E EHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARET:
Trade payables BARMER 219,876 26,458 4,360 - - B06% 25069
Other payables EfERZE 116,895 27604 151226 - - 575 295705
Bank borrowings RITER 385% 10,714 413 68,816 - - 79,943 75,804
Lease liabilities HEEE 5.19% 22,999 121,418 477797 1,252,319 109425 1,983,958 1,599,285
Total th 370,484 175,893 702199 1,252,319 109425 2610320 2,221,508

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

Some of the Group’s financial asset are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these financial assets and
liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s)
and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1
to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value

measurements is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities;

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from

inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1

that

are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as

prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

40. e T EAFEFE

AEENETEREERNEREH
RERAFEFE - TREAHNFEMN
MEETZEEREENBBENRF
B(FRRAEANGBET AR
ABE)  URBREBEAFEFESR
A%&FZT%@%&FF@H"“?@?
ENRIMBRAFESHR(E R
I%:fi&)ﬂﬁéﬂ

- E-RAVEFENEIERA
B B
AR AR ERE Y

s FHRRFEFETRFA
—RHREN BEEHL
BETEE (BIER) kHE
(BNEERITE) BEE AR
EEH &

« ESGHATEHEDEHA
1R 5 B 5 4
R E E B A BUE (4
EREE ABUR) 015

=]
1=
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40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 40. R I A QA FEFTE 2
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2022 R-BZ_F+Z-A=+-—
BB AFEZER

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F—R EZR E=ZR et

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTRT AR®MTRT AR®TR

Financial assets at FVTPL FEBRIEAFETEZ

TRUEE = = 390,203 390,203

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2021 R —F+-_H=+—
B AFESR

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F—& 1 E=/ wEt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’'000
ARBTT ARBTIT ARBTIT ARETRT

Financial assets at FVTPL FEEBREAFEETEZ

S REE - 15,832 - 15,832
Relationship of
Significant unobservable
Financial Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable inputs to fair
assets/liability Fair value as at (RMB'000) hierarchy and key input(s) input(s) value
EXFUBE FUBRGAHE
SHEE/AR RUATREMNATE(ARET ) AVEESS HERFLIRIZGAYE aAHE BAYEZBRE
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—E-CE S
t=AZt-A +2A=1-A
Financial assets at - 15,832 Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are  N/A N/A
FVTPL estimated based on the quoted bid prices

of relevant listed shares held by the Trust in
an active market and the total cash out that
arising from the Trust.

BREREATE FZR MRRERBE ARRLRENRE FER Zyiki
AENEREARE EEANC ikiesyil Al G EE
BRRETHELRSRLBEMTEL -
Financial assets at 390,203 - Level 3 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are  Estimated return — The higher the
FVTPL estimated based on estimated return.(Note) estimated return,
the higher the fair

value, vice versa

EARm AT 6 BRBLRE AARLNERECES  EMEE  BHEREE
ENERAE #7fA3F - () AVEHE

RZ IR
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40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 40. €T EAFES

ffin
D
o)
AN

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note:

A slight increase in the discount rate used in isolation would result in a
decrease in the fair value. A 1% increase in the discount rate, holding
all other variables constant, would decrease the carrying amount of the
financial assets at FVTPL by RMB1,439,000 as at 31 December 2022. A
1% decrease in the discount rate, holding all other variables constant,
would increase the carrying amount of the financial assets at FVTPL by
RMB 1,403,000 as at 31 December 2022.

A slight increase in the expected rate of return used in isolation would
result in a increase in the fair value. A 1% increase in the expected rates
of return, holding all other variables constant, would increase the carrying
amount of the financial assets at FVTPL by RMB566,000 as at 31 December
2022. A 1% decrease in the expected rates of return, holding all other
variables constant, would decrease the carrying amount of the financial
assets at FVTPL by RMB355,000 as at 31 December 2022.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during the year.

GEE

BEFEANBRRBEAEMEEERQ
AEBEETR FEMEEMEHRTEN
BT - R20224E12 8318 @ BRI =
EF1% - @ EENIREEE SR D
A R #1,439,0007T ° 12022412 A31
H EMEEMEBHETENBERT
BRI R T[R1%  BBRBZEAFET
ENCHEEROEEBEMARE
1,403,000 JT °

FEEFEANERRSREEENEE
BARBEEN - EMAEME ST
FRBERT  EHKREREFAI%  ®B
20224F12A31H & MBEMNIKREE
B #5131 A R #566,0007T ° EFTE H
HEFTIENBERT  BHKZET
[£1% - 720224128318 - @B R
BRAFEFENSREERTDEER
B AR #355,0007T °

RERN > B-RRE_RzBEILE
EE -
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40.

220

B+ A=t+—RHLEE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement
of financial assets

The following table represents the reconciliation of Level 3

40. TR T A A FEFE (&)

TREEFE=RNAFETE
HY ¥ BR
BRBRRRAFEAENEREE

measurements of the financial assets at FVTPL, which are (EATVTEBKREHRAONESRE D
short-term investment in financial products without ending MEBEE) E=ZFRFEFTEN
balance for the period: HERAT
RMB’'000

ARBTT
At 1 January 2021 RZZFEZ—4F—H—H =
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BEEREBEREATETENEREE 1,879,170
Redemption of financial assets at FVTPL BEEBEREATETENEHEE (1,906,117)
Net gains on financial assets at FVTPL BREBEREATEFTENSREERZFHE 26,947
At 31 December 2021 R_ZE-_—F+_HA=+—H -
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BEERBREATETENEREE 1,580,584
Redemption of financial assets at FVTPL BEEBEREATEFENEREE (1,203,636)
Net gains on financial assets at FVTPL HREBEREATEFENEREERSFE 13,255
At 31 December 2022 R-—E-_—_&#+=-B=+—H 390,203
Fair value of the financial assets and liabilities I IF LU & 1 B R N P
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring TTENEMEERAEN A
basis FE
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial BEERAE  BRAEVBIRERANILEHE

assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

RAARNEREERERAEN
FREEEE QA FERS
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41. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING M BEETHRMELEEGEZY
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BR

The table below details major changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFMAEBRGEEBAELEA
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash ENTELE  PIHEBEESKRIERS
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for ) B EEmELSAGEIEH
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in HERERKKBEBIRS RERAE
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows BiaLEA4H e ReRAY B AREE

from financing activities. PFAELRESRMAE-

Non-cash changes
FRe48
Covid-19-

At Lease Lease related At
1 January Financing Interest liabilities liabilities rent 31 December
2022 cash flows accruals — recognised  derecognised  concessions 2022
RZBZZF wE BRR  EBRLER Covid-19 R=-S==%

-R-H RERE EHEL BEAR BERR HBALES T-A=t-H
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTR  AR®TR  ARBTR  ARRTR  ARRTn  ARMTr  ARETR

Bank borrowings (Note 30) & {7{d 31 (M3430) 75,804 (19,673) 2,547 - - - 58,678
Lease liabiities (Note 27 EEARE (H&27) 1,599,285 (563,237) 73,464 407,069 (84,301) (50600 1,427,220
Other payables HfERFE 100 (100) - - - - -
1,675,189 (583,010) 76,011 407,069 (84,301) (5,060) 1,485,898

Non-cash changes

Fhe%

At Lease Lease Covid-19-related At
1 January Financing Interest liabilities liabilities rent 31 December
2021 cash flows accruals recognised  derecognised concessions 2021
O #E BRA  BRLER Covid-19  RZF=-F

~A-H Reihg 2itHla HERER BERR HBRLEZ T-A=t-A
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARRTL  AR®TT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETn  ARMTR  ARETR

Bank borrowings (Note 30) #7731 (3£30) 20,000 54,072 1,732 - - - 75,804
Lease liabilties (Note 27) %ﬁ‘*’é%(mm 1,965,041 (663,959) 89,208 473,381 (260,422) (3,965 1,599,285
Other payables HipER 17,502 (17,402) - - - - 100

2,002,543 (627,289) 90,940 473,381 (260,422) (3,965 1,675,189
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42,

222

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern, while to maximise
the return to the owners of the Company through optimisation
of debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank borrowings and lease liabilities disclosed in Note
30 and Note 27 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, retained earnings and other reserves.

The management reviews the capital structure on a quarterly basis.
As part of this review, the management considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
the recommendation of the management, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt
of redemption of existing debt.

42. EXEBER

AEENHEAERE ERRAEE
MTERBESEEE  AEES
B EBRIEAM T - AR
AEAAFREEEE - AEE
BRI R T -

AEENENGEEREEFAGE(E
5 M TE30 K M 5227 0 Il B BE A9 8R
TEALEERRE)  MBRES R
ReFEARARRRR AEIGE
# (BREHETERA REAEMK
H#EE)

BEEHEERFERMEARE R
ETZENE BEEEEEREEAN
AR EERESHBANERR - R
BREEEMREZ  AREKEBX
RS~ 37T 3T R AR ) [ BB DA %
REEREEFRETHES  F
MEEREARE -
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43, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

43. X E BRI KRR

As at 31 December

R+=-B=+—H
2022 2021
—s=-= —EF——
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETF T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries REBARIHKRE 171,702 171,702
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U B B8~ Bl FRIE 153,250 121,946
324,952 293,648
Current assets REBEE
Other receivable E {th pE W 5008 278 =
Amounts prepaid to the RSU Trustee &t 8& B 38 A% [7) BB # B {0
for purchase of ordinary shares BAXFEABRNNSE
(Note 33) (Fft5E33) 756 15,497
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZEEY 1,111 3,890
2,145 19,387
Current liabilities RBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FES BT B A B FRIE 246,168 84,069
Other payables H b fE N FRIE 1,555 1,678
247,723 85,747
Net current liabilities REBEEFHE (245,578) (66,360)
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERAHAR 79,374 227,288
Net assets EEZFE 79,374 227,288
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital fig A 176 176
Reserves 1 79,198 227,112
Total equity A 79,374 227,288
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 43, AT MBERRKR R HE

224

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Movement in the Company’s reserves

(&)

ADTRERD

Attribute to owners of the Company

KRRERAEL
Equity-settled
share-based
Share payments Treasury  Accumulated
premium reserve  share reserve losses Total
NRELE
IR AER EFRR
R EE R R E Rt 2itER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETT ARETTL ARETT ARBTT
Balance at 1 January 2021 RIBZ-E-F-RH&EH 412,21 25,561 (68,123) (135,484) 294,225
Total comprehensive expense ERZERTAE
for the year - - - (11,032) (11,032)
Exercise of issued share option IR RTERE 8,513 (2,584) = - 5,929
Exercise of issued RSU Scheme B RIRBRHRAENHE (2,170) (13,021) 15,191 - =
Purchase of treasury share BREZBHRHEMFEIEE
under RSU Scheme ERRH - - (10,788) - (10,788)
Recognition of equity-settled B & B AR () A AT
share-based payments Ll - 8,778 - = 8,778
Payment of dividends RARE (60,000) = - = (60,000)
Balance at 31 December 2021 RZE-—-F+-f=1-H
MEH 418,614 18,734 (63,720) (146,516) 227,112
Total comprehensive income ER2ERTAS
for the year - - - 10,779 10,779
Exercise of issued share option 7B B1TIBRE 1,089 (338) - = 751
Exercise of issued RSU Scheme TR BB TRRHRG B2 4,618 (10,626) 6,008 - -
Purchase of treasury share BEXRHRDEMHEEE
under RSU Scheme EfRH - = (104,282) - (104,282)
Recognition of equity-settled BRI R (D R ETR
share-based payments OlREN - 4,838 - = 4,838
Payment of dividends RS (60,000) - - - (60,000)
Balance at 31 December 2022 WZBZZ#+ZF=1-H
fEs 364,321 12,608 (161,994) (135,737) 79,198
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